UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 8-K

CURRENT REPORT

Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Date of Report (Date of earliest event reported): February 21, 2010

SCHLUMBERGER N.V. (SCHLUMBERGER LIMITED)

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Netherlands Antilles (State or other jurisdiction of incorporation)

1-4601 (Commission File Number) 52-0684746 (IRS Employer Identification No.)

42, rue Saint-Dominique, Paris, France 75007 5599 San Felipe, 17th Floor, Houston, Texas 77056 Parkstraat 83, The Hague, The Netherlands 2514 JG (Addresses of principal executive offices and zip or postal codes)

Registrant's telephone number in the United States, including area code: (713) 513-2000

Check the appropriate box below if the Form 8-K filing is intended to simultaneously satisfy the filing obligation of the registrant under any of the following provisions (see General Instruction A.2. below):

✓ Written communications pursuant to Rule 425 under the Securities Act (17 CFR 230.425)
 ☐ Soliciting material pursuant to Rule 14a-12 under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.14a-12)
 ☐ Pre-commencement communications pursuant to Rule 14d-2(b) under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.14d-2(b))
 ☐ Pre-commencement communications pursuant to Rule 13e-4(c) under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.13e-4(c))

Item 1.01 Entry into a Material Definitive Agreement.

On February 21, 2010, Schlumberger Limited, a company organized under the laws of the Netherlands Antilles ("Schlumberger"), Turnberry Merger Sub Inc., a Delaware corporation and a direct wholly owned subsidiary of Schlumberger ("Merger Sub"), and Smith International, Inc., a Delaware corporation ("Smith"), entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the "Merger Agreement"). Under the terms of the Merger Agreement, Merger Sub will merge with and into Smith, with Smith as the surviving entity, and Smith will become a wholly owned subsidiary of Schlumberger.

Under the terms of the Merger Agreement, each share of Smith common stock outstanding immediately prior to the effective time of the Merger will be exchanged for 0.6966 shares of Schlumberger common stock (the "Exchange Ratio"). At the effective time of the merger, each Smith restricted stock unit award will become fully vested (except for permitted grants between the date of the Merger Agreement and closing, which will not automatically vest) and be converted into the right to receive a number of shares of Schlumberger common stock based on the number of shares Smith common stock subject to such award and the Exchange Ratio (assuming, in the case of performance-based Smith restricted stock unit awards, the deemed attainment of the performance goals under the award at the target level). At the effective time of the Merger, all outstanding Smith stock options will become fully vested (except for permitted grants between the date of the Merger Agreement and closing, which will not automatically vest) and will be assumed by Schlumberger but will represent the right to acquire Schlumberger common stock, with corresponding adjustments to the number of shares and the exercise price based on the Exchange Ratio.

Completion of the Merger is subject to customary conditions, including: (1) approval by Smith's stockholders; (2) regulatory approvals, including expiration or early termination of the applicable waiting period under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976 and the receipt of approval of the European Commission under Council Regulation (EC) No. 139/2004 of 20 January 2004; (3) the effectiveness of a registration statement on Form S-4 that will be filed by Schlumberger for the issuance of its common stock in the Merger and the approval of the listing of these shares on the New York Stock Exchange; and (4) the delivery of customary opinions from counsel to Schlumberger and Smith that the Merger will qualify as a tax-free reorganization for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

Schlumberger and Smith have made customary representations, warranties and covenants in the Merger Agreement. In addition, Smith has covenanted (1) to conduct its business in the ordinary course; (2) to hold a meeting of its stockholders to consider approval of the Merger Agreement and the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement; (3) subject to certain exceptions, for its board of directors to recommend approval by the stockholders of the Merger Agreement and the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement; (4) not to solicit proposals relating to alternative business combination transactions; and (5) subject to certain exceptions, not to enter into discussions concerning or provide confidential information in connection with alternative business combination transactions.

The Merger Agreement contains provisions granting both Schlumberger and Smith rights to terminate the Merger Agreement under specified conditions, including (1) if the Merger is not completed by February 21, 2011 (unless extended by either party in accordance with the Merger Agreement to a date not later than May 31, 2011); (2) if Smith's stockholders fail to approve the Merger Agreement; (3) in order for Smith to enter into a Superior Proposal (as defined in the Merger Agreement); (4) if Smith's board of directors fails to recommend that Smith stockholders approve the Merger or changes its recommendation; or (5) if a final nonappealable governmental order has been issued prohibiting the Merger. In the event of a termination of the Merger Agreement under certain circumstances, Smith may be required to pay Schlumberger a termination fee of \$340 million or either party may be required to reimburse the other party for its transaction expenses up to \$10 million. In the event of a termination of the Merger Agreement under certain circumstances relating to antitrust or competition approvals, Schlumberger may be required to pay Smith a termination fee of \$615 million.

The foregoing description of the Merger Agreement does not purport to be complete and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the Merger Agreement, which is attached hereto as Exhibit 2.1 and is incorporated by reference herein.

The Merger Agreement has been included to provide security holders with information regarding its terms. It is not intended to provide any other factual information about Schlumberger or Smith. The representations, warranties and covenants contained in the Merger Agreement were made solely for purposes of the agreement and

as of specific dates, were solely for the benefit of the parties to the Merger Agreement, may be subject to limitations agreed upon by the contracting parties, including being qualified by confidential disclosures made for the purposes of allocating contractual risk between the parties to the Merger Agreement instead of establishing these matters as facts, and may be subject to standards of materiality applicable to the contracting parties that differ from those applicable to security holders. Security holders are not third-party beneficiaries under the Merger Agreement and should not rely on the representations, warranties and covenants or any descriptions thereof as characterizations of the actual state of facts or condition of Schlumberger or Smith. Moreover, information concerning the subject matter of the representations and warranties may change after the date of the Merger Agreement, which subsequent information may or may not be fully reflected in Schlumberger's or Smith's public disclosures.

Item 8.01 Other Events.

On February 22, 2010, at 8:30 am (EST), Schlumberger and Smith conducted an investor conference call with respect to the Merger, the transcript of which is attached as Exhibit 99.1 to this report and incorporated herein by reference.

Additional Information

STOCKHOLDERS ARE URGED TO READ THE PROXY STATEMENT/PROSPECTUS AND REGISTRATION STATEMENT REGARDING THE PROPOSED TRANSACTION WHEN IT BECOMES AVAILABLE BECAUSE IT WILL CONTAIN IMPORTANT INFORMATION ABOUT THE PROPOSED TRANSACTION. These documents will contain important information about the proposed transaction that should be read carefully before any decision is made with respect to the proposed transaction. These materials will be made available to the shareholders of Smith at no expense to them. Investors and security holders will be able to obtain the documents (when available) free of charge at the SEC's web site, www.sec.gov. In addition, such materials (and all other documents filed with the SEC) will be available free of charge at www.smith.com or www.SLB.com. Such documents are not currently available. You may also read and copy any reports, statements and other information filed by Smith or Schlumberger with the SEC at the SEC public reference room at 100 F Street N.E., Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at (800) 732-0330 or visit the SEC's website for further information on its public reference room.

Each company's directors and executive officers and other persons may be deemed, under SEC rules, to be participants in the solicitation of proxies in connection with the proposed transaction. Information regarding Schlumberger's directors and officers can be found in its preliminary proxy statement filed with the SEC on February 9, 2010, and information regarding Smith's directors and officers can be found in its proxy statement filed with the SEC on April 13, 2009. Additional information regarding the participants in the proxy solicitation and a description of their direct and indirect interests in the transaction, by security holdings or otherwise, will be contained in the proxy statement/prospectus and other relevant materials to be filed with the SEC when they become available.

Forward-Looking Statements

This material includes "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The opinions, forecasts, projections, or other statements other than statements of historical fact, are forward-looking statements. Similarly, statements that describe our future plans, objectives or goals or future revenues or other financial metrics are also forward-looking statements. Although the Company believes that the expectations reflected in such forward-looking statements are reasonable, it can give no assurance that such expectations will prove to have been correct. These statements are subject to, among other things, satisfaction of the closing conditions to the merger, the risk that the contemplated merger does not occur, negative effects from the pendency of the merger, the ability to successfully integrate the merged businesses and to realize expected synergies, the risk that we will not be able to retain key employees, expenses of the merger, and other risk factors that are discussed in Schlumberger's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009, Smith's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008 and each company's other filings with the SEC available at the SEC's Internet site (http://www.sec.gov). Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or should the assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may differ materially from those expected, estimated or projected. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they are made, and we undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any of them in light of new information, future events or otherwise.

Item 9.01 Financial Statements and Exhibits.

- (d) Exhibits
 - 2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger among Schlumberger Limited, Turnberry Merger Sub Inc. and Smith International, Inc., dated February 21, 2010.
 - 99.1 Transcript of February 22, 2010 Conference Call.

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

SCHLUMBERGER N.V. (SCHLUMBERGER LIMITED)

By: /s/ Howard Guild

Howard Guild Chief Accounting Officer

Date: February 22, 2010

AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER

among

SCHLUMBERGER LIMITED,

TURNBERRY MERGER SUB INC.

and

SMITH INTERNATIONAL, INC.

Dated as of February 21, 2010

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		Page
Article 1 THE MERGER		1
SECTION 1.1	The Merger	1
SECTION 1.2	The Closing	1
SECTION 1.3	Effective Time	2
Article 2 GOVERNING DOCUMENTS		2
SECTION 2.1	Certificate of Incorporation	2
SECTION 2.2	Bylaws	2
Article 3 DIRECTORS AND	OFFICERS	2
SECTION 3.1	Board of Directors	2
SECTION 3.2	Officers	2
Article 4 CONVERSION OF	SMITH COMMON STOCK	3
SECTION 4.1	Conversion of Equity Interests of Smith and Merger Sub.	3
SECTION 4.2	Exchange of Shares	5
SECTION 4.3	Certain Adjustments	8
SECTION 4.4	Associated Rights	9
Article 5 REPRESENTATION	NS AND WARRANTIES OF SMITH	9
SECTION 5.1	Organization; Good Standing and Qualification	9
SECTION 5.2	Authorization, Validity, Enforceability and Fairness	9
SECTION 5.3	Capitalization	10
SECTION 5.4	Compliance with Laws; Permits	11
SECTION 5.5	No Conflict	12
SECTION 5.6	SEC Documents; Financial Statements	13
SECTION 5.7	Controls and Procedures	14
SECTION 5.8	Litigation	15
SECTION 5.9	Absence of Certain Changes	15
SECTION 5.10	Taxes	17
SECTION 5.11	Employee Benefit Plans	18
SECTION 5.12	Labor Matters	22
SECTION 5.13	Properties	22
SECTION 5.14	Environmental Matters	22
SECTION 5.15	Intellectual Property	23
SECTION 5.16	Decrees, Etc.	23
SECTION 5.17	Insurance	23
SECTION 5.18	No Brokers	24
SECTION 5.19	Schlumberger Stock Ownership	24
SECTION 5.20	Vote Required	24
SECTION 5.21	Certain Contracts	24
SECTION 5.22	Export Controls and Trade Sanctions	26
SECTION 5.23	Foreign Corrupt Practices Act	27

i

SECTION 5.24	Stockholder Rights Agreement	28
SECTION 5.25	Charter Provisions; Takeover Laws	28
SECTION 5.26	Tax Treatment	28
Article 6 REPRESENTATION	NS AND WARRANTIES OF SCHLUMBERGER AND MERGER SUB	29
SECTION 6.1	Organization; Good Standing and Qualification	29
SECTION 6.2	Authorization, Validity and Enforceability	29
SECTION 6.3	Capitalization	30
SECTION 6.4	Compliance with Laws; Permits	30
SECTION 6.5	No Conflict	31
SECTION 6.6	SEC Documents; Financial Statements	32
SECTION 6.7	Information Supplied.	33
SECTION 6.8	Litigation	33
SECTION 6.9	Absence of Certain Changes	33
SECTION 6.10	Smith Stock Ownership	34
SECTION 6.11	No Vote Required	34
SECTION 6.12	Export Controls and Trade Sanctions	34
SECTION 6.13	Foreign Corrupt Practices Act	35
SECTION 6.14	Tax Treatment	36
SECTION 6.15	Status of Merger Sub	36
SECTION 6.16	Decrees, Etc	36
SECTION 6.17	Controls and Procedures	36
Article 7 COVENANTS		37
SECTION 7.1	Conduct of Business	37
SECTION 7.2	Smith Stockholders Meeting	44
SECTION 7.3	No Solicitation	44
SECTION 7.4	Reasonable Best Efforts	48
SECTION 7.5	Preparation of Proxy Statement/Prospectus	48
SECTION 7.6	Filings, Etc	49
SECTION 7.7	Listing Application	52
SECTION 7.8	Section 16 Matters	52
SECTION 7.9	Schlumberger Options and Stock Incentive Awards	53
SECTION 7.10	Coordination of Dividends	53
SECTION 7.11	Inspection	53
SECTION 7.12	Publicity	53
SECTION 7.13	Expenses	54
SECTION 7.14	Rights Agreement	54
SECTION 7.15	State Takeover Laws	54
SECTION 7.16	Stockholder Litigation	54
SECTION 7.17	Indemnification and Insurance	55
SECTION 7.18	Certain Benefits	56
SECTION 7.19	Certain Transfer Taxes	59
SECTION 7.20	Tax Matters	59

CONDITIONS SECTION 8.1 SECTION 8.2 SECTION 8.3	Conditions to Certain Obligations of Each Party to Effect the Merger Conditions to Obligation of Smith to Effect the Merger Conditions to Obligation of Schlumberger to Effect the Merger	59 59 60 61
TERMINATION		62
SECTION 9.1		62
SECTION 9.2	Termination by Schlumberger or Smith	62
SECTION 9.3	Termination by Smith	62
SECTION 9.4	Termination by Schlumberger	63
SECTION 9.5	Effect of Termination	63
Article 10 GENERAL PROVISIONS		66
SECTION 10.1	Nonsurvival of Representations, Warranties and Agreements	66
SECTION 10.2	Notices	66
SECTION 10.3	Assignment; Binding Effect	67
SECTION 10.4	Third-Party Beneficiaries	67
SECTION 10.5	Entire Agreement	67
SECTION 10.6	Amendments	67
SECTION 10.7	Governing Law	67
SECTION 10.8	Counterparts	68
SECTION 10.9	Headings	68
SECTION 10.10	Interpretation; Disclosure Letter	68
SECTION 10.11	Definitions	69
SECTION 10.12	Extensions; Waiver	70
SECTION 10.13	Severability	71
SECTION 10.14	Enforcement of Agreement	71
SECTION 10.15	Waiver of Jury Trial	71
	SECTION 8.2 SECTION 8.3 SECTION 8.3 SERMINATION SECTION 9.1 SECTION 9.2 SECTION 9.3 SECTION 9.4 SECTION 9.5 GENERAL PROVISE SECTION 10.1 SECTION 10.2 SECTION 10.3 SECTION 10.4 SECTION 10.5 SECTION 10.6 SECTION 10.7 SECTION 10.7 SECTION 10.8 SECTION 10.9 SECTION 10.10 SECTION 10.11 SECTION 10.11 SECTION 10.12 SECTION 10.13 SECTION 10.14	SECTION 8.1 Conditions to Certain Obligations of Each Party to Effect the Merger SECTION 8.2 Conditions to Obligation of Smith to Effect the Merger SECTION 8.3 Conditions to Obligation of Schlumberger to Effect the Merger SECTION 9.1 Termination by Mutual Consent SECTION 9.1 Termination by Schlumberger or Smith SECTION 9.2 Termination by Schlumberger or Smith SECTION 9.3 Termination by Schlumberger SECTION 9.4 Termination by Schlumberger SECTION 9.5 Effect of Termination SECTION 9.5 Effect of Termination SECTION 10.1 Nonsurvival of Representations, Warranties and Agreements SECTION 10.2 Notices SECTION 10.3 Assignment; Binding Effect SECTION 10.4 Third-Party Beneficiaries SECTION 10.5 Entire Agreement SECTION 10.6 Amendments SECTION 10.7 Governing Law SECTION 10.8 Counterparts SECTION 10.9 Headings SECTION 10.1 Interpretation; Disclosure Letter SECTION 10.10 Efinitions SECTION 10.11 Definitions SECTION 10.12 Extensions; Waiver SECTION 10.13 Severability SECTION 10.14 Enforcement of Agreement

EXHIBIT

Exhibit A Certificate of Incorporation

GLOSSARY OF DEFINED TERMS

Defined Terms Where Defined 8.1(c) Jurisdiction Section 8.1(d) Section 7.3(f) Acquisition Proposal Action Section 7.17(a) Agreement Preamble Applicable Laws Section 5.4(a) Bonus Plan Participant Section 7.18(d) **Book Entry Share** Section 4.1(b) Certificates Section 4.1(b) Certificate of Merger Section 1.3 Change in Recommendation Section 7.3(b) Closing Section 1.2 Closing Date Section 1.2 **COBRA** Section 5.11(b)(xii) Code Recitals Section 7.3(a) Confidentiality Agreement Section 5.21(a)(iii) Contract Covered Employees Section 7.18(a) Debt Section 10.11(b) Delaware Court Section 10.7 **Detriment Limit** Section 7.6(d) **DGCL** Recitals EC Merger Regulation Section 5.5(b) Effective Time Section 1.3 **Environmental Laws** Section 5.14(a) **ERISA** Section 5.11(a) Exchange Act Section 5.5(b) Exchange Agent Section 4.2(a) Exchange Fund Section 4.2(a) **Exchange Ratio** Section 4.1(a) Foreign Corrupt Practices Act Section 5.23(a) Foreign Government Official Section 5.23(a) Form S-4 Section 7.2 Section 10.11(g) Franklin GAAP Section 5.6(b) Governmental Entity Section 10.11(c) Section 5.5(b) HSR Act **Indemnified Party** Section 7.17(a) **Initial Termination Date** Section 9.2(b) **Intellectual Property Rights** Section 5.15 Section 5.11(a) **IRS**

Joint Venture

Letter of Transmittal

knowledge

Article 5 Preface

Section 10.11(a)

Section 4.2(b)

Liens Material Adverse Effect Material Contract

Merger

person

Merger Consideration

Merger Sub New Plans NYSE OFAC Old Plans Permitted Lien

Proceeding Prohibited Person Proxy Statement/Prospectus

Regulatory Laws Related Persons Representatives Returns

Reverse Termination Fee Rights Agreement Sarbanes-Oxley Act Schlumberger Schlumberger Approvals

Schlumberger Common Stock Schlumberger Disclosure Letter Schlumberger Material Adverse Effect

Schlumberger Option
Schlumberger Preferred Stock
Schlumberger Reports
Schlumberger Securities

Schlumberger Stock Incentive Award

SEC Securities Act Smith Smith Approvals

Smith Benefit Plans
Smith Board
Smith Common Stock
Smith Disclosure Letter
Smith ERISA affiliate
Smith Excluded Shares
Smith Foreign Benefit Plan
Smith Material Adverse Effect

Smith Option Smith Permits Section 5.3(b)
Section 10.11(d)
Section 5.21(a)(xi)
Recitals

Section 4.1(a)

Preamble
Section 7.18(b)
Section 5.5(b)
Section 5.22(a)
Section 7.18(b)
Section 10.11(e)
Section 10.11(f)
Section 7.1(b)(xii)
Section 5.22(a)
Section 7.2
Section 7.6(f)
Section 9.5(a)

Section 7.3(a)
Section 5.10(a)(i)
Section 9.5(b)
Section 4.4
Section 5.7(a)
Preamble
Section 6.5(b)
Recitals
Article 6 Preface

Section 10.11(d) Section 4.1(f) Section 6.3 Section 6.6(a) Section 6.3 Section 4.1(g) Section 5.6(a) Section 5.5(b) Preamble Section 5.5(b) Section 5.11(a) Section 5.2(b) Section 4.1(a) Article 5 Preface Section 5.11(b)(x)Section 4.1(b) Section 5.11(a) Section 10.11(d) Section 4.1(f) Section 5.4(b)

Smith Post-Signing Option	Section 4.1(f)
Smith Post-Signing Stock Incentive Awards	Section 4.1(g)
Smith Preferred Stock	Section 5.3(a)
Smith Recommendation	Section 5.2(b)
Smith Reports	Section 5.6(a)
Smith Rights	Section 4.4
Smith Securities	Section 5.3(a)
Smith Stock Incentive Awards	Section 4.1(g)
Smith Stock Plans	Section 4.1(f)
Smith Stockholder Approval	Section 5.20
Smith Stockholders Meeting	Section 7.2
Smith Subsidiary Securities	Section 5.3(b)
Smith Surviving Shares	Section 4.1(b)
Smith U.S. Benefit Plan	Section 5.11(a)
Subsidiary	Section 10.11(g)
Superior Proposal	Section 7.3(f)
Surviving Entity	Section 1.1
Surviving Entity Common Stock	Section 4.1(d)
Taxes	Section 10.11(h)
Termination Date	Section 9.2(a)
Termination Fee	Section 9.5(a)

AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER

THIS AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER (this "**Agreement**") dated as of February 21, 2010, is by and among Schlumberger Limited (Schlumberger N.V.), a company organized under the laws of the Netherlands Antilles ("**Schlumberger**"), Turnberry Merger Sub Inc., a Delaware corporation and a direct wholly owned subsidiary of Schlumberger ("**Merger Sub**"), and Smith International, Inc., a Delaware corporation ("**Smith**").

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the respective Boards of Directors of Smith, Schlumberger and Merger Sub have deemed it advisable and in the best interests of their respective companies and equity holders that Smith and Schlumberger engage in a business combination whereby Schlumberger will acquire all of the outstanding capital stock of Smith in exchange for shares of Schlumberger common stock, par value \$0.01 per share (the "Schlumberger Common Stock");

WHEREAS, in furtherance thereof, the respective Boards of Directors of Smith, Schlumberger and Merger Sub have approved and declared advisable (1) this Agreement and (2) the merger of Merger Sub with and into Smith (the "Merger") in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Delaware General Corporation Law (the "DGCL") and upon the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, Schlumberger and Smith intend that, for United States federal income tax purposes, the Merger shall qualify (i) as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), and (ii) for an exception to the general rule of Section 367(a)(1) of the Code;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and their respective representations, warranties, covenants and agreements set forth in this Agreement, the parties agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1

THE MERGER

Section 1.1 *The Merger*. Upon the terms and subject to conditions of this Agreement, at the Effective Time, Merger Sub shall be merged with and into Smith in accordance with this Agreement, and the separate corporate existence of Merger Sub shall thereupon cease. Smith shall be the surviving entity in the Merger (the "Surviving Entity"). The Merger shall have the effects specified herein and in the DGCL.

Section 1.2 *The Closing*. Upon the terms and subject to the conditions of this Agreement, the closing of the Merger (the "Closing") shall take place (a) at the offices of Baker Botts L.L.P., One Shell Plaza, 910 Louisiana Street, Houston, Texas 77002, at 9:00 a.m., local time, on the first business day or, if Schlumberger so elects, on the third business day, in each case immediately following the day on which the last to be fulfilled or waived of the conditions set forth in Article 8 (other than those conditions that by their nature are to be fulfilled at the Closing, but subject to fulfillment or waiver of such conditions) shall be fulfilled or waived in

accordance with this Agreement or (b) at such other time, date or place as Schlumberger and Smith may agree. The date on which the Closing occurs is hereinafter referred to as the "Closing Date."

Section 1.3 *Effective Time*. On the Closing Date, Schlumberger, Merger Sub and Smith shall cause a certificate of merger (the "Certificate of Merger") meeting the requirements of Section 251 of the DGCL to be properly executed and filed in accordance with such sections. The Merger shall become effective at such time as the Certificate of Merger is duly filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware in accordance with the DGCL, or at such later time that Schlumberger and Smith shall have agreed upon and designated in such filing as the effective time of the Merger (the "Effective Time").

ARTICLE 2

GOVERNING DOCUMENTS

Section 2.1 *Certificate of Incorporation*. As of the Effective Time, the certificate of incorporation of Smith shall be amended as set forth in Exhibit A and, as so amended, shall be the certificate of incorporation of the Surviving Entity, until thereafter duly amended as provided therein or by Applicable Law.

Section 2.2 *Bylaws*. As of the Effective Time, the bylaws of Smith, as in effect immediately prior to the Effective Time, shall be the bylaws of the Surviving Entity, until thereafter duly amended as provided therein or by Applicable Law.

ARTICLE 3

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

Section 3.1 *Board of Directors*. The directors of Merger Sub immediately prior to the Effective Time shall, from and after the Effective Time, be the directors of the Surviving Entity until their successors have been duly elected or appointed and qualified or until their earlier death, resignation or removal in accordance with the governing documents of the Surviving Entity.

Section 3.2 *Officers*. The officers of Merger Sub immediately prior to the Effective Time shall, from and after the Effective Time, be the officers of the Surviving Entity until their successors have been duly elected or appointed and qualified or until their earlier death, resignation or removal in accordance with the governing documents of the Surviving Entity.

ARTICLE 4

CONVERSION OF SMITH COMMON STOCK

Section 4.1 Conversion of Equity Interests of Smith and Merger Sub.

- (a) *Merger Consideration*. At the Effective Time, subject to the other provisions of this Agreement, each share of common stock, par value \$1.00 per share, of Smith ("Smith Common Stock") issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time (excluding any Smith Excluded Shares and Smith Surviving Shares) shall, by virtue of the Merger and without any action on the part of the holder thereof, be converted into and shall thereafter represent the right to receive 0.6966 shares (the "Exchange Ratio") of validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable shares of Schlumberger Common Stock, subject to adjustment in accordance with Section 4.3 (together with any cash in lieu of fractional shares of Schlumberger Common Stock to be paid pursuant to Section 4.2(e), the "Merger Consideration").
- (b) Cancellation of Shares (other than Smith Excluded Shares and Smith Surviving Shares). As a result of the Merger and without any action on the part of the holders thereof, at the Effective Time, all shares of Smith Common Stock (other than Smith Excluded Shares and any Smith Surviving Shares) shall cease to be outstanding and shall be canceled and retired and shall cease to exist, and each certificate that immediately prior to the Effective Time represented any shares of Smith Common Stock (other than Smith Excluded Shares and any Smith Surviving Shares) (the "Certificates") and each non-certificated share represented by book entry ("Book Entry Share") shall thereafter represent only the right to receive the Merger Consideration with respect to the shares of Smith Common Stock formerly represented thereby, and any dividends or other distributions to which the holders thereof are entitled pursuant to Section 4.2(c). For purposes of this Agreement, "Smith Excluded Shares" shall mean any shares of Smith Common Stock held by Schlumberger, Smith or any direct or indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Schlumberger, in each case except for any such shares held on behalf of third parties. "Smith Surviving Shares" shall mean any shares of Smith Common Stock held by any direct or indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Smith except for any such shares held on behalf of third parties.
- (c) Cancellation of Smith Excluded Shares. Each Smith Excluded Share at the Effective Time shall, by virtue of the Merger and without any action on the part of the holder thereof, cease to be outstanding and shall be canceled and retired without payment of any consideration therefor, and no Schlumberger Common Stock or other consideration shall be delivered in exchange therefor.
- (d) *Survival of Smith Surviving Shares*. Each Smith Surviving Share at the Effective Time shall remain outstanding and shall continue to exist as a share of common stock, par value \$1.00 per share, of the Surviving Entity ("Surviving Entity Common Stock") and shall not be canceled by virtue of the Merger and no Schlumberger Common Stock or other consideration shall be delivered in exchange therefor.
- (e) *Merger Sub*. At the Effective Time, the common stock of Merger Sub issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time shall, by virtue of the Merger and

without any action on the part of the holder thereof, be converted into and become a number of validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable shares of Surviving Entity Common Stock equal to the number of shares of Smith Common Stock converted into the Merger Consideration.

(f) Smith Stock Options. At the Effective Time, all options to acquire shares of Smith Common Stock outstanding at the Effective Time under Smith's stock plans (collectively, the "Smith Stock Plans", which are identified in Section 4.1(f) of the Smith Disclosure Letter), including all options to acquire shares of Smith Common Stock issued after the date hereof in accordance with Section 7.1(b)(iv) (each, a "Smith Post-Signing Option", and together with any other option to acquire shares of Smith Common Stock, each a "Smith Option"), shall be converted automatically into an option (a "Schlumberger Option") to acquire shares of Schlumberger Common Stock in amounts and at an exercise price determined as provided in this Section 4.1(f) (and otherwise subject to the terms of the Smith Stock Plans, as applicable, under which they were issued and the agreements evidencing grants thereunder): (i) the number of shares of Schlumberger Common Stock to be subject to a Schlumberger Option shall be equal to the product of the number of shares of Smith Common Stock subject to the Smith Option immediately prior to the Effective Time and the Exchange Ratio, provided that any fractional shares of Schlumberger Common Stock under a Schlumberger Option shall be equal to the exercise price per share of Smith Option immediately prior to the Effective Time divided by the Exchange Ratio, provided that such exercise price shall be rounded up to the nearest whole cent. The duration and other terms of a Schlumberger Option shall be the same as the original Smith Option from which it was converted except that all references to "Smith" in such original Smith Option shall be deemed to be references to Schlumberger; provided, however, that all such Schlumberger Options, other than those issued in respect of Smith Post-Signing Options, will be fully vested and exercisable as of the Effective Time.

(g) Smith Stock Incentive Awards. At the Effective Time, each restricted stock unit and performance-based restricted stock unit award (collectively, the "Smith Stock Incentive Awards") that is outstanding under any Smith Stock Plan immediately prior to the Effective Time, whether or not then vested or earned, other than Smith Stock Incentive Awards granted after the date hereof pursuant to Section 7.1(b)(iv) ("Smith Post-Signing Stock Incentive Awards"), shall, by virtue of the Merger and without any action on the part of the holder thereof, be cancelled and converted into the right to receive Merger Consideration based on the total number of shares of Smith Common Stock subject to such Smith Stock Incentive Award immediately prior to the Effective Time. If the Smith Stock Incentive Award shall be calculated based on deemed attainment of the performance goals under the award immediately prior to the Effective Time assuming that the number of shares of Smith Common Stock subject to each such Smith Stock Incentive Award is that number of shares corresponding to 100% of the "Target Units" (as defined in the applicable agreement representing such Smith Stock Incentive Awards). Smith shall make arrangements reasonably satisfactory to Schlumberger to satisfy all employment and income tax withholding requirements with respect to each Smith Stock Incentive Award that vests pursuant to this Section 4.1(g). Any Smith Post-Signing Stock Incentive Awards shall be converted automatically into a stock unit award (a "Schlumberger Stock Incentive Award")

with respect to Schlumberger Common Stock in an amount equal to the product of the number of shares of Smith Common Stock subject to the Smith Post-Signing Stock Incentive Award immediately prior to the Effective Time and the Exchange Ratio, *provided* that any fractional shares of Schlumberger Common Stock resulting from such multiplication shall be rounded to the nearest whole share. The Schlumberger Stock Incentive Awards will be otherwise subject to the terms of the Smith Stock Plans, as applicable, under which they were issued and the agreements evidencing grants thereunder without any acceleration of vesting or delivery, except that all references to "Smith" in such original Smith Stock Incentive Award shall be deemed to be references to Schlumberger.

Section 4.2 Exchange of Shares.

- (a) Exchange Fund. As of the Effective Time, Schlumberger shall appoint a commercial bank or trust company or such other party as is reasonably satisfactory to Smith to act as exchange agent hereunder for the purpose of exchanging Certificates and Book Entry Shares for the Merger Consideration (the "Exchange Agent"). Schlumberger shall deposit with the Exchange Agent, in trust for the benefit of holders of shares of Smith Common Stock, the number of shares of Schlumberger Common Stock that are issuable pursuant to Section 4.1. Schlumberger shall deposit such shares of Schlumberger Common Stock with the Exchange Agent by delivering to the Exchange Agent certificates representing, or providing to the Exchange Agent an uncertificated book-entry for, such shares. In addition, Schlumberger shall make available to the Exchange Agent from time to time as needed, cash sufficient to make payments in lieu of fractional shares pursuant to Section 4.2(e) and any dividends and other distributions pursuant to Section 4.2(c). Any cash and shares of Schlumberger Common Stock deposited by Schlumberger with the Exchange Agent shall hereinafter be referred to as the "Exchange Fund."
- (b) Exchange Rules. Promptly after the Effective Time, Schlumberger shall cause the Exchange Agent to mail to each holder of record of one or more shares of Smith Common Stock as of the Effective Time: (i) a letter of transmittal (the "Letter of Transmittal"), which shall specify that delivery shall be effected, and risk of loss and title to the shares of Smith Common Stock shall pass, only upon delivery of the corresponding Certificates to the Exchange Agent or receipt by the Exchange Agent of an "agent's message" with respect to Book Entry Shares, which letter shall be in customary form and have such other provisions as Schlumberger may reasonably specify, and (ii) instructions for effecting the surrender of such Certificates or Book Entry Shares in exchange for the Merger Consideration. Each holder of shares of Smith Common Stock that have been converted into a right to receive the Merger Consideration, upon surrender of a Certificate or Book Entry Shares to the Exchange Agent together with such Letter of Transmittal, duly executed and completed in accordance with the instructions thereto, and such other documents as may reasonably be required by the Exchange Agent, will be entitled to receive in exchange therefor (i) one or more shares of Schlumberger Common Stock which shall be in uncertificated book-entry form unless a physical certificate is requested and which shall represent, in the aggregate, the whole number of shares that such holder has the right to receive pursuant to Section 4.1(a) (after taking into account all shares of Smith Common Stock then held by such holder) and (ii) a check in the amount equal to any cash that such holder has the right to receive pursuant to this Article 4, consisting of cash in lieu of any fractional shares of Schlumberger Common Stock pursuant to Section 4.2(e) and any dividends and other

distributions pursuant to Section 4.2(c). No interest will be paid or will accrue on any cash payable pursuant to Section 4.2(c) or Section 4.2(e). In the event of a transfer of ownership of Smith Common Stock that is not registered in the transfer records of Smith, one or more shares of Schlumberger Common Stock evidencing, in the aggregate, the proper number of shares of Schlumberger Common Stock and a check in the proper amount of any cash in lieu of any fractional shares of Schlumberger Common Stock pursuant to Section 4.2(e) and any dividends or other distributions to which such holder is entitled pursuant to Section 4.2(c), may be issued with respect to such Smith Common Stock, as the case may be, to such a transferee if the Certificate representing such shares of Smith Common Stock is presented to the Exchange Agent, accompanied by all documents required to evidence and effect such transfer and to evidence that any applicable stock transfer Taxes have been paid.

- (c) Distributions with Respect to Unexchanged Shares. All shares of Schlumberger Common Stock to be issued pursuant to the Merger shall be deemed issued and outstanding as of the Effective Time. No dividends or other distributions declared or made in respect of Schlumberger Common Stock shall be paid to the holder of any shares of Smith Common Stock until the holder of such shares shall surrender such shares in accordance with this Article 4. Subject to Applicable Law, following surrender of any such shares, there shall be issued and/or paid to the holder of the certificates representing whole shares of Schlumberger Common Stock issued in exchange therefor, without interest, (i) at the time of such surrender, the dividends or other distributions payable in respect of such shares of Schlumberger Common Stock with a record date after the Effective Time and a payment date on or prior to the date of such shares of Schlumberger Common Stock with a record date after the Effective Time but on or prior to the date of such surrender and with a payment date subsequent to such surrender.
- (d) No Further Ownership Rights in Smith Common Stock. All shares of Schlumberger Common Stock issued and cash paid upon conversion of shares of Smith Common Stock in accordance with the terms of this Article 4 (consisting of any cash paid pursuant to Section 4.2(c) or Section 4.2(e)) shall be deemed to have been issued or paid in full satisfaction of all rights pertaining to the shares of Smith Common Stock previously represented by such Certificates and/or Book Entry Shares.
 - (e) No Fractional Shares of Schlumberger Common Stock.
 - (i) No certificates or scrip or shares of Schlumberger Common Stock representing fractional shares of Schlumberger Common Stock or book-entry credit of the same shall be issued upon the surrender for exchange of Certificates and such fractional share interests will not entitle the owner thereof to vote or to have any rights of a stockholder of Schlumberger.
 - (ii) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, each holder of shares of Smith Common Stock exchanged pursuant to the Merger who would otherwise have been entitled to receive a fractional share of Schlumberger Common Stock (after taking into account all Certificates and/or Book Entry Shares held by such holder) shall receive, in lieu thereof, cash (without interest) in

an amount equal to the product of (A) such fractional part of a share of Schlumberger Common Stock multiplied by (B) the closing price for a share of Schlumberger Common Stock on the NYSE Composite Transactions Tape on the business day immediately preceding the Closing Date.

- (iii) As promptly as practicable after the determination of the amount of cash, if any, to be paid to holders of fractional interests, the Exchange Agent shall so notify Schlumberger, and Schlumberger shall deposit or cause the Surviving Entity to deposit such amount with the Exchange Agent and shall cause the Exchange Agent to forward payments to such holders of fractional interests subject to and in accordance with the terms hereof.
- (f) *Termination of Exchange Fund*. Any portion of the Exchange Fund that remains undistributed to the holders of Certificates and/or Book Entry Shares as of the date six months after the Effective Time shall be delivered to Schlumberger or otherwise on the instruction of Schlumberger, and any holders of the Certificates and/or Book Entry Shares who have not theretofore complied with this Article 4 shall thereafter look only to Schlumberger for the Merger Consideration with respect to the shares of Smith Common Stock formerly represented thereby to which such holders are entitled pursuant to Section 4.2(e) and any dividends or distributions with respect to shares of Schlumberger Common Stock to which such holders are entitled pursuant to Section 4.2(e). Any such portion of the Exchange Fund remaining unclaimed by holders of shares of Smith Common Stock five years after the Effective Time (or such earlier date immediately prior to such time as such amounts would otherwise escheat to or become property of any Governmental Entity) shall, to the extent permitted by Applicable Law, become the property of Schlumberger free and clear of any claims or interest of any person previously entitled thereto.
- (g) *No Liability*. None of Schlumberger, Merger Sub, Smith, the Surviving Entity, any affiliate of any of the foregoing or the Exchange Agent shall be liable to any person in respect of any Merger Consideration from the Exchange Fund delivered to a public official or Governmental Entity pursuant to any applicable abandoned property, escheat or similar law.
- (h) *Investment of the Exchange Fund*. The Exchange Agent shall invest any cash included in the Exchange Fund as directed by Schlumberger on a daily basis; *provided* that no such gain or loss thereon shall affect the amounts payable to the stockholders of Smith pursuant to this Article 4 and that if at any time prior to the termination of the Exchange Fund pursuant to Section 4.2(f), the amount of cash included in the Exchange Fund is reduced below the amount necessary to pay any cash in lieu of fractional shares of Schlumberger Common Stock payable pursuant to Section 4.2(e), and dividends and distributions payable pursuant to Section 4.2(c), Schlumberger shall promptly deposit additional cash into the Exchange Fund sufficient to rectify this deficiency. Any interest and other income resulting from such investments shall be paid promptly to Schlumberger.
- (i) Lost Certificates. If any Certificate shall have been lost, stolen or destroyed, upon the making of an affidavit of that fact by the person claiming such Certificate to be lost, stolen or destroyed and, if reasonably required by Schlumberger, the posting by such

person of a bond in such reasonable amount as Schlumberger may direct as indemnity against any claim that may be made against it with respect to such Certificate, the Exchange Agent shall deliver in exchange for such lost, stolen or destroyed Certificate the applicable Merger Consideration, any cash in lieu of fractional shares of Schlumberger Common Stock to which the holder is entitled pursuant to Section 4.2(e) and any dividends and distributions with respect to shares of Schlumberger Common Stock to which the holder is entitled pursuant to Section 4.2(c), in each case with respect to the shares of Smith Common Stock formerly represented by such lost, stolen or destroyed Certificate.

- (j) Withholding Rights. Each of the Exchange Agent, Schlumberger and the Surviving Entity shall be entitled, without duplication, to deduct and withhold from the consideration otherwise payable pursuant to this Agreement to any holder of shares of Smith Common Stock or any other equity rights in Smith such amounts as it is required to deduct and withhold with respect to the making of such payment under the Code and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, or any provision of Applicable Law and shall further be entitled to sell Schlumberger Common Stock otherwise payable pursuant to this Agreement to satisfy any such withholding requirement (which Schlumberger Common Stock will be valued with respect to such withholding at the average of the high and low trading prices of Schlumberger Common Stock on the NYSE Composite Transactions Tape on the day of such sale). To the extent that amounts are so withheld by the Exchange Agent, Schlumberger or the Surviving Entity, as the case may be, and paid over to the applicable Governmental Entity, such withheld amounts shall be treated for all purposes of this Agreement as having been paid to the person in respect of which such deduction and withholding was made.
- (k) Further Assurances. After the Effective Time, the officers and directors of the Surviving Entity will be authorized to execute and deliver, in the name and on behalf of Smith, any deeds, bills of sale, assignments or assurances and to take and do, in the name and on behalf of Smith, any other actions and things to vest, perfect or confirm of record or otherwise in the Surviving Entity any and all right, title and interest in, to and under any of the rights, properties or assets acquired or to be acquired by the Surviving Entity as a result of, or in connection with, the Merger.
- (l) Stock Transfer Books. The stock transfer books of Smith shall be closed immediately upon the Effective Time and there shall be no further registration of transfers of shares of Smith Common Stock thereafter on the records of Smith. At or after the Effective Time, any Certificates or Book Entry Shares presented to the Exchange Agent or Schlumberger for any reason shall represent the right to receive the Merger Consideration with respect to the shares of Smith Common Stock formerly represented thereby (including any cash in lieu of fractional shares of Schlumberger Common Stock to which the holders thereof are entitled to pursuant to Section 4.2(e)) and any dividends or other distributions to which the holders thereof are entitled pursuant to Section 4.2(c).

Section 4.3 *Certain Adjustments*. If, subsequent to the date of this Agreement but prior to the Effective Time, the outstanding Schlumberger Common Stock or Smith Common Stock shall have been changed by reason of any reclassification, recapitalization, stock split, split-up, combination or exchange of shares, or a stock dividend or dividend payable in any other securities shall be declared with a record date within such period, or any similar event shall have

occurred, the Exchange Ratio, the Merger Consideration and any other similarly dependent items, as the case may be, shall be appropriately adjusted to provide to the holders of Smith Common Stock consideration having the same economic effect as was contemplated by this Agreement prior to such event.

Section 4.4 Associated Rights. References in Article 4 of this Agreement to Smith Common Stock shall include, unless the context requires otherwise, the associated rights (the "Smith Rights") distributed to the holders of Smith Common Stock pursuant to the Rights Agreement, dated as of June 8, 2000, between Smith and EquiServe Trust Company, N.A. (successor to First Chicago Trust Company of New York), as rights agent, as amended to date (the "Rights Agreement").

ARTICLE 5

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF SMITH

Except (i) as set forth in the disclosure letter delivered to Schlumberger by Smith at or prior to the execution hereof (the "Smith Disclosure Letter") and making reference to the particular subsection of this Agreement to which exception is being taken, subject to Section 10.10, (ii) as disclosed in the Smith Reports filed after December 31, 2008 and prior to the date hereof (excluding any disclosures in such Smith Reports in any risk factors section, in any section related to forward looking statements and other disclosures that are predictive or forward-looking in nature), or (iii) with respect to any Smith Subsidiaries, assets, liabilities, businesses, operations, or results of operations of the MI SWACO division of Smith (the "Joint Venture"), to the extent actually known to the Schlumberger representatives on the governing board of the Joint Venture, Smith represents and warrants to Schlumberger that:

Section 5.1 *Organization; Good Standing and Qualification*. Each of Smith and its Subsidiaries is a legal entity duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of its respective jurisdiction of organization and has all requisite corporate or similar power and authority to own, operate and lease its properties and assets and to carry on its business as now conducted. Each of Smith and its Subsidiaries is duly qualified to do business and is in good standing under the laws of any jurisdiction in which the character of the properties owned or leased by it therein or in which the transaction of its business makes such qualification necessary, except where the failure to be so qualified has not had and would not reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Smith Material Adverse Effect. Smith has made available to Schlumberger true and correct copies of Smith's certificate of incorporation and bylaws, each as amended to date, and each as so delivered is in full force and effect.

Section 5.2 Authorization, Validity, Enforceability and Fairness.

(a) Smith has all requisite corporate power and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement and all other agreements and documents contemplated hereby to which it is a party and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby, subject in the case of the consummation of the Merger to the Smith Stockholder Approval. The execution and delivery of this Agreement and the consummation by Smith of the transactions contemplated hereby have been duly authorized by all requisite corporate action on behalf of Smith, other than

the Smith Stockholder Approval and the filing of the Certificate of Merger. This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by Smith and constitutes the valid and legally binding obligation of Smith, enforceable against Smith in accordance with its terms.

(b) The Board of Directors of Smith (the "Smith Board"), at a meeting duly called and held on or prior to the date hereof, has (i) determined that this Agreement and the Merger are advisable, (ii) approved and adopted this Agreement and the Merger, (iii) received the opinion of its financial advisor, UBS Securities LLC, to the effect that the Exchange Ratio is fair from a financial point of view to the holders of Smith Common Stock (a copy of which opinion will be provided to Schlumberger), (iv) resolved to recommend the approval and adoption of this Agreement and the Merger to the holders of Smith Common Stock (such recommendations being the "Smith Recommendation"), subject to Section 7.3(b) and Section 7.3(d), and (v) directed that this Agreement be submitted to the holders of Smith Common Stock for their adoption.

Section 5.3 Capitalization

(a) The authorized capital stock of Smith consists of 500,000,000 shares of Smith Common Stock and 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value \$1.00 per share ("Smith Preferred Stock"), of which 650,000 shares have been designated Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock and reserved for issuance upon exercise of Smith Rights distributed to the holders of Smith Common Stock pursuant to the Rights Agreement. As of February 19, 2010, there were (i) 248,401,593 outstanding shares of Smith Common Stock and 17,954,481 shares of Smith Common Stock held in the treasury of Smith, (ii) 1,055,560 shares of Smith Common Stock reserved for issuance upon exercise of outstanding Smith Options, (iii) 4,010,293 shares of Smith Common Stock reserved for issuance under outstanding Smith Stock Incentive Awards, (iv) no issued or outstanding shares of restricted Smith Common Stock the restrictions on which have not previously lapsed and (v) no issued or outstanding shares of Smith Preferred Stock. All of the issued and outstanding shares of Smith Common Stock have been duly authorized and validly issued and are fully paid and nonassessable. Except as set forth in this Section 5.3 and except for changes since the close of business on February 19, 2010 resulting from the exercise of employee stock options or settlement of Smith Stock Incentive Awards outstanding on such date or other securities issued as permitted by Section 7.1, there are outstanding (A) no shares of capital stock or other voting securities of Smith, (B) no Smith Options and (C) except for the Smith Rights, (1) no options, warrants or other rights to acquire from Smith any capital stock, voting securities or other ownership interests in, or any securities convertible into or exchangeable for capital stock, voting securities or ownership interests in, Smith and (2) no preemptive or similar rights, subscription or other rights, convertible securities, agreements, arrangements or commitments of any character, relating to the capital stock of Smith, obligating Smith to issue, transfer or sell any capital stock, voting securities or other ownership interests in, or any securities convertible into or exchangeable for capital stock, voting securities or other ownership interests in, Smith or obligating Smith to grant, extend or enter into any such option, warrant, subscription or other right, convertible security, agreement, arrangement or commitment (the items in the foregoing subclauses (A), (B) and (C) being referred to collectively as "Smith Securities"). Except as required by the terms of any Smith Options outstanding as of the date hereof or issued as permitted by Section 7.1, there are no

outstanding obligations of Smith or any of its Subsidiaries to repurchase, redeem or otherwise acquire any Smith Securities.

- (b) Except for directors' qualifying shares, all of the outstanding capital stock of, or other ownership interests in, each Subsidiary of Smith have been validly issued and are fully paid and nonassessable and are owned by Smith, directly or indirectly, free and clear of all mortgages, deeds of trust, liens, security interests, pledges, leases, conditional sales contracts, charges, privileges, easements, rights of way, reservations, options, rights of first refusal and other encumbrances (collectively, "Liens") (including any restriction on the right to vote, sell or otherwise dispose of such capital stock or other ownership interests). There are outstanding (i) no securities of Smith or any of its Subsidiaries convertible into or exchangeable for shares of capital stock or other voting securities or ownership interests in any Subsidiary of Smith, (ii) no options, warrants or other rights to acquire from Smith or any of its Subsidiaries any capital stock, voting securities or other ownership interests in, or any securities convertible into or exchangeable for any capital stock, voting securities or ownership interests in, any Subsidiary of Smith and (iii) except as provided by Applicable Law, no preemptive or similar rights, subscription or other rights, convertible securities, agreements, arrangements or commitments of any character, relating to the capital stock of any Subsidiary of Smith, obligating Smith or any of its Subsidiaries to issue, transfer or sell, any capital stock, voting securities or other ownership interests in, or any securities convertible into or exchangeable for any capital stock, voting securities or ownership interests in, any Subsidiary of Smith or any Subsidiary of Smith to grant, extend or enter into any such option, warrant, subscription or other right, convertible security, agreement, arrangement or commitment (the items in the foregoing subclauses (i), (ii) and (iii) being referred to collectively as "Smith Subsidiary Securities"). There are no outstanding obligations of Smith or
- (c) Except for the capital stock or other voting securities or ownership interests in any Subsidiary of Smith, neither Smith nor any of its Subsidiaries owns, directly or indirectly, any capital stock or other voting securities or ownership interests in, or any securities convertible into or exchangeable for any capital stock, voting securities or ownership interests in, any person which is material to Smith and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole.
 - (d) No Subsidiary of Smith owns any shares of Smith Common Stock.
- Section 5.4 *Compliance with Laws; Permits.* Except for such matters as, individually or in the aggregate, have not had and would not reasonably be expected to have a Smith Material Adverse Effect:
 - (a) Neither Smith nor any of its Subsidiaries is in violation of any law, rule, regulation, directive, ordinance, code, governmental determination, guideline, order, treaty, convention, governmental certification requirement or other legally enforceable requirement, U.S. or non-U.S., of any Governmental Entity (collectively, "Applicable Laws"), and no claim is pending or, to the knowledge of Smith, threatened with respect to any such matters.

- (b) Smith and each Subsidiary of Smith hold all permits, licenses, certifications, variations, exemptions, orders, franchises and approvals of all Governmental Entities necessary for the conduct of their respective businesses (the "Smith Permits"). All Smith Permits are in full force and effect and there exists no default thereunder or breach thereof, and Smith has no notice or knowledge that such Smith Permits will not be renewed in the ordinary course after the Effective Time. No Governmental Entity has given, or to the knowledge of Smith, threatened to give, any action to terminate, cancel or reform any Smith Permit.
- (c) Smith and each Subsidiary of Smith possess all permits, licenses, operating authorities, orders, exemptions, franchises, variances, consents, approvals or other authorizations required for the present ownership and operation of all its and its Subsidiaries' assets. There exists no default or breach with respect to, and no person or Governmental Entity has taken or, to the knowledge of Smith, threatened to take, any action to terminate, cancel or reform any such permit, license, operating authority, order, exemption, franchise, variance, consent, approval or other authorization.

This section does not relate to Tax matters, employee benefits matters, labor matters, environmental matters, intellectual property matters, export control or trade matters, or the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, which are the subjects of Sections 5.10, 5.11, 5.12, 5.14, 5.15, 5.22 and 5.23, respectively.

Section 5.5 No Conflict.

- (a) The execution, delivery and performance by Smith of this Agreement do not, and the consummation by Smith of the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement in accordance with the terms hereof will not, (i) subject to receipt of the Smith Stockholder Approval, conflict with or result in a breach of any provisions of the certificate of incorporation or bylaws of Smith, (ii) violate, or conflict with, or result in a breach of any provision of, or constitute a default (or an event which, with notice or lapse of time or both, would constitute a default) under, or result in the suspension, termination or cancellation, or in a right of suspension, termination or cancellation of, or give rise to a right of purchase or a right of additional payment under, or accelerate the performance required by, or result in the creation of any Lien upon any of the properties or assets of Smith or its Subsidiaries under, or result in being declared void, voidable, or without further binding effect, or otherwise result in a detriment to Smith or any of its Subsidiaries under, any of the terms, conditions or provisions of, any loan or credit agreement, note, bond, mortgage, indenture, deed of trust, license, concession, franchise, permit, lease, contract, agreement, joint venture or other instrument or obligation to which Smith or any of its Subsidiaries is a party, or by which Smith or any of its Subsidiaries or any of their properties or assets is bound or affected, or (iii) subject to the filings and other matters referred to in Section 5.5(b), contravene or conflict with or constitute a violation of any provision of any Applicable Law, except, in the case of matters described in clause (ii) or (iii), as have not had and would not reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Smith Material Adverse Effect.
- (b) Other than those required under or in relation to (i) the DGCL with respect to the filing of the Certificate of Merger, (ii) rules and regulations of the New York Stock

Exchange, Inc. (the "NYSE"), (iii) the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, as amended (the "HSR Act"), Council Regulation (EC) No. 139/2004 of 20 January 2004 on the control of concentrations between undertakings (published in the Official Journal of the European Union on January 29, 2004 at L 24/1) (the "EC Merger Regulation") and such applicable competition, antitrust or premerger notification laws of the other jurisdictions set forth in Section 5.5 of the Smith Disclosure Letter, (iv) the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), (v) the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), (vi) state securities or "Blue Sky" laws and (vii) other Governmental Entities having jurisdiction over the Merger set forth in Section 5.5 of the Smith Disclosure Letter ((i) through (vii) collectively, the "Smith Approvals"), neither the execution, delivery or performance by Smith of this Agreement, nor the consummation by Smith of the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement in accordance with the terms hereof will require any consent, approval, qualification or authorization of, or filing or registration with, any Governmental Entity, except for any consent, approval, qualification or authorization the failure of which to obtain and for any filing or registration the failure of which to make has not had and would not reasonably be expected to have a Smith Material Adverse Effect.

Section 5.6 SEC Documents; Financial Statements.

- (a) Smith has filed or furnished all registration statements, prospectuses, reports, schedules, forms, statements and other documents (including exhibits and any amendments thereto) required to be so filed or furnished by it with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") since January 1, 2006 (collectively, the "Smith Reports") and has made available to Schlumberger each such document it has so filed or furnished, in the form filed with or furnished to the SEC. Smith has made available to Schlumberger copies of all material comment letters from the SEC and Smith's responses thereto since January 1, 2006 through the date hereof. As of the date of this Agreement, there are no outstanding or unresolved comments received from the SEC staff with respect to the Smith Reports. No Subsidiary of Smith is required to file any registration statement, prospectus, report, schedule, form, statement or any other document with the SEC. No Subsidiary of Smith is, or since January 1, 2006 has been, subject to any requirement to file periodic reports under the Exchange Act. As of their respective dates (or, if amended, as of the date of such amendment), the Smith Reports complied in all material respects with applicable accounting standards. As of their respective dates (or, if amended, as of the date of such amendment), the Smith Reports did not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements made therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.
- (b) Each of the consolidated balance sheets included in or incorporated by reference into the Smith Reports (including the related notes and schedules) fairly presents, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Smith and its Subsidiaries as of its date, and each of the consolidated statements of operations, cash flows and changes in stockholders' equity included in or incorporated by reference into the Smith Reports (including any related notes and schedules) fairly presents, in all material respects, the results of operations, cash flows or changes in stockholders' equity, as the case may be, of Smith and its Subsidiaries for the periods set forth therein (subject, in the case of unaudited statements, to (i) such exceptions as

may be permitted by Form 10-Q of the SEC and (ii) normal year-end audit adjustments which have not been and are not expected to be material), in each case in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") consistently applied during the periods involved, except as may be noted therein.

- (c) There are no liabilities or obligations of Smith or any of its Subsidiaries (whether accrued, absolute, contingent or otherwise and whether or not required to be disclosed) that would be required to be reflected on, or reserved against in, a balance sheet of Smith or in the notes thereto prepared in accordance with GAAP, other than liabilities or obligations to the extent (i) (A) reflected or reserved against on the consolidated balance sheet of Smith or (B) readily apparent in the notes thereto, in each case included in Smith's annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008 or Smith's quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2009, (ii) liabilities or obligations incurred in the ordinary course of business since September 30, 2009 or (iii) liabilities or obligations which have not had and would not reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Smith Material Adverse Effect.
- (d) As of February 19, 2010, there was no outstanding indebtedness for borrowed money of Smith or any of its Subsidiaries, other than indebtedness in the amounts identified by instrument in Section 5.6 of the Smith Disclosure Letter, and excluding inter-company indebtedness among Smith and its wholly-owned Subsidiaries.

Section 5.7 Controls and Procedures.

- (a) Since the enactment of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the "Sarbanes-Oxley Act"), Smith has been and is in compliance in all material respects with (i) the applicable provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and (ii) the applicable listing and corporate governance rules and regulations of the NYSE.
- (b) Each of the principal executive officer and the principal financial officer of Smith (or each former principal executive officer and former principal financial officer of Smith, as applicable) has made all certifications required under Sections 302 and 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and the related rules and regulations promulgated thereunder and under the Exchange Act with respect to the Smith Reports. For purposes of the preceding sentence, "principal executive officer" and "principal financial officer" shall have the meanings given to such terms in the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.
- (c) Smith has (i) designed and maintained disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as required by Rule 13a-15 under the Exchange Act, and (ii) disclosed, based on its most recent evaluation and knowledge, to its auditors and the audit committee of the Smith Board (A) any significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls over financial reporting which could adversely affect its ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and (B) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in its internal controls over financial reporting.

- (d) Smith has designed and maintains a system of internal controls over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) as required by Rule 13a-15 under the Exchange Act. Smith's management, with the participation of Smith's principal executive and financial officers, has completed an assessment of the effectiveness of Smith's internal controls over financial reporting in compliance with the requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act for the year ended December 31, 2008, and such assessment concluded that such internal controls were effective using the framework specified in Smith's annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008. To the knowledge of Smith, there is no reason to believe that its auditors and its principal executive officer and principal financial officer will not be able to give the certifications and attestations required pursuant to the rules and regulations adopted pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, without qualification, when next due.
- (e) No personal loan or other extension of credit by Smith to any of its or their executive officers or directors has been made or modified (other than as permitted by Section 13 of the Exchange Act and Section 402 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act) since July 30, 2002.

Section 5.8 *Litigation*. There are no (a) civil, criminal or administrative actions, suits, claims, hearings, arbitrations, investigations or proceedings pending or, to the knowledge of Smith, threatened against Smith or any of its Subsidiaries or their respective assets, or any director, officer or employee of Smith or any of its Subsidiaries or other affiliates, in each case, for whom Smith or any of its Subsidiaries may be liable, or (b) litigations, arbitrations, investigations or other proceedings, or injunctions or final judgments relating thereto, pending or, to the knowledge of Smith, threatened before any Governmental Entity or arbitrator against Smith or any of its Subsidiaries or their respective assets, or any director, officer or employee of Smith or any of its Subsidiaries or other affiliates, in each case, for whom Smith or any of its Subsidiaries may be liable, except in the case of either clause (a) or (b), for those that would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to result in a Smith Material Adverse Effect. None of Smith or any of its Subsidiaries or their respective assets, or any director, officer or employee of Smith or any of its Subsidiaries or other affiliates, in each case, for whom Smith or any of its Subsidiaries may be liable, is a party to or subject to the provisions of any judgment, order, writ, injunction, decree or award of any Governmental Entity which would, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to result in a Smith Material Adverse Effect. This section does not relate to Tax matters, employee benefits matters, labor matters, environmental matters, intellectual property matters, export control or trade matters, or the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, which are the subjects of Sections 5.10, 5.11, 5.12, 5.14, 5.15, 5.22 and 5.23, respectively.

Section 5.9 *Absence of Certain Changes*. Since December 31, 2008, there has not been any Smith Material Adverse Effect or any event, occurrence, change, discovery or development of a state of circumstances or facts which would, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to result in a Smith Material Adverse Effect. Since December 31, 2008 and prior to the execution and delivery hereof, there has not been:

(a) any recapitalization of Smith or any merger or consolidation of Smith or any of its Subsidiaries with any other person (except for any such transactions among

wholly owned Subsidiaries of Smith that are not obligors or guarantors of third-party indebtedness);

- (b) any acquisition of any business from any other person having a value in excess of \$20 million;
- (c) any creation or incurrence of any Liens on any assets used in the businesses of Smith and its Subsidiaries having an aggregate value in excess of \$20 million;
- (d) any making of any loan, advance or capital contribution to, or investment in, any person other than (i) loans, advances or capital contributions to, or investments in, wholly owned Subsidiaries of Smith and (ii) loans, advances or capital contributions to, or investments in, any other person in an amount not in excess of \$20 million in the aggregate;
- (e) any declaration, setting aside or payment of any dividend or distribution (whether in cash, stock, property or any combination thereof) with respect to any shares of capital stock of Smith or any of its Subsidiaries (except for Smith's regular quarterly cash dividend and dividends or distributions by any direct or indirect wholly owned Subsidiary of Smith to Smith or any wholly owned Subsidiary of Smith, and except for dividends or distributions by other Subsidiaries of Smith for which the portion of such dividends or distributions not payable to a direct or indirect wholly owned Subsidiary of Smith did not exceed \$5 million in value in the aggregate for all such dividends and distributions), or any purchase, repurchase, redemption or other acquisition by Smith or any of its Subsidiaries, directly or indirectly, of any outstanding shares of capital stock or other securities of, or other ownership interests in, Smith or any of its Subsidiaries for consideration in excess of \$10 million;
 - (f) any issuance of shares of Smith Common Stock or other equity securities of Smith except pursuant to Smith Stock Plans;
- (g) any elections or changes thereto with respect to Taxes by Smith or any of its Subsidiaries or any settlement or compromise by Smith or any of its Subsidiaries of any Tax liability or refund, in each case, that would have, or reasonably be expected to have, an adverse effect on Smith and its Subsidiaries that is material;
- (h) any material change with respect to financial accounting policies, principles or procedures by Smith or any of its Subsidiaries, except for any such change required by changes in GAAP or by Applicable Law;
- (i) any sale, transfer, lease, license, mortgage, pledge or other disposition or encumbrance of any assets of Smith or its Subsidiaries, except for (i) obsolete assets, (ii) sales, transfers, leases, licenses, mortgages, pledges or other dispositions or encumbrances of assets in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice or for a purchase price not in excess of, or with a fair market value not in excess of, \$20 million in any single transaction or series of related transactions, (iii) sales, leases, licenses or other transfers between Smith and its wholly owned Subsidiaries or between

those Subsidiaries, or (iv) sales of inventory, products and services in the ordinary course of business; or

(j) any agreement to do any of the foregoing.

Section 5.10 Taxes.

- (a) Except as have not had and would not reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Smith Material Adverse Effect:
- (i) (A) all tax returns, statements, reports, declarations, estimates and forms required to be filed with respect to Taxes ("**Returns**") by or with respect to Smith or any of its Subsidiaries (including any Return required to be filed by an affiliated, consolidated, combined, unitary or similar group that includes Smith or any of its Subsidiaries) on or prior to the date hereof have been properly filed on a timely basis with the appropriate Governmental Entities, and (B) all Taxes required to be paid by Smith or any of its Subsidiaries have been duly paid, and all Taxes that Smith or any of its Subsidiaries are obligated to withhold from amounts payable to any employee, creditor, shareholder or other third party have been duly withheld and deposited, in each case in full and on a timely basis, except, in each case of clause (A) and (B), with respect to matters contested in good faith or adequately reserved for, in accordance with GAAP;
 - (ii) no audits or other administrative or court proceedings are pending with regard to any Taxes or Returns of Smith or any of its Subsidiaries;
- (iii) no Governmental Entity is asserting in writing any deficiency or claim for Taxes or any adjustment to Taxes of Smith or any of its Subsidiaries which have not been fully paid or finally settled or adequately reserved for, in accordance with GAAP;
- (iv) neither Smith nor any of its Subsidiaries has any liability for Taxes under Treasury Regulation § 1.1502-6 or any similar provision of state, local, or non-U.S. tax law, except for (A) Taxes of the affiliated group of which Smith or any of its Subsidiaries is or was the common parent, within the meaning of Section 1504(a)(1) of the Code or any similar provision of state, local, or non-U.S. tax law, and (B) Taxes imposed under non-U.S. tax law for which Smith or its Subsidiaries are entitled to indemnification from third parties;
- (v) neither Smith nor any of its Subsidiaries has granted any currently effective requests, agreements, consents or waivers to extend the statutory period of limitations applicable to the assessment of any Taxes with respect to any Returns of Smith or any of its Subsidiaries;
- (vi) neither Smith nor any of its Subsidiaries is a party to any closing agreement described in Section 7121 of the Code or any predecessor provision thereof or any similar agreement under state, local, or non-U.S. tax law that

affects any Tax liability with respect to the last three years, the current year or any future year;

- (vii) neither Smith nor any of its Subsidiaries is a party to, is bound by, or has any obligation under, any tax sharing, allocation or indemnity agreement or any similar agreement or arrangement;
 - (viii) neither Smith nor any of its Subsidiaries has participated in any "listed transaction," within the meaning of Treasury regulation §1.6011-4(b);
- (ix) neither Smith nor any of its Subsidiaries has been a "controlled corporation" or a "distributing corporation" in any distribution that was purported or intended to be governed by Section 355 of the Code occurring during the two-year period ending on the date hereof;
- (x) to Smith's knowledge, no claim has been made in the last three years by an authority in a jurisdiction where any of Smith or its Subsidiaries does not file Returns that Smith or any of its Subsidiaries is or may be subject to taxation in that jurisdiction; and
- (xi) no Subsidiary of Smith the fair market value of which represents more than five percent of the aggregate fair market value of the assets of Smith and its Subsidiaries is or has ever been a passive foreign investment company within the meaning of Section 1297 of the Code.
- (b) Without regard to whether it has had or would reasonably be expected to have a Smith Material Adverse Effect, Smith has not been a United States real property holding corporation within the meaning of Section 897(c)(2) of the Code at any time within the past five years.

Section 5.11 Employee Benefit Plans.

(a) Section 5.11(a) of the Smith Disclosure Letter contains a list of all Smith Benefit Plans that are subject to laws of the United States (each, a "Smith U.S. Benefit Plan" and collectively, the "Smith U.S. Benefit Plans"). Within twenty (20) business days after the date hereof, Smith will provide Schlumberger with a list of all Smith Benefit Plans that are not Smith U.S. Benefit Plans (each, a "Smith Foreign Benefit Plan" and collectively, the "Smith Foreign Benefit Plans"). The term "Smith Benefit Plans" means all material employee benefit plans and other material benefit arrangements, including all "employee benefit plans" as defined in Section 3(3) of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended ("ERISA"), whether or not U.S.-based plans, and all other material employee benefit, bonus, incentive, deferred compensation, stock option (or other equity-based), severance, employment, change in control, welfare (including post-retirement medical and life insurance) and fringe benefit plans, practices or agreements, whether or not subject to ERISA or U.S.-based and whether written or oral, sponsored, maintained or contributed to or required to be contributed to by Smith or any of its Subsidiaries, to which Smith or any of its Subsidiaries is a party or is required to provide benefits under Applicable Law. As of the date hereof, there is no unsatisfied liability associated with any terminated Smith Benefit Plan. A true and correct copy of each

Smith U.S. Benefit Plan has been made available to Schlumberger. Within twenty (20) business days after the date hereof, Smith will make available to Schlumberger a true and correct copy of each Smith Foreign Benefit Plan. With respect to each Smith U.S. Benefit Plan, Smith has made available to Schlumberger a true and correct copy of (i) the most recent annual report (Form 5500) filed with the applicable Governmental Entity (with respect to Smith U.S. Benefit Plans for which Form 5500's are filed), (ii) each such Smith U.S. Benefit Plan that has been reduced to writing and all amendments thereto, (iii) each trust agreement, insurance contract or administration agreement relating to each such Smith U.S. Benefit Plan, (iv) the most recent summary plan description or other written explanation of each Smith U.S. Benefit Plan provided to participants, (vi) the most recent actuarial report or valuation relating to a Smith U.S. Benefit Plan subject to Title IV of ERISA, (vii) the most recent determination letter or opinion letter, if any, issued by the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") with respect to any Smith U.S. Benefit Plan intended to be qualified under Section 401(a) of the Code, (viii) any request for a determination currently pending before the IRS, and (ix) all material correspondence with the IRS, the U.S. Department of Labor, or Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation relating to any outstanding controversy or with respect to any controversy that has been resolved in the previous three years.

- (b) With respect to each Smith U.S. Benefit Plan, except as have not had and would not reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Smith Material Adverse Effect:
 - (i) all applicable reporting and disclosure requirements have been met;
 - (ii) to the extent applicable, such Smith U.S. Benefit Plan complies and has complied with the requirements of ERISA, the Code, other Applicable Law and with the operative documents for each such plan;
 - (iii) any Smith U.S. Benefit Plan intended to be qualified under Section 401(a) of the Code has received a favorable determination letter from the IRS;
 - (iv) all Smith U.S. Benefit Plans have been maintained and operated in accordance with their terms, and, to the knowledge of Smith, there have been no breaches of fiduciary duty in connection with Smith Benefit Plans;
 - (v) there are no pending or, to the knowledge of Smith, threatened claims against or otherwise involving any Smith U.S. Benefit Plan, and no suit, action or other litigation (excluding claims for benefits incurred in the ordinary course of Smith Benefit Plan activities) is pending against or with respect to any such Smith Benefit Plan;
 - (vi) there are no pending audits or investigations by any Governmental Entity involving any Smith U.S. Benefit Plan;
 - (vii) all material contributions required to be made as of the date hereof to Smith U.S. Benefit Plans have been made or provided for;

- (viii) Smith has not engaged in a transaction with respect to any Smith U.S. Benefit Plan for which it would reasonably be expected to be subject (either directly or indirectly) to a liability for either a civil penalty assessed pursuant to Section 502(i) of ERISA or a Tax imposed by Section 4975 of the Code:
- (ix) since January 1, 2005, each nonqualified deferred compensation plan or arrangement has been maintained in good faith operational compliance with Section 409A of the Code and, as of December 31, 2008, each nonqualified deferred compensation plan or arrangement is in documentary compliance with Section 409A of the Code, except for such noncompliance that may be corrected under IRS Notice 2008-113 or IRS Notice 2010-6 (without material liability to Schlumberger);
- (x) (A) with respect to Smith U.S. Benefit Plans or any "employee pension benefit plans," as defined in Section 3(2) of ERISA, that are subject to Title IV of ERISA and have been maintained or contributed to within six years prior to the date hereof by Smith, any of its Subsidiaries or any trade or business (whether or not incorporated) which is under common control, or which is treated as a single employer, with Smith or any of its Subsidiaries under Section 414(b), (c), (m) or (o) of the Code (a "Smith ERISA affiliate"), neither Smith nor any Smith ERISA affiliate has incurred any direct or indirect liability under Title IV of ERISA in connection with any termination thereof or withdrawal therefrom which remains unsatisfied, (B) with respect to Smith U.S. Benefits Plans, there does not exist any accumulated funding deficiency within the meaning of Section 412 of the Code or Section 302 of ERISA, whether or not waived, (C) with respect to Smith U.S. Benefit Plans, since January 1, 2008, there has been no "reportable event," as that term is defined in Section 4043 of ERISA for which the 30-day reporting requirement has not been waived, and (D) with respect to Smith U.S. Benefit Plans, the minimum funding standards of Section 412 of the Code have been satisfied and there are no restrictions on the payment or accrual of benefits under Section 436 of the Code and such plan is not in "at risk" status for the current plan year under Section 430(i) of the Code;
- (xi) all individuals who performed any compensatory services for Smith or any Subsidiary of Smith, whether as an employee, independent contractor or "leased employee" (as defined in Section 414(n) of the Code) are, and have been, properly classified for purposes of withholding Taxes and eligibility to participate in, and coverage under, any Smith U.S. Benefit Plan; and
- (xii) with respect to each Smith U.S. Benefit Plan which is a group health plan, Smith and each of the Smith ERISA affiliates have complied in all material respects with (i) the applicable health care continuation and notice provisions of the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985, as amended ("COBRA"), and the applicable COBRA regulations (including the requirements of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009), and (ii) the applicable requirements of the Health Insurance Portability and

Accountability Act of 1996 and the regulations thereunder, and neither Smith nor any ERISA Affiliate has incurred any liability under Section 4980 of the Code.

- (c) Neither Smith nor any of its Subsidiaries nor any Smith ERISA affiliate contributes to, or has an obligation to contribute to, and has not within six years prior to the Effective Time contributed to, or had an obligation to contribute to, a "multiemployer plan" within the meaning of Section 3(37) of ERISA, a "multiple employer welfare association" within the meaning of Section 3(40) of ERISA or a "voluntary employees' beneficiary association" within the meaning of Section 501(c)(9) of the Code.
- (d) Except as provided in Section 5.11(d) of the Smith Disclosure Letter, no Smith U.S. Benefit Plan provides medical, surgical, hospitalization, death or similar benefits (whether or not insured) for employees or former employees of Smith or any Subsidiary of Smith for periods extending beyond their retirement date or other termination of service other than (i) coverage mandated by Applicable Law, (ii) death benefits under any "pension plan" or (iii) benefits the full cost of which is borne by the current or former employee (or his beneficiary). Except as would not have, individually or in the aggregate, a Smith Material Adverse Effect, each Smith U.S. Benefit Plan which provides post-employment medical, surgical, hospitalization, death or similar benefits may be unilaterally amended or terminated by Smith without material liability, except as to claims incurred prior to amendment or termination.
- (e) Except as provided in Section 5.11(e) of the Smith Disclosure Letter, the execution and delivery of this Agreement, and the consummation of the Merger and the other transactions contemplated hereby will not (either alone or upon the occurrence of any additional or subsequent events) (i) result in any payment becoming due to any employee, former employee or group of employees or former employees, of Smith or any of its Subsidiaries, (ii) increase any benefits otherwise payable under any Smith Benefit Plans, (iii) result in the acceleration of the time of payment or vesting of any such benefits or (iv) result in the incurrence or acceleration of any other obligation related to the Smith Benefit Plans or to any employee, former employee or group of employees or former employees, including, without limitation, the payment of any "excess parachute payments" within the meaning of Section 280G of the Code.
- (f) Section 5.11(f) of the Smith Disclosure Letter contains a list of all funded Smith Benefit Plans with assets containing stock or other securities issued by Smith or any of its Subsidiaries.
- (g) With respect to each Smith Foreign Benefit Plan, except as would not have, individually or in the aggregate, a Smith Material Adverse Effect, (i) each such Smith Foreign Benefit Plan is in material compliance with all Applicable Laws and has been operated in accordance with its terms, (ii) all contributions required to have been made under such Smith Foreign Benefit Plans have been timely made and all liabilities thereunder have been properly accrued on the most recent financial statements of Smith and its Subsidiaries, and (iii) each Smith Foreign Benefit Plan is either fully funded or a fully insured plan.

Section 5.12 Labor Matters.

- (a) Except as would not reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Smith Material Adverse Effect, (i) neither Smith nor any of its Subsidiaries is a party to, or bound by, any collective bargaining agreement or similar contract, agreement or understanding with a labor union or similar labor organization and (ii) to the knowledge of Smith, there are no organizational efforts with respect to the formation of a collective bargaining unit presently being made or threatened.
- (b) Except for such matters as have not had and would not reasonably be expected to have a Smith Material Adverse Effect, (i) Smith and its Subsidiaries have complied with all Applicable Laws respecting the employment of labor; (ii) neither Smith nor any Subsidiary of Smith has received any written complaint of any unfair labor practice or other unlawful employment practice or any written notice of any violation of any Applicable Law with respect to the employment of individuals by, or the employment practices of, Smith or any Subsidiary of Smith or the work conditions or the terms and conditions of employment and wages and hours of their respective businesses and (iii) there are no unfair labor practice charges or other employee related complaints against Smith or any Subsidiary of Smith pending or, to the knowledge of Smith, threatened, before any Governmental Entity by or concerning the employees working in their respective businesses.

Section 5.13 *Properties*. Except as has not had and as would not reasonably be expected to have a Smith Material Adverse Effect, (a) each of Smith and its Subsidiaries has good and marketable title to, or valid leasehold interests in, all properties and assets purported to be owned or leased by it, respectively, in the Smith Reports, except for such properties and assets as are no longer used or useful in the conduct of its businesses or as have been disposed of in the ordinary course of business, and there are no outstanding options or rights of first refusal to purchase any of such properties or assets or interests therein; (b) all such assets and properties are free and clear of all Liens (other than Permitted Liens); (c) each of Smith and its Subsidiaries has complied with the terms of all leases, subleases, easements, licenses and other occupancy agreements to which it is a party and under which it is in occupancy, and all such agreements are in full force and effect; and (d) each of Smith and its Subsidiaries enjoys peaceful and undisturbed possession under all such agreements.

Section 5.14 *Environmental Matters*. Except as have not had and would not reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Smith Material Adverse Effect:

- (a) Smith and each of its Subsidiaries has been and is in compliance with all orders of any court, Governmental Entity or arbitration board or tribunal applicable to it and any Applicable Law (including common law) related to human health, worker safety, process safety, mine safety, product safety and stewardship, mining activities (including reclamation obligations), use and management of hazardous, toxic or radioactive substances or wastes, the environment, or climate ("Environmental Laws").
- (b) No judicial or administrative proceedings or governmental investigations or employee or third party claims are pending or, to the knowledge of Smith, threatened in

writing against Smith or its Subsidiaries that allege the violation of or seek to impose liability pursuant to any Environmental Law.

- (c) Neither Smith nor any of its Subsidiaries has (i) received any notice of noncompliance with, violation of, or liability or potential liability under any Environmental Law that remains unresolved or (ii) entered into any outstanding consent decree or order or is subject to any outstanding order of any court or Governmental Entity or tribunal under any Environmental Law or relating to the cleanup of or other obligation with respect to any hazardous materials.
- (d) Except as set forth in Section 5.14(d) of the Smith Disclosure Letter, neither Smith nor its Subsidiaries has been named as a defendant in any litigation, or has received written notice of noncompliance, violation, liability or potential liability from any Governmental Entity, based on exposure to asbestos or silica.

Section 5.15 *Intellectual Property*. Except as has not had and as would not reasonably be expected to have a Smith Material Adverse Effect, Smith and its Subsidiaries own or possess adequate licenses or other valid rights to use all patents, patent applications, patent rights, know-how, trade secrets, trademarks, trademark rights, trade names, trade dress, trade name rights, service marks, service mark rights, copyrights, software, domain names, computer programs, technical know-how and other proprietary intellectual property rights (collectively, "Intellectual Property Rights") necessary for the conduct of their respective businesses as currently being conducted. There are no assertions or claims challenging the validity of any Intellectual Property Rights that are reasonably expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Smith Material Adverse Effect. No claims are pending or, to the knowledge of Smith, threatened that Smith and its Subsidiaries are infringing or otherwise adversely affecting the rights of any person with regard to any Intellectual Property Rights, except for any such claims that, individually or in the aggregate, have not had and would not reasonably be expected to have a Smith Material Adverse Effect. To the knowledge of Smith, the conduct of Smith's and its Subsidiaries' respective businesses as currently conducted does not conflict with, violate, or infringe any Intellectual Property Rights of a third party, except for any such claims that, individually or in the aggregate, have not had and would not reasonably be expected to have a Smith Material Adverse Effect. There is no infringement of any proprietary right owned by or licensed by or to Smith or any of its Subsidiaries that is reasonably expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Smith Material Adverse Effect.

Section 5.16 *Decrees*, *Etc.* Except for such matters as have not had and would not reasonably be expected to have a Smith Material Adverse Effect, (a) no order, writ, fine, injunction, decree, judgment, award or determination of any court or Governmental Entity or any arbitral or other dispute resolution body has been issued or entered against Smith or any of its Subsidiaries that continues to be in effect that affects the ownership or operation of any of their respective assets or that involves an amount greater than \$10 million and (b) since December 31, 2006, no criminal order, writ, fine, injunction, decree, judgment or determination of any Governmental Entity has been issued against Smith or any of its Subsidiaries.

Section 5.17 *Insurance*. Except as have not had and would not reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Smith Material Adverse Effect, Smith and

its Subsidiaries maintain insurance policies, including with respect to fire, liability, workers' compensation, and title insurance, containing coverages in such amounts and against such losses as are customary in the industries in which Smith and its Subsidiaries operate on the date hereof. Except as have not had and would not reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Smith Material Adverse Effect, all such policies (or substitute policies with substantially similar terms and underwritten by insurance carriers with substantially similar or higher ratings) are in full force and effect, and (ii) all premiums with respect thereto covering all periods up to and including the Closing Date have been (or, if not yet due as of the date hereof, will prior to the Closing Date be) paid.

Section 5.18 *No Brokers*. Smith has not entered into any contract, arrangement or understanding with any person or firm which may result in the obligation of Smith, Schlumberger or their respective affiliates to pay any finder's fees, brokerage or other like payments in connection with the negotiations leading to this Agreement or the consummation of the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement, except that Smith has retained UBS Securities LLC as its financial advisor, the arrangements with which have been disclosed to Schlumberger prior to the date hereof.

Section 5.19 *Schlumberger Stock Ownership*. Neither Smith nor any of its Subsidiaries owns any shares of capital stock of Schlumberger or any other securities convertible into or otherwise exercisable for shares of capital stock of Schlumberger.

Section 5.20 *Vote Required*. The only vote of the holders of any class or series of Smith capital stock necessary to adopt and approve this Agreement and the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (including the Merger) is the affirmative vote of the holders of at least a majority of the outstanding shares of Smith Common Stock (such approval being referred to as the "**Smith Stockholder Approval**").

Section 5.21 Certain Contracts.

- (a) Except as set forth in Section 5.21 of the Smith Disclosure Letter, neither Smith nor any of its Subsidiaries is a party to or bound by:
 - (i) any lease of real or personal property providing for annual rentals of \$5 million or more;
- (ii) any partnership, joint venture or other similar agreement or arrangement relating to the formation, creation, operation, management or control of any partnership or joint venture material to Smith and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or in which Smith or any of its Subsidiaries owns any interest valued at more than \$10 million:
- (iii) any agreement, lease, easement, license, contract, note, mortgage, indenture or other legally binding obligation (each, a "Contract") (other than among direct or indirect wholly owned Subsidiaries of Smith) relating to indebtedness for borrowed money or the deferred purchase price of property (in either case, whether incurred, assumed, guaranteed or secured by any asset) in excess of \$10 million;

- (iv) any executory Contract relating to the disposition or acquisition of material assets not in the ordinary course of business;
- (v) any Contract that would be required to be filed as an exhibit to any Smith Report as of the date of this Agreement pursuant to Item 601(b)(10) of Regulation S-K under the Securities Act and the Exchange Act;
- (vi) any agreement or covenant restricting in any material respect the research, development, distribution, sale, supply, license or manufacturing of material products or services, or any agreement or covenant requiring Smith or any of its Subsidiaries to grant an exclusive right to a third party for the research, development, distribution, sale, supply, license or manufacturing of any material product or service;
- (vii) any noncompetition Contract or other Contract that (A) purports to limit in any material respect either the type of business in which Smith or its Subsidiaries (or, after the Effective Time, Schlumberger or its affiliates) may engage or the manner in which any of them may so engage in any business or (B) would reasonably be expected to require the disposition of any material assets or line of business of Smith or its Subsidiaries or, after the Effective Time, Schlumberger or its affiliates;
- (viii) any Contract (other than (A) a Contract with respect to compensation or similar arrangements not involving an officer of Smith for purposes of Section 16 of the Exchange Act and (B) any Contract entered into in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice) between Smith or any of its Subsidiaries and any director or officer of Smith or any person beneficially owning, as of the date hereof, 5% or more of the outstanding shares of Smith Common Stock;
- (ix) any Contract that prohibits the payment of dividends or distributions in respect of capital stock of Smith, prohibits the pledging of the capital stock of Smith or any of its Subsidiaries or prohibits the issuance of guarantees by Smith or any of its Subsidiaries;
- (x) any agreement or covenant containing a right of first refusal, right of first negotiation or right of first offer in favor of a party other than Smith or any of its Subsidiaries;
- (xi) any Contract that contains a put, call or similar right pursuant to which Smith or any of its Subsidiaries could be required to purchase or sell, as applicable, any equity interests of any person or assets that have a fair market value or purchase price of more than \$10 million (the Contracts described in clauses (i)—(xi), together with all exhibits and schedules to such Contracts, being the "Material Contracts").
- (b) A true and complete copy of each Material Contract has previously been delivered or made available to Schlumberger (subject to applicable confidentiality restrictions).

Except as would not reasonably be expected to have a Smith Material Adverse Effect, each such contract is a valid and binding agreement of Smith or one of its Subsidiaries, as the case may be, and is in full force and effect, and neither Smith nor any of its Subsidiaries nor, to the knowledge of Smith, any other party thereto is in default or breach under the terms of any such Material Contract.

Section 5.22 *Export Controls and Trade Sanctions*. Except for such matters as would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to result in a Smith Material Adverse Effect:

- (a) Smith and its affiliates have complied with all statutory and regulatory requirements relating to export controls and trade sanctions under Applicable Laws, including the Export Administration Regulations (15 C.F.R. Parts 730 et seq.), the International Traffic in Arms Regulations (22 C.F.R. Parts 120-130), section 999 of the Code, the Trading with the Enemy Act of 1917 (50 U.S.C. §§ 1-44), the International Emergency Economic Powers Act (50 U.S.C. §§1701–1706), the Foreign Narcotics Kingpin Designation Act (21 U.S.C. 1901-1908, 8 U.S.C. 1182), and the regulations, rules, and executive orders administered by the U.S. Department of the Treasury, Office of Foreign Assets Control ("OFAC") and by the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, and any similar rules or regulations of the European Union or other jurisdiction. To the knowledge of Smith, neither Smith, nor any of its affiliates, shareholders, directors, officers or employees have, directly or indirectly, engaged in any transaction or dealing in property or interests in property of, received from or made any contribution of funds, goods, or services to or for the benefit of, *provided* any payments or material assistance to, or otherwise engaged in or facilitated any transactions with a Prohibited Person. For the purposes of this Agreement, "Prohibited Person" means (i) any individual or entity that has been determined by competent authority to be the subject of a prohibition on such conduct in any law, regulation, rule, or executive order administered by OFAC; (ii) the government, including any political subdivision, agency or instrumentality thereof, of any country against which the United States maintains comprehensive economic sanctions or embargoes; (iiv) any individual or entity that has been identified on the Annex to Executive Order 13224 or the OFAC Specially Designated Nationals and Blocked Persons List (Appendix A to 31 C.F.R. Ch. V), as amended from time to time; or (v) any individual or entity that has been designated on any similar list or ord
- (b) Smith and its affiliates have developed and implemented an export control and trade sanctions compliance program which includes corporate policies and procedures designed to ensure compliance with Applicable Laws relating to export control and trade sanctions, including obtaining licenses or other authorizations as required for access by foreign nationals in the U.S. to controlled technology.
- (c) No civil or criminal penalties have been imposed on Smith or any of its affiliates with respect to violations of Applicable Laws relating to export control or trade sanctions, nor have any voluntary disclosures relating to export control and trade sanctions issues been submitted to the U.S. Government or any other Governmental Entity.

- (d) To Smith's knowledge, Smith and its affiliates have not been since January 1, 2006 and, to the knowledge of Smith, are not now under any administrative, civil or criminal investigation or indictment involving alleged violations of any Applicable Laws relating to export controls or trade sanctions.
- (e) Neither the U.S. Government nor any other Governmental Entity has notified Smith or any of its affiliates in writing since January 1, 2006 of any actual or alleged violation or breach of any Applicable Laws relating to export controls or trade sanctions.
- (f) To Smith's knowledge, none of Smith or its affiliates has undergone or is undergoing any internal or external audit, review, inspection, investigation, survey or examination of records relating to Smith's or any of its affiliates' export activity that would, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to affect adversely its future export activity.

Section 5.23 *Foreign Corrupt Practices Act.* Except for such matters as would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to result in a Smith Material Adverse Effect:

- (a) Smith and its affiliates, directors, officers and employees have complied with the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977, as amended (15 U.S.C. §§ 78a et seq. (1997 and 2000)) (the "Foreign Corrupt Practices Act"), and any other applicable anticorruption or antibribery laws. Except for "facilitating payments" (as such term is defined in the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and other Applicable Laws), neither Smith nor any of its affiliates, directors, officers, employees, agents or other representatives acting on its behalf have directly or indirectly offered, paid, promised to pay or authorized the payment of anything of value, including but not limited to cash, checks, wire transfers, tangible and intangible gifts, favors and services, to a Foreign Government Official or any other person while knowing or having a reasonable belief that all or some portion would be used for the purpose of: (A) influencing any act or decision of a Foreign Government Official, including a decision to fail to perform official functions, (B) inducing any Foreign Government Official to do or omit to do any act in violation of the lawful duty of such official, or (C) inducing any Foreign Government Official to use influence with any government, department, agency or instrumentality in order to assist Smith in obtaining or retaining business with, or directing business to any person or otherwise securing for any person an improper advantage. For the purposes of this Agreement, "Foreign Government Official" means (i) any officer or employee of a non-U.S. Governmental Entity or any public international organization; (ii) any person acting in an official capacity for or on behalf of a non-U.S. Governmental Entity or any public international organization; (iii) any candidate for foreign political office; or (iv) any foreign political party or official thereof.
- (b) Smith and its affiliates have developed and implemented a Foreign Corrupt Practices Act compliance program which includes corporate policies and procedures designed to ensure compliance with the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and any other applicable anticorruption and antibribery laws.
- (c) No civil or criminal penalties have been imposed on Smith or any of its affiliates with respect to violations of the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act or any other applicable

anticorruption or antibribery laws nor have any voluntary disclosures been submitted to the U.S. Government or any other Governmental Entity with respect to violations of the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act or any other applicable anticorruption or antibribery laws.

- (d) To Smith's knowledge, Smith and its affiliates have not been since January 1, 2006 and are not now under any administrative, civil or criminal investigation or indictment involving alleged violations of the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act or any other applicable anticorruption or antibribery laws. Neither Smith nor any of its affiliates are participating in any investigation by a Governmental Entity relating to alleged violations by Smith or its affiliates of the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act or any other applicable anticorruption or antibribery laws.
- (e) Neither the U.S. Government nor any other Governmental Entity has notified Smith or any of its affiliates in writing since January 1, 2006 of any actual or alleged violation or breach of the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act or any other applicable anticorruption or antibribery law.

Section 5.24 *Stockholder Rights Agreement*. The Smith Board has taken all necessary action to render the Rights Agreement inapplicable to the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement and to cause the Smith Rights to expire at or immediately prior to the Effective Time, and neither the execution and delivery of this Agreement nor the consummation of the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement will result in the occurrence of a Distribution Date, as defined in the Rights Agreement, or otherwise cause the Smith Rights to become exercisable by the holders thereof.

Section 5.25 *Charter Provisions; Takeover Laws.* Smith has taken all action necessary to render the restrictions on business combinations set forth in Article Thirteenth of Smith's certificate of incorporation inapplicable to this Agreement, the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement. No "fair price," "moratorium," "business combination" or "control share acquisition" statute or other similar statute or regulation (including Section 203 of the DGCL) is applicable to this Agreement, the Merger or the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

Section 5.26 *Tax Treatment*. Neither Smith nor any of its Subsidiaries has taken or agreed to take any action or knows of any fact that would (i) prevent or impede, or would reasonably be expected to prevent or impede, the Merger from qualifying as a "reorganization" within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code, or (ii) cause the stockholders of Smith, other than any such stockholder that would be a "five-percent transferee shareholder" of Schlumberger (within the meaning of Treasury Regulation Section 1.367(a)-3(c)(5)(ii)) following the Merger, to recognize gain pursuant to Section 367(a) of the Code.

ARTICLE 6

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF SCHLUMBERGER AND MERGER SUB

Except (i) as set forth in the disclosure letter delivered to Smith by Schlumberger at or prior to the execution hereof (the "Schlumberger Disclosure Letter") and making reference to the particular subsection of this Agreement to which exception is being taken, subject to Section 10.10, or (ii) as disclosed in the Schlumberger Reports filed after December 31, 2008 and prior to the date hereof (excluding any disclosures in such Schlumberger Reports in any risk factors section, in any section related to forward looking statements and other disclosures that are predictive or forward-looking in nature), each of Schlumberger and Merger Sub represents and warrants to Smith that:

Section 6.1 *Organization; Good Standing and Qualification*. Each of Schlumberger and Merger Sub is a legal entity duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of its respective jurisdiction of incorporation and has all requisite corporate power and authority to own, operate and lease its properties and assets and to carry on its business as now conducted. Schlumberger has made available to Smith true and correct copies of the articles of incorporation and bylaws of Schlumberger and the certificate of incorporation and bylaws of Merger Sub, each as amended to date, and each as so delivered is in full force and effect.

Section 6.2 Authorization, Validity and Enforceability.

- (a) Each of Schlumberger and Merger Sub has all requisite corporate power and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement and all other agreements and documents contemplated hereby to which it is a party and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby (including the Merger). The execution and delivery of this Agreement by each of Schlumberger and Merger Sub, and the consummation by each of Schlumberger and Merger Sub of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, including the Merger and the issuance by Schlumberger of shares of Schlumberger Common Stock as described in this Agreement, have been duly authorized by all requisite corporate action on behalf of Schlumberger and Merger Sub. This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by each of Schlumberger and Merger Sub and constitutes the valid and legally binding obligation of each of Schlumberger and Merger Sub, enforceable against each of Schlumberger and Merger Sub in accordance with its terms.
- (b) The Board of Directors of Schlumberger, at a meeting duly called and held on or prior to the date hereof, has approved and adopted this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby, including the Merger and the issuance by Schlumberger of shares of Schlumberger Common Stock as described in this Agreement. The Board of Directors of Merger Sub has (i) determined that this Agreement and the Merger are advisable and (ii) approved and adopted this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby (including the Merger).

Section 6.3 Capitalization. Schlumberger may issue up to 3,000,000,000 shares of Schlumberger Common Stock and 200,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value \$0.01 per share ("Schlumberger Preferred Stock"). As of February 17, 2010, there were (a) 1,195,634,383 outstanding shares of Schlumberger Common Stock and 138,577,781 shares of Schlumberger Common Stock held in the treasury of Schlumberger, (b) 47,286,379 shares of Schlumberger Common Stock are reserved for issuance under employee benefits or stock and incentive plans of Schlumberger, and (c) no issued or outstanding shares of Schlumberger Preferred Stock. All of the issued and outstanding shares of Schlumberger Common Stock have been duly authorized and validly issued and are fully paid and nonassessable. As of February 17, 2010, there was \$307.1 million aggregate principal amount of Schlumberger's 2.125% Series B Convertible Debentures due June 1, 2023 outstanding and 7,676,925 shares of Schlumberger Common Stock reserved for issuance thereunder. The shares of Schlumberger Common Stock to be issued in connection with the Merger, when issued in accordance with this Agreement, will be duly authorized and validly issued and will be fully paid and nonassessable. Except (i) as set forth in this Section 6.3, (ii) for changes since the close of business on February 17, 2010 resulting from the exercise of employee stock options outstanding on such date or (iii) Schlumberger's 2.125% Series B Convertible Debentures due June 1, 2023, there are outstanding (A) no shares of capital stock, other voting securities or other ownership interests in Schlumberger and (B) (1) no options, warrants or other rights to acquire from Schlumberger any capital stock, voting securities or other ownership interests in, or any securities convertible into or exchangeable for, capital stock, voting securities or ownership interests in, Schlumberger and (2) no preemptive or similar rights, subscription or other rights, convertible securities, agreements, arrangements or commitments of any character, relating to the capital stock of Schlumberger, obligating Schlumberger to issue, transfer or sell any capital stock, voting securities or ownership interests in, or any securities convertible into or exchangeable for capital stock, voting securities or other ownership interests in, Schlumberger or obligating Schlumberger to grant, extend or enter into any such option, warrant, subscription or other right, convertible security, agreement, arrangement or commitment (the items in the foregoing subclauses (A) and (B) being referred to collectively as "Schlumberger Securities"). Except as required by the terms of any employee stock options or other stock-based awards or Schlumberger's 2.125% Series B Convertible Debentures due June 1, 2023, there are no outstanding obligations of Schlumberger or any of its Subsidiaries to repurchase, redeem or otherwise acquire any Schlumberger Securities. All of the outstanding common stock of Merger Sub is owned by Schlumberger, free and clear of all Liens (including any restriction on the right to vote, sell or otherwise dispose of such common stock).

Section 6.4 *Compliance with Laws; Permits.* Except for such matters as, individually or in the aggregate, have not had and would not reasonably be expected to have a Schlumberger Material Adverse Effect:

- (a) Neither Schlumberger nor any of its Subsidiaries is in violation of any Applicable Laws, and no claim is pending or, to the knowledge of Schlumberger, threatened with respect to any such matters.
- (b) Schlumberger and each Subsidiary of Schlumberger hold all permits, licenses, certifications, variations, exemptions, orders, franchises and approvals of all Governmental Entities necessary for the conduct of their respective businesses (the

- "Schlumberger Permits"). All Schlumberger Permits are in full force and effect and there exists no default thereunder or breach thereof, and Schlumberger has no notice or knowledge that such Schlumberger Permits will not be renewed in the ordinary course after the Effective Time. No Governmental Entity has given, or to the knowledge of Schlumberger, threatened to give, any action to terminate, cancel or reform any Schlumberger Permit.
- (c) Schlumberger and each Subsidiary of Schlumberger possess all permits, licenses, operating authorities, orders, exemptions, franchises, variances, consents, approvals or other authorizations required for the present ownership and operation of all its and its Subsidiaries' assets. There exists no default or breach with respect to, and no person or Governmental Entity has taken or, to the knowledge of Schlumberger, threatened to take, any action to terminate, cancel or reform any such permit, license, operating authority, order, exemption, franchise, variance, consent, approval or other authorization.

This section does not relate to export control or trade matters or the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, which are the subjects of Sections 6.12 and 6.13, respectively.

Section 6.5 No Conflict.

- (a) The execution, delivery and performance by Schlumberger and Merger Sub of this Agreement does not, and the consummation by Schlumberger and Merger Sub of the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement in accordance with the terms hereof will not, (i) conflict with or result in a breach of any provisions of the articles of incorporation or bylaws of Schlumberger or the certificate of incorporation or bylaws of Merger Sub, (ii) violate, or conflict with, or result in a breach of any provision of, or constitute a default (or an event which, with notice or lapse of time or both, would constitute a default) under, or result in the suspension, termination or cancellation, or in a right of suspension, termination or cancellation of, or give rise to a right of purchase or a right of additional payment under, or accelerate the performance required by, or result in the creation of any Lien upon any of the properties or assets of Schlumberger or any of its Subsidiaries under, or result in being declared void, voidable, or without further binding effect, or otherwise result in a detriment to Schlumberger or any of its Subsidiaries under, any of the terms, conditions or provisions of, any loan or credit agreement, note, bond, mortgage, indenture, deed of trust, license, concession, franchise, permit, lease, contract, agreement, joint venture or other instrument or obligation to which Schlumberger or any of its Subsidiaries is a party, or by which Schlumberger or any of its Subsidiaries or any of their properties or assets is bound or affected, or (iii) subject to the filings and other matters referred to in Section 6.5(b), contravene or conflict with or constitute a violation of any provision of any Applicable Law, except, in the case of matters described in clause (ii) or (iii), as have not had and would not reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Schlumberger Material Adverse Effect.
- (b) Other than those required under or in relation to (i) the DGCL with respect to the filing of the Certificate of Merger, (ii) rules and regulations of the NYSE, (iii) the HSR Act, the EC Merger Regulation and such applicable competition, antitrust or premerger notification laws of the other jurisdictions set forth in Section 6.5 of the Schlumberger

Disclosure Letter, (iv) the Securities Act, (v) the Exchange Act, (vi) state securities or "Blue Sky" laws and (vii) other Governmental Entities having jurisdiction over the Merger set forth in Section 6.5 of the Schlumberger Disclosure Letter ((i) through (vii) collectively, the "Schlumberger Approvals"), neither the execution, delivery or performance by Schlumberger and Merger Sub of this Agreement, nor the consummation by Schlumberger and Merger Sub of the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement in accordance with the terms hereof, will require any consent, approval, qualification or authorization of, or filing or registration with, any Governmental Entity, except for any consent, approval, qualification or authorization the failure of which to obtain and for any filing or registration the failure of which to make has not had and would not reasonably be expected to have a Schlumberger Material Adverse Effect.

Section 6.6 SEC Documents; Financial Statements.

- (a) Schlumberger has filed or furnished all registration statements, prospectuses, reports, schedules, forms, statements and other documents (including exhibits and any amendments thereto) required to be so filed or furnished by it with the SEC since January 1, 2006 (collectively, the "Schlumberger Reports") and has made available to Smith each such document it has so filed or furnished, in the form filed with or furnished to the SEC. No Subsidiary of Schlumberger is required to file any registration statement, prospectus, report, schedule, form, statement or any other document with the SEC. No Subsidiary of Schlumberger is, or since January 1, 2006 has been, subject to any requirement to file periodic reports under the Exchange Act. As of their respective dates (or, if amended, as of the date of such amendment), the Schlumberger Reports complied in all material respects with applicable accounting standards. As of their respective dates (or, if amended, as of the date of such amendment), the Schlumberger Reports did not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements made therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.
- (b) Each of the consolidated balance sheets included in or incorporated by reference into the Schlumberger Reports (including the related notes and schedules) fairly presents, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Schlumberger and its Subsidiaries as of its date, and each of the consolidated statements of operations, cash flows and changes in stockholders' equity included in or incorporated by reference into the Schlumberger Reports (including any related notes and schedules) fairly presents, in all material respects, the results of operations, cash flows or changes in stockholders' equity, as the case may be, of Schlumberger and its Subsidiaries for the periods set forth therein (subject, in the case of unaudited statements, to (i) such exceptions as may be permitted by Form 10-Q of the SEC and (ii) normal year-end audit adjustments which have not been and are not expected to be material), in each case in accordance with GAAP consistently applied during the periods involved, except as may be noted therein.
- (c) There are no liabilities or obligations of Schlumberger or any of its Subsidiaries (whether accrued, absolute, contingent or otherwise and whether or not required to be disclosed) that would reasonably be required to be reflected on, or reserved against in, a balance sheet of Schlumberger or in the notes thereto prepared in accordance with GAAP, other

than liabilities or obligations to the extent (i) (A) reflected or reserved against on the consolidated balance sheet of Schlumberger or (B) readily apparent in the notes thereto, in each case included in Schlumberger's annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009, (ii) liabilities or obligations incurred in the ordinary course of business since December 31, 2009 or (iii) liabilities or obligations which have not had and would not reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Schlumberger Material Adverse Effect.

Section 6.7 Information Supplied.

- (a) None of the information supplied or to be supplied by Schlumberger for inclusion or incorporation by reference in (i) the Form S-4 will, at the time the Form S-4 is filed with the SEC, at any time it is amended or supplemented or at the time it becomes effective under the Securities Act, contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein not misleading and (ii) the Proxy Statement/Prospectus will, on the date it is first mailed to Smith stockholders or at the time of the Smith Stockholders Meeting, contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.
- (b) Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section 6.7, no representation or warranty is made by Schlumberger with respect to statements made or incorporated by reference in the Form S-4 or the Proxy Statement/Prospectus based on information supplied by Smith for inclusion or incorporation by reference therein.

Section 6.8 *Litigation*. There are no (a) civil, criminal or administrative actions, suits, claims, hearings, arbitrations, investigations or proceedings pending or, to the knowledge of Schlumberger, threatened against Schlumberger or any of its Subsidiaries or their respective assets, or any director, officer or employee of Schlumberger or any of its Subsidiaries or other affiliates, in each case, for whom Schlumberger or any of its Subsidiaries may be liable, or (b) litigations, arbitrations, investigations or other proceedings, or injunctions or final judgments relating thereto, pending or, to the knowledge of Schlumberger, threatened before any Governmental Entity or arbitrator against Schlumberger or any of its Subsidiaries or their respective assets, or any director, officer or employee of Schlumberger or any of its Subsidiaries or other affiliates, in each case, for whom Schlumberger or any of its Subsidiaries may be liable, except in the case of either clause (a) or (b), for those that would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to result in a Schlumberger Material Adverse Effect. None of Schlumberger or any of its Subsidiaries or their respective assets, or any director, officer or employee of Schlumberger or any of its Subsidiaries or other affiliates, in each case, for whom Schlumberger or any of its Subsidiaries may be liable, is a party to or subject to the provisions of any judgment, order, writ, injunction, decree or award of any Governmental Entity which would, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to result in a Schlumberger Material Adverse Effect. This section does not relate to export control or trade matters or the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, which are the subjects of Sections 6.12 and 6.13, respectively.

Section 6.9 *Absence of Certain Changes*. Since December 31, 2009, there has not been any Schlumberger Material Adverse Effect or any event, occurrence, change, discovery

or development of a state of circumstances or facts which would, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to result in a Schlumberger Material Adverse Effect.

Section 6.10 *Smith Stock Ownership*. Neither Schlumberger nor any of its Subsidiaries owns any shares of capital stock of Smith or any other securities convertible into or otherwise exercisable for shares of capital stock of Smith.

Section 6.11 *No Vote Required*. No vote of the holders of any class or series of Schlumberger capital stock is necessary in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

Section 6.12 *Export Controls and Trade Sanctions*. Except for such matters as would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to result in a Schlumberger Material Adverse Effect:

- (a) Schlumberger and its affiliates have complied with all statutory and regulatory requirements relating to export controls and trade sanctions under Applicable Laws, including the Export Administration Regulations (15 C.F.R. Parts 730 et seq.), the International Traffic in Arms Regulations (22 C.F.R. Parts 120-130), section 999 of the Code, the Trading with the Enemy Act of 1917 (50 U.S.C. §§ 1-44), the International Emergency Economic Powers Act (50 U.S.C. §§1701–1706), the Foreign Narcotics Kingpin Designation Act (21 U.S.C. 1901-1908, 8 U.S.C. 1182), and the regulations, rules, and executive orders administered by the U.S. Department of the Treasury, OFAC, the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission and any similar rules or regulations of the European Union or other jurisdiction. To the knowledge of Schlumberger, neither Schlumberger, nor any of its affiliates, shareholders, directors, officers or employees have, directly or indirectly, engaged in any transaction or dealing in property or interests in property of, received from or made any contribution of funds, goods, or services to or for the benefit of, provided any payments or material assistance to, or otherwise engaged in or facilitated any transactions with a Prohibited Person.
- (b) Schlumberger and its affiliates have developed and implemented an export control and trade sanctions compliance program which includes corporate policies and procedures designed to ensure compliance with Applicable Laws relating to export control and trade sanctions, including obtaining licenses or other authorizations as required for access by foreign nationals in the U.S. to controlled technology.
- (c) No civil or criminal penalties have been imposed on Schlumberger or any of its affiliates with respect to violations of Applicable Laws relating to export control or trade sanctions, nor have any voluntary disclosures relating to export control and trade sanctions issues been submitted to the U.S. Government or any other Governmental Entity.
- (d) To Schlumberger's knowledge, Schlumberger and its affiliates have not been since January 1, 2006 and, to the knowledge of Schlumberger, are not now under any administrative, civil or criminal investigation or indictment involving alleged violations of any Applicable Laws relating to export controls or trade sanctions.

- (e) Neither the U.S. Government nor any other Governmental Entity has notified Schlumberger or any of its affiliates in writing since January 1, 2006 of any actual or alleged violation or breach of any Applicable Laws relating to export controls or trade sanctions.
- (f) To Schlumberger's knowledge, none of Schlumberger or its affiliates has undergone or is undergoing any internal or external audit, review, inspection, investigation, survey or examination of records relating to Schlumberger's or any of its affiliates' export activity that would, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to affect adversely its future export activity.

Section 6.13 *Foreign Corrupt Practices Act*. Except for such matters as would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to result in a Schlumberger Material Adverse Effect:

- (a) Schlumberger and its affiliates, directors, officers and employees have complied with the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and any other applicable anticorruption or antibribery laws. Except for "facilitating payments" (as such term is defined in the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and other Applicable Laws), neither Schlumberger nor any of its affiliates, directors, officers, employees, agents or other representatives acting on its behalf have directly or indirectly offered, paid, promised to pay or authorized the payment of anything of value, including but not limited to cash, checks, wire transfers, tangible and intangible gifts, favors and services, to a Foreign Government Official or any other person while knowing or having a reasonable belief that all or some portion would be used for the purpose of: (A) influencing any act or decision of a Foreign Government Official, including a decision to fail to perform official functions, (B) inducing any Foreign Government Official to do or omit to do any act in violation of the lawful duty of such official, or (C) inducing any Foreign Government Official to use influence with any government, department, agency or instrumentality in order to assist Schlumberger in obtaining or retaining business with, or directing business to any person or otherwise securing for any person an improper advantage.
- (b) Schlumberger and its affiliates have developed and implemented a Foreign Corrupt Practices Act compliance program which includes corporate policies and procedures to ensure compliance with the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and any other applicable anticorruption and antibribery laws.
- (c) No civil or criminal penalties have been imposed on Schlumberger or any of its affiliates with respect to violations of the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act or any other applicable anticorruption or antibribery laws nor have any voluntary disclosures been submitted to the U.S. Government or any other Governmental Entity with respect to violations of the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act or any other applicable anticorruption or antibribery laws.
- (d) To Schlumberger's knowledge, Schlumberger and its affiliates have not been since January 1, 2006 and are not now under any administrative, civil or criminal investigation or indictment involving alleged violations of the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act or any other applicable anticorruption or antibribery laws. Neither Schlumberger nor any of its affiliates are participating in any investigation by a Governmental Entity relating to alleged

violations by Schlumberger or its affiliates of the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act or any other applicable anticorruption or antibribery laws.

(e) The U.S. Government has not notified Schlumberger or any of its affiliates in writing since January 1, 2006 of any actual or alleged violation or breach of the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act or any other applicable anticorruption or antibribery law.

Section 6.14 *Tax Treatment*. Neither Schlumberger nor any of its affiliates has taken or agreed to take any action or knows of any fact that would (i) prevent or impede, or would reasonably be expected to prevent or impede, the Merger from qualifying as a "reorganization" within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code, or (ii) cause the stockholders of Smith, other than any such stockholder that would be a "five-percent transferee shareholder" of Schlumberger (within the meaning of Treasury Regulation Section 1.367(a)-3(c)(5)(ii)) following the Merger, to recognize gain pursuant to Section 367(a) of the Code. Schlumberger will satisfy the "active trade or business test" (within the meaning of Treasury Regulation 1.367(a)-3(c)(3)) applicable with respect to the Merger.

Section 6.15 *Status of Merger Sub*. Merger Sub was formed solely for the purpose of participating in the Merger and has conducted no activities to date other than in connection with the Merger.

Section 6.16 *Decrees*, *Etc.* Except for such matters as have not had and would not reasonably be expected to have a Schlumberger Material Adverse Effect, (a) no order, writ, fine, injunction, decree, judgment, award or determination of any court or Governmental Entity or any arbitral or other dispute resolution body has been issued or entered against Schlumberger or any of its Subsidiaries that continues to be in effect that affects the ownership or operation of any of their respective assets or that involves an amount greater than \$25 million and (b) since December 31, 2006, no criminal order, writ, fine, injunction, decree, judgment or determination of any Governmental Entity has been issued against Schlumberger or any of its Subsidiaries.

Section 6.17 Controls and Procedures.

- (a) Since the enactment of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, Schlumberger has been and is in compliance in all material respects with (i) the applicable provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and (ii) the applicable listing and corporate governance rules and regulations of the NYSE.
- (b) Each of the principal executive officer and the principal financial officer of Schlumberger (or each former principal executive officer and former principal financial officer of Schlumberger, as applicable) has made all certifications required under Sections 302 and 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and the related rules and regulations promulgated thereunder and under the Exchange Act with respect to the Schlumberger Reports. For purposes of the preceding sentence, "principal executive officer" and "principal financial officer" shall have the meanings given to such terms in the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.
- (c) Schlumberger has (i) designed and maintained disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as required by Rule 13a-15 under the Exchange Act, and (ii) disclosed, based on its most recent evaluation and knowledge,

to its auditors and the audit committee of the Schlumberger Board (A) any significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls over financial reporting which could adversely affect its ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and (B) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in its internal controls over financial reporting.

- (d) Schlumberger has designed and maintains a system of internal controls over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act. as required by Rule 13a-15 under the Exchange Act. Schlumberger's management, with the participation of Schlumberger's principal executive and financial officers, has completed an assessment of the effectiveness of Schlumberger's internal controls over financial reporting in compliance with the requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act for the year ended December 31, 2009, and such assessment concluded that such internal controls were effective using the framework specified in Schlumberger's annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009. To the knowledge of Schlumberger, there is no reason to believe that its auditors and its principal executive officer and principal financial officer will not be able to give the certifications and attestations required pursuant to the rules and regulations adopted pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, without qualification, when next due.
- (e) No personal loan or other extension of credit by Schlumberger to any of its or their executive officers or directors has been made or modified (other than as permitted by Section 13 of the Exchange Act and Section 402 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act) since July 30, 2002.

ARTICLE 7

COVENANTS

Section 7.1 Conduct of Business.

- (a) Smith covenants and agrees as to itself and its Subsidiaries that, after the date hereof and prior to the Effective Time, unless Schlumberger shall otherwise approve in writing (such approval not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed), and except as otherwise expressly contemplated by this Agreement or as required by Applicable Law, the business of Smith and its Subsidiaries shall be conducted in the ordinary course of business and, to the extent consistent therewith, Smith and its Subsidiaries shall use their respective reasonable best efforts to preserve their business organizations intact, maintain existing relations and goodwill with Governmental Entities, customers, suppliers, distributors, creditors, lessors, employees and business associates and keep available the services of the present employees and agents of Smith and its Subsidiaries; *provided* that no action by Smith or its Subsidiaries with respect to matters specifically addressed by Section 7.1(b) shall be deemed to be a breach of this sentence unless such action would constitute a breach of Section 7.1(b).
- (b) From the date of this Agreement until the Effective Time, except (A) as otherwise expressly contemplated by this Agreement, (B) as Schlumberger may approve in writing (such approval not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed), (C) as set forth in Section 7.1 of the Smith Disclosure Letter, or (D) as required by Applicable Law, Smith will not and will not permit any of its Subsidiaries to:

- (i) adopt any change in, or waive any provision of, its certificate of incorporation or bylaws or other applicable governing instruments, or adopt any change in, or waive any provision of, the Rights Agreement;
- (ii) merge or consolidate Smith or any of its Subsidiaries with any other person, except as permitted under Section 7.1(b)(viii) and except for any such transactions among wholly owned Subsidiaries of Smith that are not obligors or guarantors of third-party indebtedness;
- (iii) (1) authorize for issuance, issue or sell, pledge, dispose of or subject to any Lien or agree or commit to any of the foregoing in respect of, any shares of beneficial interest or shares of any class of capital stock or other equity interest of Smith or any Subsidiary or any options, warrants, convertible securities, stock appreciation rights, performance units, bonus stock, "phantom" stock rights, redemption rights, repurchase rights, agreements, arrangements, calls, commitments or other rights of any kind to acquire any such shares or any other equity interest, of Smith or any Subsidiary, other than issuances of shares of Smith Common Stock upon exercise of Smith Options outstanding on the date of this Agreement and except as permitted under Section 7.1(b)(iv); or (2) repurchase, redeem or otherwise acquire any securities or equity equivalents except in the ordinary course of business in connection with (x) the cashless exercise of Smith Options in accordance with the Smith Stock Plans, (y) the settlement of Smith Stock Incentive Awards or Smith Options, in each case, in order to satisfy withholding or exercise price obligations in accordance with the Smith Stock Plans, or (z) equity compensation grants permitted by Section 7.1(b)(iv);
- (iv) except to the extent required under any Smith Benefit Plan as in effect on the date of this Agreement or as required by Applicable Law, (1) increase the compensation (including bonus opportunities) or fringe benefits of any of its directors, executive officers or employees (except in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice with employees who are not parties to a change in control agreement, it being understood that this clause does not limit payment of annual bonuses or grants of equity compensation awards in the ordinary course of business to employees who are party to a change of control agreement), (2) grant any severance or termination pay, other than nominal severance to terminated employees, except in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, (3) make any new equity awards to any director, officer or employee, except in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, which equity awards (x) shall provide that the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement will not result in a change-in-control acceleration (but, except as set forth on Schedule 7.1(b)(iv)(3) of the Smith Disclosure Letter, may provide for an acceleration of vesting upon a severance-qualifying termination of employment subsequent to such consummation but prior to the applicable vesting date, and may, in the case of awards with performance vesting conditions, provide for a conversion upon such consummation solely into time-vesting at the target level) and (y) shall not be made in the form of shares of

restricted Smith Common Stock, (4) enter into or amend any employment, consulting, change-in-control or severance agreement or arrangement with any of its present, former or future directors, executive officers, or employees, except as necessary to effectuate the provisions of this Agreement or, except with respect to employees party to a change of control agreement or their direct reports, in the ordinary course of business (5) establish, adopt, enter into, freeze or amend in any material respect or terminate any Smith Benefit Plan or take any action to accelerate entitlement to benefits under any Smith Benefit Plan, in each such case, except as otherwise permitted pursuant to clauses (1), (2), (3) or (4) of this paragraph or as necessary to effectuate the provisions of this Agreement, *provided* that in no event may any tax gross-up or tax reimbursement feature be granted or made more favorable to any individual, (6) make any contribution to any Smith Benefit Plan, other than contributions required by Applicable Law or in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, (7) pay, accrue or certify performance level achievements at levels in excess of actually achieved performance in respect of any component of an incentive-based award, or amend or waive any performance or vesting criteria or accelerate vesting, exercisability, distribution, settlement or funding under any Smith Benefit Plan, except as required by the terms of the Smith Benefit Plans as in effect on the date hereof or as necessary to effectuate the provisions of this Agreement, (8) take any action with respect to salary, compensation, benefits or other terms and conditions of employment that would result in the holder of a change-in-control agreement having "good reason" to terminate employment and collect severance payments and benefits pursuant to such agreement, (9) terminate the employment of any holder of a change-in-control agreement other than for "cause" (within the meaning of such agreement); and (10) execute or amend any

(v) declare, set aside, make or pay any dividend or other distribution or payment (whether in cash, equity interests or property or any combination thereof) with respect to any shares of beneficial interest or shares of any class of capital stock or other equity interests of Smith or any of its Subsidiaries, except for (1) dividends by any direct or indirect Subsidiary only to Smith or any wholly owned Subsidiary of Smith in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, (2) pro rata dividends by any Subsidiary of Smith included in the Joint Venture, or (3) regular quarterly dividends on shares of Smith Common Stock (but not to exceed \$0.12 per share for each regular quarterly dividend) with declaration, record and payment dates reasonably consistent with Smith's past practice for the comparable quarter, it being agreed that declarations of dividends between the date hereof and the consummation of the Merger will provide that such dividend is not payable if the Merger is consummated prior to the relevant record date, (4) dividends or distributions required under the applicable organizational documents of such entity in effect on the date of this Agreement, or (5) dividends or distributions consistent with past practice with respect to the Subsidiaries that are listed in Section 7.1(b)(v) of the Smith Disclosure Letter;

- (vi) redeem, purchase or otherwise acquire, directly or indirectly, any of Smith's or any of its Subsidiaries' capital stock, or make any commitment for any such action other than pursuant to the Smith Stock Plans and the expiration of Smith Rights as contemplated by Section 7.14 and other than transactions between Smith and its wholly-owned Subsidiaries and transactions among Smith's wholly-owned Subsidiaries;
- (vii) sell, lease, license, subject to a Lien, encumber (including by the grant of any option thereon) or otherwise surrender, relinquish or dispose of any of the assets or properties of Smith or its Subsidiaries (including capital stock of Subsidiaries), except for (1) sales, leases, licenses or other dispositions of assets or properties with a fair market value not in excess of \$10 million in respect of any one asset or property and not in excess of \$50 million in the aggregate in 2010 and \$25 million in the aggregate in 2011, (2) sales of surplus or obsolete equipment, (3) sales, leases, licenses or other transfers between Smith and its wholly owned Subsidiaries or between those Subsidiaries, or (4) sales of inventory, products and services and recognition of "lost-in-hole" products in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice;
- (viii) acquire or agree to acquire by merging or consolidating with, or by purchasing an equity interest in or a substantial portion of the assets or properties of, or by any other manner, any business or any corporation, partnership, association or other business organization or division thereof, in each case (1) for consideration in excess of \$30 million in respect of any one acquisition or for aggregate consideration for all such acquisitions in excess of \$100 million in 2010 and \$30 million in the aggregate in 2011 or (2) where a filing under the HSR Act or any non-U.S. competition, antitrust or premerger notification laws is required;
- (ix) enter into any joint venture, partnership or other similar arrangement or make any loan, capital contribution or advance to or investment in any other person (other than Smith or any wholly owned Subsidiary of Smith) other than in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice in an amount not exceeding \$20 million individually or \$50 million in the aggregate in 2010 and \$15 million in the aggregate in 2011;
- (x) sell, transfer or license to any person, covenant not to sue regarding, or adversely amend or modify any rights (1) to any material Intellectual Property Rights of Smith or any of its Subsidiaries or (2) distribute, license or co-promote products or services (including products or services under development) of Smith or any of its Subsidiaries or products or services (including products or services under development) licensed by Smith or any of its Subsidiaries;
 - (xi) make any changes with respect to financial accounting policies or procedures, except as required by changes in GAAP or by Applicable Law;

(xii) except to the extent required by Applicable Law, (A) make or rescind any election relating to Taxes, including elections for any and all joint ventures, partnerships, limited liability companies, working interests or other investments where it has the capacity to make such binding election, (B) settle or compromise any claim, action, suit, litigation, proceeding, arbitration, investigation, audit or controversy (including by entering into any closing agreement) (each, a "**Proceeding**"), relating to Taxes for an amount that exceeds the amount reserved, in accordance with GAAP, with respect thereto, (C) change any of its methods of reporting any item for Tax purposes from those employed in the preparation of its tax returns for the most recent taxable year for which a return has been filed, (D) change any annual tax accounting period, (E) surrender any right to claim any Tax refund, or (F) file any amended tax return, in each case of clauses (A) through (F), if such action would have an adverse effect on Smith and its Subsidiaries that is material;

(xiii) settle or compromise any Proceeding, enter into any consent, decree, injunction or similar restraint or form of equitable relief in settlement of any material Proceeding or waive, release or assign any rights or claims for amounts (net of any reasonably expected insurance or indemnification proceeds) greater than \$5 million individually or \$25 million in the aggregate in 2010 and \$12.5 million in the aggregate in 2011;

(xiv) create, incur or assume any Debt or guarantee any Debt of another person, issue or sell any debt securities or calls, options, warrants or other rights to acquire any debt securities of Smith or any of its Subsidiaries, guarantee any debt securities of another person, enter into any "keep well" or other Contract to maintain any financial condition of another person or enter into any arrangement having the economic effect of any of the foregoing, except (1) indebtedness for borrowed money incurred under Smith's existing credit facility, working capital facilities, or other existing similar lines of credit in the ordinary course of business, (2) other Debt not to exceed \$50 million in the aggregate in 2010 and \$25 million in the aggregate in 2011, and (3) intercompany Debt among Smith and its Subsidiaries in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice;

(xv) repurchase, repay, defease or pre-pay any Debt, except (1) repayments in the ordinary course of business, (2) repayments of mortgage indebtedness secured by one or more real property assets of Smith or any of its Subsidiaries in accordance with their terms, as such loans become due and payable or payment of Debt in accordance with its terms or (3) repayments of indebtedness by a Subsidiary of Smith to Smith or its wholly-owned Subsidiaries; or (except with respect any Proceeding) pay, discharge or satisfy any material claims, liabilities or obligations (absolute, accrued, contingent or otherwise), except in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice;

(xvi) mortgage or pledge, or suffer to exist any Liens (other than Permitted Liens) on, any material asset or property, other than sales of assets or

properties, and at or above the price, identified in Section 7.1(b)(xvi) of the Smith Disclosure Letter;

(xvii) except for capital expenditures for items and in the amounts (other than immaterial changes) set forth in the capital budget included in Section 7.1(b)(xvii) of the Smith Disclosure Letter, make, authorize or enter into any commitment for any capital expenditures in excess of \$25 million in the aggregate in 2010 and \$12.5 million in the aggregate in 2011;

(xviii) other than in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, (1) modify, amend or terminate or waive any rights under any Material Contract, (2) enter into any successor agreement to an expiring Material Contract that changes the terms of the expiring Material Contract in a way that is materially adverse to Smith and its Subsidiaries or (3) enter into any new agreement that would have been a contract specified in paragraphs (vi), (vii), (ix) (unless permitted by Section 7.1(b)(xiv) or by Section 7.1(b)(xiv)) or (x) of Section 5.21 if it were entered into at or prior to the date hereof;

(xix) enter into, renew or extend any agreements or arrangements that limit or otherwise restrict Smith or any of its Subsidiaries or any of their respective affiliates or any successor thereto, or that would reasonably be expected to, after the Effective Time, limit or restrict Schlumberger or any of its affiliates (including the Surviving Entity) or any successor thereto, from engaging or competing in any line of business or in any geographic area during any period;

(xx) adopt or implement a plan of complete or partial liquidation, dissolution, restructuring, recapitalization or other reorganization of Smith or any of its Subsidiaries;

(xxi) (1) adjust, reclassify, split, combine, subdivide or repurchase, redeem or otherwise acquire, directly or indirectly, any shares of capital stock or other equity interest of Smith or any of its Subsidiaries or securities convertible or exchangeable into or exercisable for any shares of capital stock or other equity interest of Smith or any of its Subsidiaries (except for any adjustment, reclassifications, stock splits, repurchases, redemptions or other acquisitions by Smith or any of its wholly owned Subsidiaries of capital stock or equity interests of wholly owned Subsidiaries of Smith), or (2) purchase or otherwise acquire, directly or indirectly, any of the capital stock of Schlumberger or securities convertible or exchangeable into or exercisable for any shares of capital stock of Schlumberger;

(xxii) release or permit the release of any person from, waive or permit the waiver of any right under, fail to enforce any provision of, or grant any consent or make any election under, any confidentiality, "standstill" or similar agreement to which Smith or any of its Subsidiaries is a party or take any action to exempt any person other than Merger Sub and its affiliates from the restrictions

on "business combinations" contained in Section 203 of the DGCL or the effects set forth in the Rights Agreement;

- (xxiii) take any action that would, or would reasonably be expected to, (1) result in the failure of a condition set forth in Section 8.1 or Section 8.3, or (2) prevent, materially delay or materially impede the consummation of the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement;
- (xxiv) take any action that would reasonably be expected to delay materially or adversely affect the ability of any of the parties hereto to obtain any consent, authorization, order or approval of any Governmental Entity or the expiration of any waiting period under applicable antitrust laws required to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement; or

(xxv) agree or commit to do any of the foregoing.

- (c) From the date of this Agreement until the Effective Time, except (A) as otherwise expressly contemplated by this Agreement, (B) as Smith may approve in writing (such approval not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed), (C) as set forth in Section 7.1 of the Schlumberger Disclosure Letter, or (D) as required by Applicable Law, Schlumberger and Merger Sub will not and will not permit any of their respective Subsidiaries to:
 - (i) adopt or propose any change in, or waive any provision of, Schlumberger's articles of incorporation or bylaws or other applicable governing instruments, except for such changes or waivers as would not disproportionately adversely affect a holder of Smith Common Stock relative to a holder of Schlumberger Common Stock or delay or impede the Merger or the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement;
 - (ii) acquire or agree to acquire by merging or consolidating with, or by purchasing an equity interest in or a substantial portion of the assets or properties of, or by any other manner, any business or any corporation, partnership, association or other business organization or division thereof, in each case where a filing under the HSR Act or any non-U.S. competition, antitrust or premerger notification laws is required and would reasonably be expected to prevent or materially delay the consummation of the Merger by the Termination Date;
 - (iii) except in each case as would not disproportionately adversely affect a holder of Smith Common Stock relative to a holder of Schlumberger Common Stock or delay or impede the Merger or the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement, adjust, reclassify, split, combine, subdivide or redeem, directly or indirectly, any shares of capital stock or other equity interest of Schlumberger or securities convertible or exchangeable into or exercisable for any shares of capital stock or other equity interest of Schlumberger, or adopt or implement a plan of complete or partial liquidation, dissolutions, restructuring, recapitalization or other reorganization of Schlumberger;

- (iv) declare, set aside, make or pay any dividend or other distribution or payment (whether in cash, equity interests or property or any combination thereof) with respect to shares of Schlumberger Common Stock, except for (1) regular quarterly dividends on shares of Schlumberger's Common Stock with declaration, record and payment dates reasonably consistent with Schlumberger's past practice for the comparable quarter or (2) dividends of equity interests or property for which an adjustment to the Exchange Ratio has been effected pursuant to Section 4.3;
- (v) take any action that would, or would reasonably be expected to, (A) result in the failure of any condition set forth in Article 8, or (B) prevent, materially delay or materially impede the consummation of the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement;
- (vi) take any action that would reasonably be expected to delay materially or adversely affect the ability of any of the parties hereto to obtain any consent, authorization, order or approval of any Governmental Entity or the expiration of any waiting period under applicable antitrust laws required to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement; or
 - (vii) agree or commit to do any of the foregoing.

Section 7.2 *Smith Stockholders Meeting*. As promptly as reasonably practicable after the registration statement on Form S-4 to be filed with the SEC by Schlumberger in connection with the issuance of shares of Schlumberger Common Stock in the Merger (with any amendments or supplements thereto, the "Form S-4") is declared effective under the Securities Act, Smith shall (i) duly call and give notice of a meeting of its stockholders (the "Smith Stockholders Meeting") for the purpose of obtaining the Smith Stockholder Approval, (ii) use its reasonable best efforts to cause the proxy materials to be included in and constituting part of the Form S-4 (with any amendments or supplements thereto, the "Proxy Statement/Prospectus") to be mailed to Smith's stockholders as soon as practicable after the Form S-4 is declared effective under the Securities Act, (iii) include the Smith Recommendation in the Proxy Statement/Prospectus; *provided*, *however*, that the Smith Board shall not be required to make such Smith Recommendation to the extent that the Smith Board has complied with the requirements of Section 7.3(b), and (iv) convene and hold the Smith Stockholders Meeting for the purpose of obtaining the Smith Stockholder Approval. Smith shall otherwise coordinate and cooperate with Schlumberger and its affiliates with respect to the timing of the Smith Stockholders Meeting and will otherwise comply with all legal requirements applicable to the Smith Stockholders Meeting.

Section 7.3 No Solicitation.

(a) Smith shall not, and shall cause its Subsidiaries not to, and shall direct and use its reasonable best efforts to cause its and its Subsidiaries' respective officers, directors, employees, investment bankers, consultants, attorneys, accountants, advisors, agents and other representatives (with respect to any person, the foregoing persons are referred to herein as such person's "**Representatives**") not to, directly or indirectly, (i) take any action to solicit, initiate,

knowingly encourage or knowingly facilitate the making, submission or announcement of any Acquisition Proposal (including by amending, or granting any waiver under, the Rights Agreement, as applicable) or any inquiry with respect thereto, or engage in, continue or otherwise participate in discussions or negotiations with any person with respect thereto (except to notify such person of the existence of the provisions of this Section 7.3), (ii) furnish any nonpublic information or afford access to properties, books or records to any person that has made or, to the knowledge of Smith, is considering making, any Acquisition Proposal, (iii) approve or recommend, or propose to approve or recommend, or execute or enter into any letter of intent, agreement in principle, merger agreement, stock purchase agreement, asset purchase agreement or stock exchange, or option agreement, relating to an Acquisition Proposal (other than confidentiality agreements contemplated by this Section 7.3), or (iv) propose publicly or agree to do any of the foregoing.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, prior to (but not after) the date of the Smith Stockholder Approval, Smith may, directly or indirectly through its Representatives (A) furnish information and access, but only in response to a written request for information or access, to any person making an Acquisition Proposal to the Smith Board after the date hereof which was not solicited, initiated, knowingly encouraged or knowingly facilitated by Smith or any of its affiliates or any Representative of Smith or any of its Subsidiaries on or after the date hereof and (B) may participate in discussions and negotiate with such person concerning any such unsolicited Acquisition Proposal, if and only if, in any such case set forth in clause (A) or (B) of this sentence, (i) Smith has not breached this Section 7.3(a) in any material respect with respect to such Acquisition Proposal, (ii) the Smith Board concludes in good faith, after receipt of the advice of a financial advisor of nationally recognized reputation, that such Acquisition Proposal is reasonably likely to result in a Superior Proposal, and (iii) Smith receives from the person making such an Acquisition Proposal an executed confidentiality agreement the material terms of which, as they relate to confidentiality, are (without regard to the terms of such Acquisition Proposal) in all material respects (x) no less favorable to Smith and (y) no less restrictive to the person making such Acquisition Proposal than those contained in the Confidentiality Agreement dated April 14, 2009 between Schlumberger and Smith (the "Confidentiality Agreement") and any information provided to such person has previously been provided to Schlumberger or is provided to Schlumberger concurrently with its provision to such person.

(b) Except as expressly permitted by this Section 7.3(b), the Smith Board shall recommend approval and adoption of this Agreement and the Merger by Smith's stockholders, and unless permitted by this Section 7.3(b), neither the Smith Board nor any committee thereof shall (i) fail to make, withdraw, modify or qualify, or propose publicly to withhold, withdraw, modify or qualify, in any manner adverse to Schlumberger or its affiliates, the approval of this Agreement, the Merger or the Smith Recommendation, except for notice provided to Schlumberger with respect to such Acquisition Proposal and Smith's views thereof prior to any definitive Change in Recommendation (any of the foregoing, a "Change in Recommendation") or (ii) approve, endorse or recommend, or propose publicly to approve, endorse or recommend, any Acquisition Proposal. For purposes of this Agreement, a Change in Recommendation shall include any approval, endorsement or recommendation (or public proposal to approve, endorse or recommend), by the Smith Board or any committee thereof of an Acquisition Proposal, but shall not include any notice provided to Schlumberger with respect to

such Acquisition Proposal and Smith's views thereof prior to any definitive Change in Recommendation.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Smith Board shall be permitted not to recommend to Smith's stockholders that they give the Smith Stockholder Approval, to withhold, withdraw, modify or qualify, or propose to publicly withhold, withdraw, modify or qualify, in a manner adverse to Schlumberger or its affiliates the Smith Recommendation, or to approve, endorse or recommend, or propose publicly to approve, endorse or recommend, any Acquisition Proposal, only if and to the extent that all of the following conditions are met: (i) the Smith Stockholder Approval has not been obtained; (ii) the Smith Board determines in good faith, after consulting with outside legal counsel, that failure to so withhold, withdraw, modify or qualify the Smith Recommendation would be inconsistent with the directors' exercise of their fiduciary duties to stockholders under Applicable Law; and (iii) before taking any such action, Smith promptly gives Schlumberger three business days written notice advising Schlumberger of the decision of the Smith Board to take such action provided, however, that notwithstanding any Change in Recommendation, unless this Agreement is terminated in accordance with the terms hereof, Smith shall nevertheless submit this Agreement and the Merger to the stockholders of Smith for the purpose of obtaining the Smith Stockholder Approval at the Smith Stockholders Meeting and nothing contained herein shall be deemed to relieve Smith of such obligation, unless Schlumberger otherwise directs Smith in writing or this Agreement shall have been terminated in accordance with its terms prior to the Smith Stockholders Meeting. In addition, notwithstanding the foregoing, Smith may terminate this Agreement, upon payment of the Smith Termination Fee in accordance with Section 9.5(a), in order to enter into any agreement, understanding or arrangement providing for an Acquisition Proposal if all of the following conditions are met: (x) the Smith Stockholder Approval has not been obtained, (y) Smith gives Schlumberger written notice at least three business days prior to taking such action, which notice advises Schlumberger of the intention of the Smith Board to take such action and such notice specifies the material terms and conditions of such Acquisition Proposal and identifies the person making such Acquisition Proposal (provided that if there are any subsequent changes in the financial terms of such proposal, Smith will not take any such action prior to the second business day following a subsequent notice to Schlumberger of such changes) (it being understood that there may be multiple extensions); and (z) the Smith Board determines in good faith that such Acquisition Proposal constitutes a Superior Proposal and does not revoke such determination notwithstanding any revisions to the terms of the Merger or this Agreement proposed by Schlumberger after being notified pursuant to clause (y).

(c) In the event Smith receives an Acquisition Proposal, or any request for nonpublic information relating to Smith or any Subsidiary of Smith or for access to the properties, books or records of Smith or any Subsidiary of Smith by any person that has made or, to the knowledge of Smith, would reasonably be expected to make, an Acquisition Proposal, Smith will (i) as promptly as practicable (and in no event later than 24 hours after receipt of any Acquisition Proposal or request) notify (which notice shall be provided orally and confirmed in writing and shall identify the person making such Acquisition Proposal or request and set forth the material terms thereof, to the extent known) Schlumberger thereof and (ii) will keep Schlumberger reasonably and promptly informed of the status and material terms of (including with respect to changes to the status or material terms of) any such Acquisition Proposal or request.

- (d) Subject to Schlumberger's rights under Article 9, nothing in this Section 7.3 shall prohibit the Smith Board from taking and disclosing to Smith's stockholders a position contemplated by Rule 14e-2(a), Rule 14d-9 or Item 1012(a) of Regulation M-A promulgated under the Exchange Act, or other Applicable Law, if the Smith Board, after consultation with outside legal counsel, determines in good faith that the failure to so disclose such position would reasonably be expected to be inconsistent with the directors' exercise of their fiduciary obligations to Smith's stockholders under Applicable Law; provided, however, that any such disclosure that relates to an Acquisition Proposal shall be deemed to be a Change in Recommendation unless the Smith Board reaffirms the Smith Recommendation in such disclosure.
- (e) Smith (i) shall, and shall cause its Subsidiaries to, immediately cease and cause to be terminated and shall use reasonable best efforts to cause its and their Representatives to, immediately cease and cause to be terminated, all discussions and negotiations, if any, that have taken place prior to the date hereof with any persons with respect to any Acquisition Proposal and (ii) shall promptly request each person, if any, that has executed a confidentiality agreement within the 12 months prior to the date hereof in connection with its consideration of any Acquisition Proposal to return or destroy all confidential information heretofore furnished to such person by or on behalf of it or any of its Subsidiaries.

(f) For purposes of this Agreement:

"Acquisition Proposal" means any bona fide written offer or proposal for, or any bona fide written indication of interest in, any (i) direct or indirect acquisition or purchase of any business or assets of Smith or any of its Subsidiaries that, individually or in the aggregate, constitutes 20% or more of the net revenues, net income or assets of Smith and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, (ii) direct or indirect acquisition or purchase of 20% or more of any class of equity securities of Smith, (iii) tender offer or exchange offer that, if consummated, would result in any person beneficially owning 20% or more of any class of equity securities of Smith, (iv) merger, consolidation, business combination, joint venture, partnership, recapitalization, liquidation, dissolution or similar transaction involving Smith or any of its Subsidiaries whose business constitutes 20% or more of the net revenue, net income or assets of Smith and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or (v) the declaration or payment of an extraordinary dividend (whether in cash or in property) by Smith, other than the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

"Superior Proposal" means any bona fide written Acquisition Proposal for or in respect of at least a majority of the outstanding shares of Smith Common Stock or all or substantially all of Smith's and its Subsidiaries' assets (A) on terms that the Smith Board determines in its good faith judgment (after consultation with a financial advisor of nationally recognized reputation) are more favorable to Smith and its stockholders than the Merger and the other transactions contemplated hereby and (B) that constitutes a transaction that is reasonably likely to be consummated on the terms so proposed, taking into account all legal, financial, regulatory and other aspects of such proposal.

(g) Smith agrees that it will take the necessary steps promptly to inform its Subsidiaries and its officers, directors, investment bankers, consultants, attorneys, accountants, agents and other representatives of the obligations undertaken in this Section 7.3.

Section 7.4 Reasonable Best Efforts. Subject to Section 7.2 and Section 7.6, each of the parties hereto shall use its reasonable best efforts to take, or cause to be taken, all actions, and to do, or cause to be done, and to assist and cooperate with the other parties in doing, all things necessary, proper or advisable under Applicable Law to consummate and make effective the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement as promptly as practicable, including (i) the obtaining of all necessary actions or nonactions, waivers, authorizations, expirations or terminations of waiting periods, clearances, consents and approvals from Governmental Entities and the making of all necessary registrations and filings and the taking of all steps as may be necessary to obtain an approval or waiver from, or to avoid an action or proceeding by, any Governmental Entity, (ii) the obtaining of all necessary consents, approvals or waivers from third parties, (iii) the defending of any lawsuits or other legal proceedings, whether judicial or administrative, challenging this Agreement or the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, (iv) the delivery of an officer's certificate to tax counsel setting forth facts which, in the case of a certificate provided by an officer of Schlumberger, relate to Schlumberger and its Subsidiaries, and which are relevant to any tax opinion that may be reasonably required in connection with the filing of the Form S-4 or the delivery of the legal opinions described in Sections 8.2(c) and 8.3(b), and (v) the execution and delivery of any additional instruments necessary to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

Section 7.5 Preparation of Proxy Statement/Prospectus.

- (a) As promptly as reasonably practicable following the date hereof, Schlumberger and Smith shall prepare and file with the SEC the Proxy Statement/Prospectus, and Schlumberger shall prepare and file the Form S-4. The Proxy Statement/Prospectus will be included in and will constitute a part of the Form S-4 as Schlumberger's prospectus. The Form S-4 and the Proxy Statement/Prospectus shall comply as to form in all material respects with the applicable provisions of the Securities Act and the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations thereunder.
- (b) Each of Schlumberger and Smith shall use reasonable best efforts to have the Form S-4 declared effective by the SEC as promptly as practicable after the date hereof and to keep the Form S-4 effective as long as is necessary to consummate the Merger and the other transactions contemplated thereby.
- (c) Schlumberger and Smith shall, as promptly as practicable after receipt thereof, provide the other party copies of any written comments, and advise the other party of any oral comments, received from the SEC with respect to the Proxy Statement/Prospectus. Schlumberger shall provide Smith with a reasonable opportunity to review and comment on any amendment or supplement to the Form S-4 and any communications prior to filing such with the SEC, and will promptly provide Smith with a copy of all such filings and communications made with the SEC.

- (d) Schlumberger shall take any action (other than qualifying to do business in any jurisdiction in which it is not now so qualified or to file a general consent to service of process) required to be taken under any applicable state securities laws in connection with the issuance of Schlumberger Common Stock in connection with the Merger, and Smith shall furnish all information concerning Smith and the holders of Smith Common Stock as may be reasonably requested in connection with any such action. Each party shall advise the other party, promptly after it receives notice thereof, of the time when the Form S-4 has become effective, the issuance of any stop order, the suspension of the qualification of the Schlumberger Common Stock issuable in connection with the Merger for offering or sale in any jurisdiction, or any request by the SEC for amendment of the Proxy Statement/Prospectus or the Form S-4.
- (e) If at any time prior to the Effective Time any information relating to Schlumberger or Smith, or any of their respective affiliates, officers or directors, should be discovered by Schlumberger or Smith which should be set forth in an amendment or supplement to any of the Form S-4 or the Proxy Statement/Prospectus so that any of such documents would not include any misstatement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, the party that discovers such information shall promptly notify the other party hereto and, to the extent required by law, rules or regulations, an appropriate amendment or supplement describing such information shall be filed promptly with the SEC and disseminated to the stockholders of Smith.

Section 7.6 Filings, Etc.

- (a) Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, each of the parties hereto shall use its reasonable best efforts to take, or cause to be taken, all actions, and to do, or cause to be done, and to assist and cooperate with the other parties in doing, all things necessary, proper or advisable under Applicable Law to consummate and make effective the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement as promptly as practicable, including (i) the obtaining of all necessary actions or nonactions, waivers, authorizations, expirations or terminations of waiting periods, clearances, consents and approvals from Governmental Entities and the making of all necessary registrations and filings and the taking of all steps as may be necessary to obtain an approval or waiver from, or to avoid an action or proceeding by, any Governmental Entity, (ii) the obtaining of all necessary consents, approvals or waivers from third parties, (iii) the defending of any lawsuits or other legal proceedings, whether judicial or administrative, challenging this Agreement or the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and (iv) the execution and delivery of any additional instruments necessary to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.
- (b) Subject to Section 7.6(c) and the other terms and conditions herein provided and without limiting the foregoing, Smith and Schlumberger shall (and shall cause their respective Subsidiaries to):
 - (i) make their respective required filings (and filings considered by Schlumberger to be advisable) under the HSR Act, the EC Merger Regulation and any other Regulatory Laws (and shall share equally all filing fees incident

thereto), which filings shall be made promptly, but in no event later than 10 days after the date hereof with respect to the filing under the HSR Act, and thereafter shall promptly make any other required submissions under the HSR Act or other such laws;

- (ii) use their reasonable best efforts to cooperate with one another in (A) determining which filings are required (or considered by Schlumberger to be advisable) to be made prior to the Effective Time with, and which consents, approvals, permits or authorizations are required to be obtained prior to the Effective Time from, Governmental Entities in connection with the execution and delivery of this Agreement, and the consummation of the Merger and the other transactions contemplated hereby and (B) timely making all such filings;
- (iii) promptly notify each other of any communication concerning this Agreement, the Merger or the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement to that party from any Governmental Entity and consult with and permit the other party to review in advance any proposed communication concerning this Agreement, the Merger or the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement to any Governmental Entity;
- (iv) not agree to participate in any meeting or substantive discussion (including, without limitation, any discussion relating to the antitrust merits, any potential remedies, commitments or undertakings, the timing of any waivers, consents, approvals, permits, orders or authorizations, and any agreement regarding the timing of consummation of the Merger) with any Governmental Entity relating to any filings or investigation concerning this Agreement, the Merger or the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement unless it consults with the other party and its representatives in advance and invites the other party's representatives to attend unless the Governmental Entity prohibits such attendance;
- (v) promptly furnish the other party, subject in appropriate cases to appropriate confidentiality agreements to limit disclosure to outside lawyers and consultants, with draft copies prior to submission to a Governmental Entity, with reasonable time and opportunity to comment, of all correspondence, filings and communications (and memoranda setting forth the substance thereof) that they, their affiliates or their respective representatives intend to submit to any Governmental Entity, it being understood that correspondence, filings and communications received from any Governmental Entity shall be immediately provided to the other party upon receipt;
- (vi) promptly furnish the other party, subject in appropriate cases to appropriate confidentiality agreements to limit disclosure to outside lawyers and consultants, with such necessary information and reasonable assistance as such other party and its affiliates may reasonably request in connection with their preparation of necessary filings, registrations or submissions of information to

any Governmental Entity, including, without limitation, any filings necessary or appropriate under the provisions of Regulatory Laws; and

(vii) deliver to the other party's outside counsel complete copies of all documents furnished to any Governmental Entity as part of any filing.

- (c) Schlumberger shall be entitled to direct the antitrust defense of the transaction contemplated by this Agreement in any investigation or litigation by, or negotiations with, any Governmental Entity or other person relating to the Merger or regulatory filings under applicable Regulatory Law, subject to the provisions of Section 7.6(a), Section 7.6(b), Section 7.6(d) and Section 7.6(e). Smith shall not make any offer, acceptance or counter-offer to or otherwise engage in negotiations or discussions with any Governmental Entity with respect to any proposed settlement, consent decree, commitment or remedy, or, in the event of litigation, discovery, admissibility of evidence, timing or scheduling, except as specifically requested by or agreed with Schlumberger. Smith shall use its reasonable best efforts to provide full and effective support of Schlumberger in all material respects in all such negotiations and discussions to the extent requested by Schlumberger.
- (d) Without limiting the foregoing, Schlumberger and Merger Sub shall take all such action as may be necessary to resolve such objections, if any, that the United States Federal Trade Commission, the Antitrust Division of the United States Department of Justice, the European Commission, state antitrust enforcement authorities or competition authorities of any other nation or other jurisdiction, or any other person, may assert under Regulatory Laws with respect to the transactions contemplated hereby, and to avoid or eliminate, and minimize the impact of, each and every impediment under Regulatory Laws that may be asserted by any Governmental Entity with respect to the Merger so as to enable the Closing to occur as soon as reasonably possible (and in any event no later than the Termination Date); provided, however, that nothing contained in this Agreement requires Schlumberger, Merger Sub or Smith to take, or cause to be taken, any action with respect to any of the assets, businesses or product lines of Smith or any of its Subsidiaries, or of Schlumberger or any of its Subsidiaries (including the Surviving Entity), or any combination thereof, if such action would exceed the Detriment Limit. For purposes of this Agreement, the "Detriment Limit" would be exceeded if the assets, businesses or product lines required to be divested or held separate in order to obtain actions or nonactions, waivers, authorizations, expirations or terminations of waiting periods, clearances, consents and approvals from Governmental Entities under Regulatory Laws includes assets, business or product lines other than (i) the assets, businesses and product lines acquired by Smith in connection with its acquisition of W-H Energy Services, Inc. or corresponding assets, businesses or product lines of Schlumberger or its Subsidiaries overlapping with the assets, businesses or product lines acquired by Smith in connection with its acquisition of W-H Energy Services, Inc., and (ii) other assets, businesses and product lines accounting for not more than \$190 million of revenue of either Schlumberger or Smith for the 12 months ending December 31, 2009, excluding from such calculation (A) assets, businesses or product lines described in clause (i) of this Section 7.6(d), and (B) assets, businesses or product lines of the Wilson business unit of Smith (which assets, businesses or product lines may be required to be divested or held separate and if so will not be deemed to exceed the Detriment Limit). If requested by Schlumberger, Smith will agree to any action contemplated by this Section 7.6(b), provided that any such agreement or action is conditioned on the consummation of the Merger. The parties

agree that the calculation of revenue shall be measured by reference to the lowest such revenue of Schlumberger or Smith for each such overlapping asset, business or product line so required to be divested, regardless of which asset, business or product line Schlumberger actually divests. The foregoing agreement in this section is made solely to facilitate the closing of the Merger and does not constitute a representation or admission that the Merger, if consummated without any modification, would violate any Regulatory Laws or that agreeing to the divestitures, hold separate conditions or other restrictions permitted herein or suggested by any person or authority acting under any Regulatory Law would not be harmful to the parties.

- (e) Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, Schlumberger shall have the right, but not the obligation, to oppose by refusing to consent to, through litigation or otherwise any request, attempt or demand by any Governmental Entity or other person for any divestiture, hold separate condition or any other restriction with respect to any assets, businesses or product lines of either Schlumberger or Smith and shall have the obligation to defend litigation instituted by such Governmental Entity or other person with respect to the legality of the Merger under applicable Regulatory Laws. In the event Schlumberger exercises its rights to oppose through litigation, including any appeals, a request, attempt or demand by any Governmental Entity or other person as provided in the preceding sentence, and (i) such proceedings conclude prior to the Termination Date with a decree, injunction or order restricting or prohibiting the Merger or (ii) no decree, order or injunction has been issued in such proceedings prior to the Termination Date, then Schlumberger shall take such actions, in a timely manner, as are necessary to achieve the clearance or approval of the Governmental Entity or other person prior to the Termination Date, provided that Schlumberger shall not be required to take actions that would exceed the Detriment Limit. If there is no decree, order or injunction restricting or prohibiting the Merger, but the decision of a Governmental Entity in litigation contemplated by this Section 7.6(e) is under appeal, Schlumberger shall have the right to elect, and Smith shall have the obligation upon such election by Schlumberger, to proceed to close the Merger if the other conditions to Closing have been satisfied.
- (f) For purposes of this Agreement, "**Regulatory Laws**" means the Sherman Act, as amended, the Clayton Act, as amended, the HSR Act, the Federal Trade Commission Act, as amended, the EC Merger Regulation, and all other federal, state or foreign statutes, rules, regulations, orders, decrees, administrative and judicial doctrines and other Applicable Laws, including without limitation any antitrust, competition or trade regulation laws, that are designed or intended to prohibit, restrict or regulate actions having the purpose or effect of monopolization or restraint of trade or lessening competition through merger or acquisition.

Section 7.7 *Listing Application*. Schlumberger shall use its reasonable best efforts to cause the shares of Schlumberger Common Stock to be issued in the Merger and the shares of Schlumberger Common Stock to be reserved for issuance upon exercise of the Smith Options to be approved for listing on the NYSE, subject to official notice of issuance, prior to the Effective Time.

Section 7.8 Section 16 Matters. Prior to the Effective Time, each of Schlumberger and Smith shall take all such steps as may be required to cause any dispositions of Smith Common Stock (including derivative securities with respect to Smith Common Stock) or acquisitions of Schlumberger Common Stock (including derivative securities with respect to

Schlumberger Common Stock) resulting from the transactions contemplated by this Agreement by each individual who is subject to the reporting requirements of Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act with respect to Smith, to be exempt under Rule 16b-3 promulgated under the Exchange Act.

Section 7.9 Schlumberger Options and Stock Incentive Awards. As of the Closing Date, to the extent necessary to provide for registration of shares of Schlumberger Common Stock subject to a substituted Schlumberger Option or Schlumberger Stock Incentive Award, Schlumberger shall file with the SEC a registration statement on Form S-8 (or any successor form), a post-effective amendment on Form S-8 (or any successor form) to the Form S-4 (or any successor form), a post-effective amendment to Form S-3 (or any successor form), or such other registration statement or amendment as may be required to effect such registration with respect to such shares of Schlumberger Common Stock and shall use its reasonable best efforts to maintain such registration statement, including the current status of any related prospectus or prospectuses, for so long as such Schlumberger Options or Schlumberger Stock Incentive Awards remain outstanding.

Section 7.10 *Coordination of Dividends*. Smith shall coordinate with Schlumberger to designate the record dates for Smith's quarterly dividends to coincide with the record dates for Schlumberger's quarterly dividends.

Section 7.11 *Inspection*. From the date hereof to the Effective Time, each of Smith on the one hand, and Schlumberger and Merger Sub on the other hand, shall allow designated officers, attorneys, accountants and other representatives of the other access, at reasonable times, upon reasonable notice, to the records and files, correspondence, audits and properties, as well as to all information relating to commitments, contracts, titles and financial position, or otherwise pertaining to its and its Subsidiaries' business and affairs, including inspection of such properties; *provided* that no investigation pursuant to this Section 7.11 shall affect any representation or warranty given by it hereunder. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement or a party's provision of information or investigation pursuant to the preceding sentence, no party shall be deemed to make any representation or warranty except as expressly set forth in this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, neither Smith on the one hand, nor Schlumberger or Merger Sub on the other hand, shall be required to provide any information which it reasonably believes it may not provide to the other by reason of any Applicable Law, which constitutes information protected by attorney/client privilege, or which it is required to keep confidential by reason of contract or agreement with third parties. Each party shall use reasonable efforts to make reasonable and appropriate substitute disclosure arrangements under circumstances in which the restrictions of the preceding sentence apply. Each party agrees that it shall not, and shall cause its representatives not to, use any information obtained pursuant to this Section 7.11 shall be governed by the Confidentiality Agreement.

Section 7.12 *Publicity*. Schlumberger and Smith shall, unless otherwise required by Applicable Law or by obligations pursuant to any listing agreement with or rules of any securities exchange, consult with each other before issuing any press release or, to the extent practical, otherwise making any public statement or communication with respect to this Agreement, the Merger or the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement. In addition to

the foregoing, except to the extent disclosed in or consistent with the Proxy Statement/Prospectus in accordance with the provisions of Section 7.2, neither Schlumberger nor Smith shall issue any press release or otherwise make any public statement or disclosure concerning the other party or the other party's business, financial condition or results of operations without the consent of the other party, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. Schlumberger and Smith agree to issue a mutually acceptable joint press release announcing this Agreement.

Section 7.13 *Expenses*. Subject to Section 9.5, whether or not the Merger is consummated, all costs and expenses incurred in connection with this Agreement, the Merger and the other transactions contemplated hereby shall be paid by the party incurring such expenses, except as otherwise agreed in writing by the parties, including the costs of any economists or other experts utilized by outside counsel in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

Section 7.14 *Rights Agreement*. Prior to the Effective Time, the Smith Board shall take any action (including, as necessary, amending or terminating (but with respect to termination, only as of immediately prior to the Effective Time) the Rights Agreement) necessary so that (a) none of the execution and delivery of this Agreement, the conversion of shares of Smith Common Stock into the right to receive the Merger Consideration in accordance with this Agreement, and the consummation of the Merger or any other transaction contemplated by this Agreement hereby will cause (i) the Smith Rights to become exercisable under the Rights Agreement, (ii) Schlumberger or any of its affiliates to be deemed an "Acquiring Person" (as defined in the Rights Agreement), (iii) the provisions of Section 11 or Section 13 of the Rights Agreement to become applicable to any such event or (iv) the "Distribution Date" or the "Shares Acquisition Date" (each as defined in the Rights Agreement) to occur upon any such event, and (b) the "Final Expiration Date" (as defined in the Rights Agreement) of the Smith Rights will occur immediately prior to the Effective Time so that the Smith Rights will expire immediately prior to the Effective Time. Without the prior written consent of Schlumberger, neither the Smith Board nor Smith shall take any other action to terminate the Rights Agreement, redeem the Smith Rights, cause any person not to be or become an "Acquiring Person" or otherwise amend the Rights Agreement in a manner, or take any other action under the Rights Agreement, adverse to Schlumberger or its affiliates.

Section 7.15 *State Takeover Laws*. If any "fair price," "moratorium," "business combination," or "control share acquisition" statute or other similar statute or regulation is or shall become applicable to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, Smith and the Smith Board shall use all reasonable efforts to grant such approvals and take such actions as are necessary so that the transactions contemplated hereby may be consummated as promptly as practicable on the terms contemplated hereby and shall otherwise act to minimize the effects of any such statute or regulation on the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

Section 7.16 *Stockholder Litigation*. Smith shall give Schlumberger the opportunity to participate in the defense or settlement of any stockholder litigation against Smith and/or its directors or officers relating to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. Smith agrees that it shall not settle or offer to settle any litigation commenced on or after the date hereof against Smith or any of its directors or officers by any stockholder of Smith relating to this Agreement, the Merger, any other transaction contemplated by this Agreement or otherwise,

without the prior written consent of Schlumberger (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed).

Section 7.17 Indemnification and Insurance.

- (a) From and after the Effective Time, Schlumberger and the Surviving Entity (i) shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless each person who is, or at any time prior to the Effective Time has been, a director, officer or employee of Smith or any of its Subsidiaries and each person who is, or at any time prior to the Effective Time, served at the request of Smith as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation or of a partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, including service with respect to employee benefit plans (individually, an "Indemnified Party" and, collectively, the "Indemnified Parties") against all expense, liability and loss (including attorneys' fees, judgments, fines, ERISA excise Taxes or penalties and amounts paid or to be paid in settlement) reasonably incurred or suffered by such person in connection with any action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (an "Action"), by reason of the fact that such Indemnified Party is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of Smith, any of its Subsidiaries or any such corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, to the fullest extent permitted by Applicable Law, and (ii) without limitation to clause (i), to the fullest extent permitted by Applicable Law, shall also advance expenses as incurred to the same such extent; provided that the person to whom fees and expenses are advanced shall, if required by Applicable Law, provide an undertaking to repay such advances if it is ultimately determined that such person is not entitled to indemnification; and provided, further, that the Surviving Entity shall not be required to pay the fees and expenses of more than one counsel (which counsel shall be reasonably acceptable to the Surviving Entity) in addition to local counsel for all Indemnified Parties in any single Action unless, in the good faith judgment of any of the Indemnified Parties, there is or may be a conflict of interest between two or more of such Indemnified
- (b) At or prior to the Effective Time, Smith may purchase a "tail" directors' and officers' liability insurance policy covering the Indemnified Parties who are or at any time prior to the Effective Time covered by Smith's existing directors' and officers' liability insurance policies for at least six years after the Effective Time on terms no less advantageous to the Indemnified Parties than such existing insurance, *provided* that the premium thereof shall not exceed the amount specified in Section 7.17(a) of the Smith Disclosure Letter. If Smith does not purchase such a policy, then for a period of six years after the Effective Time, the Surviving Entity shall cause to be maintained officers' and directors' liability insurance covering the Indemnified Parties who are, or at any time prior to the Effective Time were, covered by Smith's existing officers' and directors' liability insurance policies on terms substantially no less advantageous to the Indemnified Parties than such existing insurance, *provided* that the Surviving Entity shall not be required to pay annual premiums in excess of 300% of the last annual premium paid by Smith prior to the date hereof (the amount of which premium is set forth in Section 7.17(b)(2) of the Smith Disclosure Letter), but in such case shall purchase as much coverage as reasonably practicable for such amount. In either case, Schlumberger and the Surviving Entity will maintain such policies in full force and effect and honor the obligations thereunder.

(c) In the event Schlumberger or the Surviving Entity or any of their respective successors or assigns (i) consolidates with or merges into any other person and shall not be the continuing or surviving corporation or entity in such consolidation or merger or (ii) transfers all or substantially all of its properties and assets to any person, then and in either such case, proper provision shall be made so that the successors and assigns of the Surviving Entity shall assume the obligations set forth in this Section 7.17.

Section 7.18 Certain Benefits.

- (a) From and after the Effective Time, Schlumberger and its Subsidiaries (including the Surviving Entity) will honor in accordance with their terms all Smith Benefit Plans and compensation arrangements and agreements in accordance with their terms as in effect immediately prior to the Effective Time. For a period of one year following the Effective Time, Schlumberger shall provide, or shall cause to be provided, to each current and former employee of Smith and its Subsidiaries (the "Covered Employees") compensation and benefits that are no less favorable, in the aggregate, than the compensation and benefits provided to each such Covered Employee immediately prior to the Effective Time, excluding for purposes of this comparison any equity-based compensation; provided that Schlumberger agrees to provide equity compensation to Covered Employees substantially comparable to equity compensation provided to similarly situated employees of Schlumberger. For a period of one year following the Effective Time, Schlumberger shall provide, or shall cause to be provided, (i) to each Covered Employee who suffers a termination of employment severance benefits in accordance with the applicable severance plans, programs, agreements and arrangements of Smith as in effect immediately prior to the Effective Time (with full service credit for years of service with Smith and its Subsidiaries (and predecessors)) and (ii) to Covered Employees who are eligible for retiree welfare benefits immediately prior to the Effective Time, retiree welfare benefits that are no less favorable than those provided pursuant to the arrangements of Smith and its Subsidiaries as in effect immediately prior to the Effective Time.
- (b) For purposes of vesting, eligibility to participate and benefit accrual (other than for purposes of benefit accruals under any defined benefit pension plan, severance plan or program eligibility or retiree welfare eligibility under any retiree welfare plan sponsored by Schlumberger or its Subsidiaries (other than under plans sponsored by Smith and its Subsidiaries immediately prior to the Effective Date or a direct successor plan)) under the employee benefit plans of Schlumberger, the Surviving Entity and their Subsidiaries providing benefits to any Covered Employees after the Effective Time (the "New Plans"), each Covered Employee shall be credited with his or her years of service with Smith and its Subsidiaries (and predecessors) prior to the Effective Time, to the same extent as such Covered Employee was entitled, prior to the Effective Time, to credit for such service under any similar Smith employee benefit plan in which such Covered Employee participated or was eligible to participate immediately prior to the Effective Time (and to the extent there is no similar Smith plan, service as recognized for purposes of Smith's 401(k) Plan), provided that the foregoing shall not apply to the extent that its application would result in a duplication of benefits. For purposes of determining severance benefits under any New Plan providing severance benefits based on years of service (other than under an employment or change in control agreement) payable to a Covered Employee whose employment is terminated in circumstances eligible for severance benefits: (i) following the first anniversary of the Effective Time and on or prior to the third anniversary of the Effective Time,

severance benefits shall be based on the sum of (A) severance payable under the terms of the Smith severance arrangement applicable to such employee as in effect immediately prior to the Effective Time based on service with Smith and its Subsidiaries (and predecessors) up to the Effective Time and (B) severance payable under the relevant severance arrangement of Schlumberger or its applicable Subsidiary based on years of service with Schlumberger and its Subsidiaries following the Effective Time, (ii) on or following the fifth anniversary of the Effective Time, severance benefits shall be based on the severance payable under the relevant severance arrangement of Schlumberger or its applicable Subsidiary based on the sum of years of service with Smith and its Subsidiaries (and predecessors) prior to the Effective Time and years of service with Schlumberger and its Subsidiaries following the Effective Time and (iii) between the third and fifth anniversaries of the Effective Time, severance benefits shall be based on a formula which provides a ratable transition between the severance determined under clauses (i) and (ii) above. Following the first anniversary of the Effective Time, Covered Employees will be treated as new hires in any New Plan providing retiree welfare benefits, with service credited only from the period beginning with the Effective Time. In addition, and without limiting the generality of the foregoing: (i) each Covered Employee shall be immediately eligible to participate, without any waiting time, in any and all New Plans to the extent coverage under such New Plan is comparable to a Smith Benefit Plan in which such Covered Employee participated immediately prior to the Effective Time (such plans, collectively, the "Old Plans"); and (ii) for purposes of each New Plan providing medical, dental, pharmaceutical and/or vision benefits to any Covered Employee, the Surviving Entity shall cause all pre-existing condition exclusions and actively-at-work requirements of such New Plan to be waived for such employee and his or her covered dependents, unless such conditions would not have been waived under the comparable plans of Smith or its Subsidiaries in which such employee participated immediately prior to the Effective Time and the Surviving Entity shall cause any eligible expenses incurred by such employee and his or her covered dependents during the portion of the plan year of the Old Plan ending on the date such employee's participation in the corresponding New Plan begins to be taken into account under such New Plan for purposes of satisfying all deductible, coinsurance and maximum out-of-pocket requirements applicable to such employee and his or her covered dependents for the applicable plan year as if such amounts had been paid in accordance with such New Plan. Schlumberger agrees to consider in good faith, and to consult with Smith in good faith between the date hereof and the Closing Date in respect of, design alternatives with respect to equitable treatment under (x) the retiree medical programs of Schlumberger and its Subsidiaries of Covered Employees who have attained the age of 40 prior to the Closing Date, and (y) the defined benefit pension plans of Schlumberger and its Subsidiaries of Covered Employees who were previously employed by Schlumberger and its Subsidiaries and participated in such plans.

- (c) Schlumberger and Smith hereby acknowledge that a "change of control" or "change in control" (or term of similar import) within the meaning of each of the Smith Benefit Plans identified on Section 5.11(e) of the Smith Disclosure Letter will occur at or immediately prior to the Effective Time, as applicable.
- (d) Smith may set and pay short-term incentive bonuses (i.e., bonuses in respect of a performance period of one year or less) in the ordinary course of business consistent in all material respects with past practice, *provided* that (i) if the Effective Time occurs after the end of any short-term performance period and prior to the time that short-term incentive bonuses

for such period would be paid in the ordinary course of business consistent in all material respects with past practice, Smith shall pay, immediately prior to the Effective Time, to each person who is a participant in a short-term incentive program immediately prior to the Effective Time (a "Bonus Plan Participant") a bonus with respect to such performance period based on actual performance for the applicable performance period, provided to the extent that actual results are not yet available for such period or any portion thereof, such bonus shall be paid following the Effective Time at the time at which the actual results are available and (ii) for the performance period in which the Effective Time occurs, the Surviving Entity shall pay, following the conclusion of the relevant performance period to each Bonus Plan Participant an amount equal to the amount payable based on actual performance under the terms of the Smith incentive arrangement, payable at the time such amounts would have been paid in the ordinary course of business consistent in all material respects with past practice. Notwithstanding the foregoing, with respect to any Bonus Plan Participant who incurs a severance-qualifying termination of employment prior to payment of a bonus for a performance period described in this Section 7.18(d), the Surviving Entity shall pay such Bonus Plan Participant, at the same time as bonuses for such performance period are paid generally, a prorated bonus equal to the product of (x) the bonus that would have been payable to such Bonus Plan Participant had he or she remained employed through the conclusion of such period (determined without regard to any subjective criteria that could reduce such amount) times (y) the lesser of (1) a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of days that has elapsed in the performance period for the short term incentive program through the date of such termination and the denominator of which is the total number of days scheduled in the performance period for the short term incentive program and (2) one. For purposes of this Agreement, a severance-qualifying termination shall include any termination of employment by Schlumberger and its Subsidiaries other than for Cause (as defined in the Company's 1989 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan) or any other termination of employment that entitles the applicable Covered Employee to severance under an individual agreement.

- (e) As of the Effective Time, Schlumberger shall (or shall cause the Surviving Entity to) take all action necessary to effectuate the agreements set forth in Section 7.18(e) of the Smith Disclosure Letter.
- (f) With respect to any Covered Employees based outside of the United States, Schlumberger's obligations under this Section 7.18 shall be modified to the extent necessary to comply with Applicable Laws of the foreign countries and political subdivisions thereof in which such Covered Employees are based.
- (g) Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing contained herein, whether express or implied, shall be treated as an amendment or other modification of any employee benefit plan, or shall limit the right of Schlumberger or any Subsidiary, subject to their obligations under this Section 7.18, to amend, terminate or otherwise modify any employee benefit plan following the Effective Time.
- (h) The parties acknowledge and agree that all provisions contained in this Section 7.18 with respect to employees are included for the sole benefit of the parties to this Agreement, and that nothing in this Agreement, whether express or implied, shall create any third party beneficiary or other rights (i) in any other Person, including, without limitation, any

employees, former employees, any participant in any Smith Benefit Plan, or any dependent or beneficiary thereof, or (ii) to continued employment with Schlumberger or any Subsidiary.

Section 7.19 *Certain Transfer Taxes*. Any liability arising out of any real estate transfer Tax (which, for the avoidance of doubt, shall not include any Tax imposed by Section 897 or 1445 of the Code or other income Taxes) with respect to interests in real property owned directly or indirectly by Smith or any of its Subsidiaries immediately prior to the Merger, if applicable and due with respect to the Merger, shall be borne by the Surviving Entity and expressly shall not be a liability of stockholders of Smith.

Section 7.20 *Tax Matters*. Neither Schlumberger, Merger Sub nor Smith shall take any action or knowingly fail to take any action, which action or failure to act would (i) prevent or impede, or would be reasonably likely to prevent or impede, the Merger from qualifying as a "reorganization" within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code, or (ii) cause the stockholders of Smith to recognize gain pursuant to Section 367(a) of the Code.

ARTICLE 8

CONDITIONS

Section 8.1 *Conditions to Certain Obligations of Each Party to Effect the Merger*. The respective obligation of each party to effect the Merger shall be subject to the satisfaction or waiver at or prior to the Closing Date of the following conditions:

- (a) The Smith Stockholder Approval shall have been obtained.
- (b) (i) Any applicable waiting period under the HSR Act shall have expired or been earlier terminated, and (ii) the European Commission shall have issued a decision under the EC Merger Regulation declaring the Merger compatible with the common market, or, if the European Commission has adopted any decision under Article 9 of the EC Merger Regulation to refer the Merger in part to any Member State of the European Economic Area, the European Commission shall have issued a decision declaring the part of the Merger not so referred to that Member State compatible with the common market and every Member State to which part of the Merger has been referred under Article 9 having issued a decision clearing the Merger.
- (c) All applicable waiting and other time periods under other Regulatory Laws, other than the HSR Act and the EC Merger Regulation, shall have expired, lapsed or been terminated (as appropriate) and all regulatory clearances in the jurisdictions set forth in Section 8.1(c) of the Smith Disclosure Letter shall have been obtained, except for those waiting and other time periods and clearances or approvals the failure of which to expire, lapse, terminate or be obtained would not reasonably be expected to have a Smith Material Adverse Effect or a Schlumberger Material Adverse Effect (after giving effect to the Merger).
- (d) No judgment, injunction, order or decree of any Governmental Entity of competent jurisdiction in the United States, the European Union, or a jurisdiction whose waiting or time period must expire, lapse or terminate or whose clearance or approval

must be obtained under Section 8.1(c) (an "8.1(c) Jurisdiction") shall prohibit or enjoin the consummation of the Merger; *provided*, *however*, that, the party attempting to invoke this condition to delay the Closing shall have complied with Section 7.4 and 7.6, and with respect to other matters not covered by Section 7.4 and 7.6, used its reasonable best efforts to have any such judgment, injunction, order or decree lifted or vacated prior to the Termination Date; and no law, statute, rule or regulation shall have been enacted by any Governmental Entity of competent jurisdiction in the United States, the European Union, or an 8.1(c) Jurisdiction which prohibits or makes unlawful the consummation of the Merger.

- (e) The Form S-4 shall have been declared effective by the SEC under the Securities Act. No stop order suspending the effectiveness of the Form S-4 shall have been instued by the SEC and no proceedings for that purpose shall have been initiated or threatened by the SEC.
- (f) The shares of Schlumberger Common Stock to be issued pursuant to the Merger shall have been authorized for listing on the NYSE, subject to official notice of issuance.
- Section 8.2 *Conditions to Obligation of Smith to Effect the Merger*. The obligation of Smith to effect the Merger shall be subject to the satisfaction or waiver at or prior to the Closing Date of the following conditions:
 - (a) Each of Schlumberger and Merger Sub shall have performed, in all material respects, its covenants and agreements contained in this Agreement required to be performed on or prior to the Closing Date, and Smith shall have received a certificate of Schlumberger, executed on its behalf by its President or one of its Vice Presidents, dated the Closing Date, certifying to such effect.
 - (b) The representations and warranties of Schlumberger and Merger Sub contained in this Agreement (i) that are qualified as to a Schlumberger Material Adverse Effect shall be true and correct as so qualified at and as of the date hereof and the Closing Date, except to the extent such representations and warranties expressly relate to a specified date (in which case only at and as of such specified date) and (ii) that are not qualified as to a Schlumberger Material Adverse Effect shall be true and correct in all respects at and as of the date hereof and the Closing Date, except to the extent such representations and warranties expressly relate to a specified date (in which case only at and as of such specified date), except for such breaches of representations and inaccuracies in warranties in this clause (ii) that have not had or would not reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Schlumberger Material Adverse Effect, and Smith shall have received a certificate of Schlumberger, executed on its behalf by its President or one of its Vice Presidents, dated the Closing Date, certifying to such effect.
 - (c) Smith shall have received an opinion from Wachtell, Lipton, Rosen & Katz, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to Smith, on the basis of representations and warranties set forth or referred to in such opinion, dated as of the

Closing Date, to the effect that (i) the Merger will be treated as a "reorganization" within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code and (ii) each transfer of Smith stock to Schlumberger by a stockholder of Smith pursuant to the Merger will not be subject to Section 367(a)(1) of the Code. Notwithstanding the previous sentence, no opinion will be expressed regarding the United States federal income tax treatment of a stockholder of Smith that is a "five percent transferee shareholder" with respect to Schlumberger within the meaning of Treasury Regulation Section 1.367(a)-3(c)(5)(ii). In rendering such opinion, such counsel may require and shall be entitled to rely upon representations of Smith, Schlumberger, Merger Sub and others.

Section 8.3 *Conditions to Obligation of Schlumberger to Effect the Merger*. The obligations of Schlumberger and Merger Sub to effect the Merger shall be subject to the satisfaction or waiver at or prior to the Closing Date of the following conditions:

- (a) Smith shall have performed, in all material respects, its covenants and agreements contained in this Agreement required to be performed on or prior to the Closing Date, and the representations and warranties of Smith contained in this Agreement (i) that are qualified as to a Smith Material Adverse Effect shall be true and correct as so qualified at and as of the date hereof and the Closing Date, except to the extent such representations and warranties expressly relate to a specified date (in which case only at and as of such specified date) and (ii) that are not qualified as to a Smith Material Adverse Effect shall be true and correct in all respects at and as of the date hereof and the Closing Date, except to the extent such representations and warranties expressly relate to a specified date (in which case only at and as of such specified date), except for such breaches of representations and inaccuracies in warranties in this clause (ii) that have not had or would not reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Smith Material Adverse Effect, and Schlumberger shall have received a certificate of Smith, executed on its behalf by its President or one of its Vice Presidents, dated the Closing Date, certifying to such effect.
- (b) Schlumberger shall have received an opinion from Baker Botts L.L.P., in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to Schlumberger, on the basis of representations and warranties set forth or referred to in such opinion, dated as of the Closing Date, to the effect that (i) the Merger will be treated as a "reorganization" within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code and (ii) each transfer of Smith stock to Schlumberger by a stockholder of Smith pursuant to the Merger will not be subject to Section 367(a)(1) of the Code. Notwithstanding the previous sentence, no opinion will be expressed regarding the United States federal income tax treatment of a stockholder of Smith that is a "five percent transferee shareholder" with respect to Schlumberger within the meaning of Treasury Regulation Section 1.367(a)-3(c)(5)(ii). In rendering such opinion, such counsel may require and shall be entitled to rely upon representations of Smith, Schlumberger, Merger Sub and others.

ARTICLE 9

TERMINATION

Section 9.1 *Termination by Mutual Consent*. This Agreement may be terminated at any time prior to the Effective Time, whether before or after the receipt of the Smith Stockholder Approval, by the mutual written consent of Smith and Schlumberger.

Section 9.2 *Termination by Schlumberger or Smith*. This Agreement may be terminated at any time prior to the Effective Time, whether before or after the receipt of the Smith Stockholder Approval, by action of the Smith Board or the Board of Directors of Schlumberger if:

- (a) the Merger shall not have been consummated by February 21, 2011 (the "Initial Termination Date"); provided, however, that the right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to this Section 9.2(a) shall not be available to any party whose failure to perform or observe in any material respect any of its obligations under this Agreement in any manner shall have been the cause of, or resulted in, the failure of the Merger to occur on or before such date; provided, further, that if on the Initial Termination Date the condition to Closing set forth in Section 8.1(b), (c) or (d) (but for purposes of Section 8.1(d) only if such judgment, order or decree is attributable to a Regulatory Law) shall not have been fulfilled but all other conditions to Closing shall be or shall be capable of being fulfilled, then the Initial Termination Date may be extended on one or more occasions at the option of either Schlumberger or Smith by written notice to the other to a date not later than May 31, 2011. As used in this Agreement, the term "Termination Date" shall mean the Initial Termination Date has been extended pursuant to the foregoing proviso, in which case, the term "Termination Date" shall mean the date to which the Termination Date has been extended;
- (b) the Smith Stockholders Meeting (including adjournments and postponements) shall have concluded and the Smith Stockholder Approval shall not have been obtained; *provided*, *however*, that the right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to this Section 9.2(b) shall not be available to Smith if it has not materially complied with its obligations under Section 7.3; or
- (c) a court of competent jurisdiction in the United States, the European Union or an 8.1(c) Jurisdiction shall have issued an order, decree or ruling or taken any other action permanently restraining, enjoining or otherwise prohibiting the Merger and such order, decree, ruling or other action shall have become final and nonappealable; *provided*, *however*, that the party seeking to terminate this Agreement pursuant to this Section 9.2(c) shall have complied with Section 7.4 and Section 7.6 and, with respect to other matters not covered by Section 7.4 and Section 7.6, shall have used its reasonable best efforts to remove such injunction, order or decree.

Section 9.3 *Termination by Smith*. This Agreement may be terminated at any time prior to the Effective Time by action of the Smith Board (a) if there has been a breach by

Schlumberger of any representation, warranty, covenant or agreement set forth in this Agreement or if any representation or warranty of Schlumberger shall have become untrue, in either case such that the conditions set forth in Section 8.2 would not be satisfied, and such breach or failure to be true and correct is not curable by the Termination Date; *provided*, *however*, that the right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to this Section 9.3 shall not be available to Smith if it, at such time, is in breach of any representation, warranty, covenant or agreement set forth in this Agreement such that the conditions set forth in Section 8.3(a) shall not be satisfied, or (b) at any time prior to obtaining the Smith Stockholder Approval, in order to enter into any agreement, understanding or arrangement providing for a Superior Proposal in accordance with Section 7.3(b); *provided*, that Smith shall concurrently with such termination pay to Schlumberger the Termination Fee in accordance with Section 9.5(a).

Section 9.4 *Termination by Schlumberger*. This Agreement may be terminated at any time prior to the Effective Time by action of the Board of Directors of Schlumberger, if:

- (a) there has been a breach by Smith of any representation, warranty, covenant or agreement set forth in this Agreement or if any representation or warranty of Smith shall have become untrue, in either case such that the conditions set forth in Section 8.3 would not be satisfied, and such breach or failure to be true and correct is not curable by the Termination Date; *provided*, *however*, that the right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to this Section 9.4(a) shall not be available to Schlumberger if it, at such time, is in breach of any representation, warranty, covenant or agreement set forth in this Agreement such that any of the conditions set forth in Section 8.2(a) and Section 8.2(b) shall not be satisfied; or
- (b) the Smith Board shall have failed to recommend its approval or recommendation of this Agreement or the Merger or there has been a Change in Recommendation, whether or not permitted by the terms hereof.

Section 9.5 Effect of Termination.

- (a) Smith shall pay Schlumberger a fee of \$340 million (the "Termination Fee"):
 - (i) if this Agreement is terminated pursuant to Section 9.2(b), and (x) such termination occurs after an Acquisition Proposal shall have been made known to Smith (including any of its Representatives) and communicated publicly or shall have been made directly to the stockholders of Smith by any person, in each case such Acquisition Proposal shall not have been withdrawn, and (y) within one year after such termination, Smith enters into a definitive agreement with respect to an Acquisition Proposal or an Acquisition Proposal is consummated;
 - (ii) if this Agreement is terminated pursuant to Section 9.3(b); or
 - (iii) if this Agreement is terminated pursuant to Section 9.4(b);

which fee shall be payable: in the case of clause (i), upon the first to occur of such entering into a definitive agreement or consummation referred to in subclause (y) thereof; and in the case of clauses (ii) and (iii), upon such termination; *provided* that for purposes of this Section 9.5(a), the references to "20%" in the definition of Acquisition Proposal shall be deemed to be references to "50%". Any amount payable pursuant to this Section 9.5(a) shall be reduced by any amount paid pursuant to Section 9.5(c). Schlumberger and Merger Sub agree that in the event that the Termination Fee is paid or may be payable to Schlumberger pursuant to this Section 9.5(a), the payment of such Termination Fee shall be the sole and exclusive remedy of Schlumberger, its Subsidiaries or any of their respective stockholders, affiliates, officers, directors, employees or Representatives (collectively, "Related Persons") against Smith or any of its Related Persons for, and in no event will Schlumberger or any of its Related Persons be entitled to recover any other money damages or any other remedy based on a claim in law or equity with respect to, (1) any loss suffered as a result of the failure of the Merger to be consummated, (2) the termination of this Agreement, (3) any liabilities or obligations arising under this Agreement, or (4) any claims or actions arising out of or relating to any breach, termination or failure of or under this Agreement, and upon payment to Schlumberger of the Termination Fee, neither Smith nor any Related Person of Smith shall have any further liability or obligation to Schlumberger or any of its Related Persons relating to or arising out of this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby (subject to Section 9.5(g)).

(b) If this Agreement is terminated by Smith or Schlumberger pursuant to Section 9.2(c) as a result of an order, decree, ruling or other action under Regulatory Laws or Section 9.2(a) and all of the conditions to Closing set forth in Article 8 (other than (A) the conditions set forth in Section 8.1(b), Section 8.1(c) and Section 8.1(d) and (B) those other conditions that, by their nature, cannot be satisfied until the Closing Date, but, in the case of clause (B), which conditions would be capable of satisfaction if the Closing Date were the date of such termination) have been satisfied or waived on or prior to the date of such termination, then Schlumberger shall pay to Smith a fee of \$615 million (the "Reverse Termination Fee") (which fee shall be payable within two (2) business days after written notice of such termination). Smith agrees that in the event that the Reverse Termination Fee is paid to Smith pursuant to this Section 9.5(b), the payment of such Reverse Termination Fee shall be the sole and exclusive remedy of Smith and its Related Persons against Schlumberger, Merger Sub or any of their Related Persons for, and in no event will Smith or any of its Related Persons be entitled to recover any other money damages or any other remedy based on a claim in law or equity with respect to, (1) any loss suffered as a result of the failure of the Merger to be consummated, (2) the termination of this Agreement, (3) any liabilities or obligations arising under this Agreement, or (4) any claims or actions arising out of or relating to any breach, termination or failure of or under this Agreement, and upon payment to Smith or any of its Related Persons relating to or arising out of this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby (subject to Section 9.5(g)).

(c) Without limiting the rights of Schlumberger under Section 9.5(g), if this Agreement is terminated (i) pursuant to Section 9.2(b) and no Termination Fee is yet payable in respect thereof pursuant to Section 9.5(a), or (ii) Section 9.4(a) because there has been a willful and material breach by Smith of any covenant or agreement set forth herein, then Smith shall

reimburse Schlumberger for its actual costs and expenses incurred in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby in an amount not to exceed \$10 million.

- (d) Without limiting the rights of Smith under Section 9.5(g), if this Agreement is terminated by Smith pursuant to Section 9.3(a) because there has been a willful and material breach by Schlumberger of any covenant or agreement set forth herein and no Reverse Termination Fee is payable pursuant to Section 9.5(b), then Schlumberger shall reimburse Smith for its actual costs and expenses incurred in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby in an amount not to exceed \$10 million.
- (e) All payments under this Section 9.5 shall be made promptly upon becoming due by wire transfer of immediately available funds to an account designated by the receiving party.
- (f) Each of Smith and Schlumberger acknowledge that the agreements contained in this Section 9.5 are an integral part of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, and that, without these agreements, neither Smith nor Schlumberger would enter into this Agreement; accordingly, if either Smith fails to pay, or Schlumberger fails to pay, as applicable, any amount due pursuant to this Section 9.5, and, in order to obtain such payment, the party entitled to such payment commences a suit which results in a judgment against the party failing to pay for the fees to which reference is made in this Section 9.5, then such party shall pay to the party entitled to such payment its costs and expenses (including attorneys' fees) in connection with such suit, together with interest through the date of payment on the amount of the fee at the prime lending rate prevailing during such period as published in *The Wall Street Journal*.
- (g) In the event of termination of this Agreement and the abandonment of the Merger pursuant to this Article 9, all obligations of the parties hereto shall terminate, except the obligations of the parties pursuant to this Section 9.5, the last sentence of Section 7.11 and Section 7.13, Section 7.17 and Article 10, provided that nothing herein shall relieve any party from any liability for any willful and material breach by such party of any of its covenants or agreements set forth in this Agreement, and all rights and remedies of such nonbreaching party under this Agreement in the case of such a willful and material breach, at law or in equity, shall be preserved. The Confidentiality Agreement shall survive any termination of this Agreement, and the provisions of such Confidentiality Agreement shall apply to all information and material delivered by any party hereunder.

ARTICLE 10

GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 10.1 *Nonsurvival of Representations, Warranties and Agreements*. None of the representations, warranties and agreements in this Agreement or in any instrument delivered pursuant to this Agreement shall survive the Effective Time; *provided, however*, that the agreements contained in Article 4 and in Section 3.1, Section 3.2, Section 7.9, Section 7.17, Section 7.18 and Section 7.19 and this Article 10, and the agreements delivered pursuant to this Agreement shall survive the Effective Time.

Section 10.2 *Notices*. Any notice, request, instruction or other document required to be given hereunder by any party to the others shall be in writing and sent by facsimile transmission or by overnight courier (with proof of service), hand delivery or certified or registered mail (return receipt requested and first-class postage prepaid), addressed as follows:

(a) if to Smith:

Smith International, Inc. 1310 Rankin Road Houston, Texas 77073 Attention: Richard E. Chandler, Jr. Facsimile: (281) 233-5996

with a copy to:

Wachtell, Lipton, Rosen & Katz 51 West 52nd Street New York, New York 10019 Attention: Daniel A. Neff David Shapiro

Facsimile: (212) 403-2000

(b) if to Schlumberger or Merger Sub:

Schlumberger Limited 5599 San Felipe Houston, Texas 77056 Attention: General Counsel Facsimile: (713) 375-3481

with a copy to:

Baker Botts L.L.P. One Shell Plaza 910 Louisiana Street Houston, Texas 77002-4995 Attention: J. David Kirkland, Jr. Facsimile: (713) 229-7701

or to such other address as any party shall specify by written notice so given. Any notice, request, instruction or other document given as provided above shall be deemed given to the receiving party upon actual receipt, if delivered personally; three business days after deposit in the mail, if sent by registered or certified mail; upon confirmation of successful transmission, if sent by facsimile (provided that if given by facsimile such notice, request, instruction or other document shall be followed up within one business day by dispatch pursuant to one of the other methods described herein); or on the next business day after deposit with an overnight courier, if sent by an overnight courier. Rejection or other refusal to accept or the inability to deliver because of changed address of which no notice was given shall be deemed to be receipt of the notice as of the date of such rejection, refusal or inability to deliver.

Section 10.3 Assignment; Binding Effect. Neither this Agreement nor any of the rights, interests or obligations hereunder shall be assigned by any of the parties hereto (whether by operation of law or otherwise) without the prior written consent of the other parties, except that Schlumberger may, notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the contrary and without the consent of any party hereto, assign any of its rights (but not its obligations) hereunder to, and/or transfer any or all of the stock of Merger Sub to, any Subsidiary in which, prior to and at the time of the Merger, Schlumberger owns stock constituting control within the meaning of Section 368(c) of the Code. Subject to the preceding sentence, this Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

Section 10.4 Third-Party Beneficiaries. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, except for the provisions of Section 7.17, nothing in this Agreement, expressed or implied, is intended to confer standing to any person other than the parties hereto or their respective heirs, successors, executors, administrators and assigns except, following the Effective Time, for the provisions of Section 4.1, Section 7.17 and Section 7.19.

Section 10.5 *Entire Agreement*. This Agreement, the exhibits to this Agreement, the Smith Disclosure Letter, the Schlumberger Disclosure Letter and any documents delivered by the parties in connection herewith constitute the entire agreement among the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersede all prior agreements, understandings, representations and warranties, both oral and written, among the parties with respect thereto, except that the Confidentiality Agreement shall continue in effect.

Section 10.6 *Amendments*. This Agreement may be amended by the parties hereto, by action taken or authorized by their respective Boards of Directors, at any time before or after the Smith Stockholder Approval, but after the Smith Stockholder Approval has been obtained, no amendment shall be made which by law or in accordance with the rules of any relevant stock exchange requires the further approval of stockholders without obtaining such further approval. This Agreement may not be amended except by an instrument in writing signed on behalf of each of the parties hereto.

Section 10.7 *Governing Law*. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Delaware, without regard to its rules of

conflicts of laws. Each of the parties hereto hereby irrevocably and unconditionally consents to submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the Delaware Court of Chancery, or in the event (but only in the event) that such court does not have subject matter jurisdiction over such action or proceeding, the United States District Court for the District of Delaware (in either case, the "Delaware Court"), for any litigation arising out of or relating to this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby (and agrees not to commence any litigation relating thereto except in the applicable Delaware Court) and agrees that any legal action or proceeding with respect to this Agreement and the rights and obligations arising hereunder, or for recognition and enforcement of any judgment in respect of this Agreement and the rights and obligations arising hereunder brought by the other party hereto or its successors or assigns shall be brought and determined exclusively in the applicable Delaware Court. Each of the parties hereto hereby irrevocably waives, and agrees not to assert, by way of motion, as a defense, counterclaim or otherwise, in any action or proceeding with respect to this Agreement, (a) any claim that it is not personally subject to the jurisdiction of the applicable Delaware Court for any reason other than the failure to serve in accordance with this Section 10.7, (b) any claim that it or its property is exempt or immune from jurisdiction of any such court or from any legal process commenced in such court (whether through service of notice, attachment prior to judgment, attachment in aid of execution of judgment, execution of judgment or otherwise) and (c) to the fullest extent permitted by Applicable Law, any claim that (i) the suit, action or proceeding in such court is brought in an inconvenient forum, (ii) the venue of such suit, action or proceeding is improper or (iii) this Agreement, or the subject matter hereof, may not be enforced in or by such courts. EACH OF THE PARTIES HERETO IRREVOCABLY CONSENTS TO THE SERVICE OF PROCESS OUT OF THE APPLICABLE DELAWARE COURT IN ANY SUCH ACTION OR PROCEEDING BY THE MAILING OF COPIES THEREOF BY REGISTERED AIRMAIL, POSTAGE PREPAID, TO IT AT ITS ADDRESS SET FORTH IN SECTION 10.2 OF THIS AGREEMENT, SUCH SERVICE OF PROCESS TO BE EFFECTIVE UPON ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF SUCH REGISTERED MAIL. NOTHING HEREIN SHALL AFFECT THE RIGHT OF ANY PARTY TO SERVE PROCESS IN ANY OTHER MANNER PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW. EACH OF THE PARTIES HERETO EXPRESSLY ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THE FOREGOING WAIVER IS INTENDED TO BE IRREVOCABLE UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE AND OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA.

Section 10.8 *Counterparts*. This Agreement may be executed by the parties hereto in separate counterparts, each of which when so executed and delivered shall be an original, but all such counterparts shall together constitute one and the same instrument.

Section 10.9 *Headings*. Headings of the Articles and Sections of this Agreement are for the convenience of the parties only and shall be given no substantive or interpretative effect whatsoever.

Section 10.10 *Interpretation; Disclosure Letter*. Unless the context otherwise requires, words describing the singular number shall include the plural and vice versa, words denoting any gender shall include all genders, and words denoting natural persons shall include corporations, limited liability companies and partnerships and vice versa. When a reference is made in this Agreement to Articles, Sections, Exhibits or Schedules, such reference shall be to an Article, Section, Exhibit or Schedule, as applicable, of this Agreement unless otherwise

indicated. Whenever the words "include", "includes" or "including" are used in this Agreement, they shall be deemed to be followed by the words "without limitation." Any matter disclosed in any section of the Smith Disclosure Letter or Schlumberger Disclosure Letter shall be deemed disclosed for the purposes of any Sections of this Agreement to which such section relates and any other Sections of this Agreement to the extent it is reasonably apparent that such disclosure also qualifies or applies to such other Sections. Each of the parties has participated in the drafting and negotiation of this Agreement. If an ambiguity or question of intent or interpretation arises, this Agreement must be construed as if it is drafted by all the parties, and no presumption or burden of proof shall arise favoring or disfavoring any party by virtue of authorship of any of the provisions of this Agreement.

Section 10.11 Definitions. In this Agreement:

- (a) The phrase "to the knowledge of" and similar phrases relating to knowledge of Smith or Schlumberger, as the case may be, shall mean the actual knowledge of its executive officers and senior management.
- (b) The term "**Debt**" shall mean, with respect to any person, the aggregate amount of, without duplication, (i) all obligations for borrowed money, (ii) all obligations evidenced by bonds, debentures, notes or other similar instruments, (iii) all obligations to pay the deferred purchase price of property or services, (iv) all capitalized lease obligations, (v) all obligations or liabilities of others secured by a lien on any asset owned by such person whether or not such obligation or liability is assumed, to the extent of the lesser of such obligation or liability or the book value of such asset, and (vi) any other obligations or liabilities which are required by GAAP to be shown as debt on a balance sheet.
- (c) The term "Governmental Entity" shall mean any supranational, national (including United States), state, municipal, local or non-U.S. government, any instrumentality, subdivision, court, tribunal, administrative agency or commission or other authority thereof, or any quasi-governmental or private body exercising any regulatory, taxing or other governmental or quasi-governmental authority.
- (d) The term "Material Adverse Effect" with respect to any person shall mean (i) a material adverse effect on or material adverse change in the business, assets, liabilities, financial condition or results of operations of such person and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, other than any effect or change relating to or resulting from (A) changes or conditions affecting the economy or financial markets in general, (B) changes or conditions in the industries in which the person operates, (C) the announcement or the existence of, or compliance with, or taking any action required or permitted by this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby or any litigation referred to in Section 7.16, (D) taking any action by such person at the written request of Schlumberger or Merger Sub, in the case of Smith, or of Smith, in the case of Schlumberger or Merger Sub, or (E) any weather-related or other force majeure event or outbreak or escalation of hostilities or acts of war or terrorism. "Smith Material Adverse Effect" and "Schlumberger Material Adverse Effect" mean a Material Adverse Effect with respect to Smith and Schlumberger, respectively.

- (e) The term "**Permitted Lien**" means (i) any liens for Taxes not yet due or which are being contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings, (ii) carriers', warehousemen's, mechanics', materialmen's, repairmen's or other similar liens, (iii) pledges or deposits in connection with workers' compensation, unemployment insurance, and other social security legislation or (iv) easements, rights-of-way, restrictions and other similar encumbrances incurred in the ordinary course of business, which do not in any case materially detract from the utilization of the property subject thereto.
- (f) The term "person" means an individual, corporation, limited liability company, partnership, association, trust, unincorporated association, other entity or group (as defined in the Exchange Act).
- (g) The term "Subsidiary," when used with respect to any person, means any corporation or other organization (including a limited liability company), whether incorporated or unincorporated, (i) of which such person directly or indirectly owns or controls at least a majority of the securities or other interests having by their terms ordinary voting power to elect at least a majority of the board of directors or others performing similar functions with respect to such corporation or other organization or (ii) any organization of which such person is, in the case of a partnership, a general partner (excluding partnerships, the general partnership interests of which held by such person or any Subsidiary of such person do not have a majority of the voting interests in such partnership) or, in the case of a limited liability company, the managing member (excluding limited liability companies in which the managing member does not have a majority of the voting interests in such limited liability company); provided, however, CE Franklin LTD ("Franklin") shall not be deemed a Subsidiary for any section of this Agreement other than Article 5 hereof and any representations or warranties made by Smith with respect to Franklin shall only be a representation as to facts and circumstances concerning Franklin that are known to Smith.
- (h) The term "Tax" or "Taxes" means all net income, gross income, gross receipts, sales, use, ad valorem, transfer, accumulated earnings, excess profits, franchise, profits, license, withholding, payroll, employment, social security, excise, severance, stamp, occupation, premium, property, disability, capital stock, or windfall profits taxes, customs duties or other taxes, fees, assessments or governmental charges of any kind whatsoever, together with any interest and any penalties, additions to tax or additional amounts imposed by any taxing authority.

Section 10.12 *Extensions; Waiver*. At any time prior to the Effective Time, each party may, to the extent legally allowed, (a) extend the time for the performance of any of the obligations or other acts of the other parties hereto, (b) waive any inaccuracies in the representations and warranties made to such party contained herein or in any document delivered pursuant hereto and (c) waive compliance with any of the agreements or conditions for the benefit of such party contained herein. Any agreement on the part of a party hereto to any such extension or waiver shall be valid only if set forth in an instrument in writing signed on behalf of such party. The waiver by any party hereto of a breach of any provision hereunder shall not

operate or be construed as a waiver of any prior or subsequent breach of the same or any other provision hereunder.

Section 10.13 *Severability*. Any term or provision of this Agreement which is invalid or unenforceable in any jurisdiction shall, as to that jurisdiction, be ineffective to the extent of such invalidity or unenforceability without rendering invalid or unenforceable the remaining terms and provisions of this Agreement or affecting the validity or enforceability of any of the terms or provisions of this Agreement in any other jurisdiction. If any provision of this Agreement is so broad as to be unenforceable, the provision shall be interpreted to be only so broad as is enforceable.

Section 10.14 *Enforcement of Agreement*. The parties hereto agree that irreparable damage would occur in the event that any of the provisions of this Agreement were not performed in accordance with its specific terms or was otherwise breached. It is accordingly agreed that the parties shall be entitled to an injunction or injunctions to prevent breaches of this Agreement and to enforce specifically the terms and provisions hereof in the applicable Delaware Court, this being in addition to any other remedy to which they are entitled at law or in equity. In addition, each of the parties hereto (a) consents to submit itself to the personal jurisdiction of the applicable Delaware Court in the event any dispute arises out of this Agreement, (b) agrees that it will not attempt to deny or defeat such personal jurisdiction by motion or other request for leave from any such court, (c) agrees that it will not bring any action relating to this Agreement in any court other than the applicable Delaware Court and (d) waives any right to trial by jury with respect to any action related to or arising out of this Agreement.

Section 10.15 Waiver of Jury Trial. EACH OF SCHLUMBERGER, MERGER SUB AND SMITH HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, ALL RIGHTS OF TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING, OR COUNTERCLAIM (WHETHER BASED UPON CONTRACT, TORT OR OTHERWISE) ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, THE MERGER OR ANY OF THE OTHER TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement and caused the same to be duly delivered on their behalf on the day and year first written above.

SCHLUMBERGER LIMITED (SCHLUMBERGER N.V.)

By: /s/ Andrew Gould

Name: Andrew Gould

Title: Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

TURNBERRY MERGER SUB INC.

By: /s/ Jean-Francois Poupeau

Name: Jean-Francois Poupeau

Title: President

SMITH INTERNATIONAL, INC.

By: /s/ John Yearwood

Name: John Yearwood

Title: Chief Executive Officer, President and

Chief Operating Officer

AMENDED AND RESTATED

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION

OF

SMITH INTERNATIONAL, INC.

FIRST: The name of the corporation is Smith International, Inc. (the "Corporation").

SECOND: The address of the Corporation's registered office in the State of Delaware is Corporation Trust Center, 1209 Orange Street in the City of Wilmington, County of New Castle, 19801. The name of the Corporation's registered agent at that address is The Corporation Trust Company.

THIRD: The purpose of the Corporation is to engage in any lawful act or activity for which corporations may be organized under the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware or any successor statute (the "DGCL").

FOURTH: The total number of shares of stock which the Corporation shall have authority to issue is 500,000,000 shares, all such shares being of one class of common stock with a par value of \$1.00 per share.

FIFTH: In furtherance of, and not in limitation of, the powers conferred by statute, the Board of Directors is expressly authorized to make, adopt, amend, alter and repeal the bylaws of the Corporation, without any action on the part of the stockholders, except as may otherwise be provided by applicable law or the bylaws of the Corporation.

SIXTH: No director of the Corporation shall be personally liable to the Corporation or any of its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director to the fullest extent permitted by the DGCL as it now exists or as it may hereafter be amended. Any repeal or modification of this Article Sixth by the stockholders of the Corporation shall be prospective only, and shall not adversely affect any limitation on the personal liability of a director of the Corporation existing at the time of such repeal or modification.

SEVENTH: (1) Each person who was or is made a party or is threatened to be made a party to or is involved in any action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (hereinafter a "proceeding"), by reason of the fact that he or she or a person of whom he or she is the legal representative is or was a director, officer or employee of the Corporation or is or was serving at the request of the Corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation or of a partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, including service with respect to employee benefit plans, whether the basis of such proceeding is alleged action in an official capacity as a director, officer, employee or agent or in any other capacity while serving as a director, officer, employee or agent, shall be indemnified

and held harmless by the Corporation to the fullest extent authorized by the DGCL as the same exists or may hereafter be amended (but, in the case of any such amendment, only to the extent that such amendment permits the Corporation to provide broader indemnification rights than said law permitted the Corporation to provide prior to such amendment), against all expense, liability and loss (including attorneys' fees, judgments, fines, ERISA excise taxes or penalties and amounts paid or to be paid in settlement) reasonably incurred or suffered by such person in connection therewith and such indemnification shall continue as to a person who has ceased to be a director, officer, employee or agent and shall inure to the benefit of his or her heirs, executors and administrators; provided, however, that except as provided in paragraph (2) of this Article SEVENTH with respect to proceedings seeking to enforce rights to indemnification, the Corporation shall indemnify any such person seeking indemnification in connection with a proceeding (or part thereof) was authorized by the Board of Directors of the Corporation. The right to indemnification conferred in this Article SEVENTH shall be a contract right and shall include the right to be paid by the Corporation the expenses incurred in defending any such proceeding in advance of its final disposition; provided, however, that if the DGCL requires, the payment of such expenses incurred by a director or officer in his or her capacity as a director or officer (and not in any other capacity in which service was or is rendered by such person while a director or officer, including without limitation, service to an employee benefit plan) in advance of the final disposition of a proceeding, shall be made only upon delivery to the Corporation of an undertaking by or on behalf of such director or officer, to repay all amounts so advanced if it shall ultimately be determined that such director or officer is not entitled to be indemnified under this Article SEVENTH or otherwise.

(2) If a claim under paragraph (1) of this Article SEVENTH is not paid in full by the Corporation within thirty days after a written claim has been received by the Corporation, the claimant may at any time thereafter bring suit against the Corporation to recover the unpaid amount of the claim and, if successful in whole or in part, the claimant shall be entitled to be paid also the expense of prosecuting such claim. It shall be a defense to any such action (other than an action brought to enforce a claim for expenses incurred in defending any proceeding in advance of its final disposition where the required undertaking, if any is required, has been tendered to the Corporation) that the claimant has not met the standards of conduct which make it permissible under the DGCL for the Corporation to indemnify the claimant for the amount claimed, but the burden of proving such defense shall be on the Corporation. Neither the failure of the Corporation (including its Board of Directors, independent legal counsel or stockholders) to have made a determination prior to the commencement of such action that indemnification of the claimant is proper in the circumstances because he or she had met the applicable standard of conduct set forth in the DGCL, nor an actual determination by the Corporation (including its Board of Directors, independent legal counsel or stockholders) that the claimant has not met such applicable standard of conduct, shall be a defense to the action or create a presumption that the claimant has not met the applicable standard of conduct.

(3) The right to indemnification and the payment of expenses incurred in defending a proceeding in advance of its final disposition conferred in this Article SEVENTH shall not be exclusive of any other right which any person may have or hereafter acquire under any statute, provision of the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, By-Law, agreement, vote of stockholders or disinterested directors or otherwise.

(4) The Corporation may maintain insurance, at its expense, to protect itself, any decorporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise against any expense, liability indemnify such person against such expense, liability or loss under the DGCL.	
(5) The Corporation may, to the extent authorized from time to time by the Board of Di Corporation the expenses incurred in defending any proceeding in advance of its final dispo provisions of this Article SEVENTH with respect to the indemnification and advancement of e	sition, to any agent of the Corporation to the fullest extent of the
EIGHTH: The Corporation expressly elects not to be governed by Section 203 of the DC	GCL, as the same exists or hereafter may be amended.
The undersigned hereby acknowledges that the foregoing is his act and deed and that certificate this day of, 20	the facts herein stated are true, and accordingly has executed this
	SMITH INTERNATIONAL, INC.
	Name:
	Title:

FINAL TRANSCRIPT

Thompson StreetEventssm

Conference Call Transcript

SLB—Schlumberger and Smith International Conference call to discuss Definitive Merger Agreement

Event Date/Time: Feb. 22. 2010 / 8:30AM ET

THOMPSON REUTERS STREETEVENTS | www.streetevents.com | Contact Us



CORPORATE PARTICIPANTS

Malcolm Theobald

Schlumberger Ltd.-VP of IR

Andrew Gould

Schlumberger Ltd.—Chairman and CEO

John Yearwood

Smith International, Inc.—CEO

Simon Ayat

Schlumberger Ltd.—CFO

Jean-Francois Poupeau

Schlumberger Ltd.—President, Drilling and Measurements

CONFERENCE CALL PARTICIPANTS

Kurt Hallead

RBC Capital Markets-Analyst

Pickering Energy Partners—Analyst

Bill Herbert

Simmons & Co.—Analyst

Dan Bovd

Goldman Sachs-Analyst

Geoff Kieburtz

Weeden & Co.-Analyst

Brad Handler

Credit Suisse—Analyst

Alan Laws

BMO Capital Markets-Analyst

Bill Sanchez

Howard Weil-Analyst

Jim Crandell

Barclays Capital—Analyst

Robin Shoemaker

Citigroup—Analyst

Mike Urban

Deutsche Bank-Analyst

Pierre Conner

Capital One—Analyst

PRESENTATION

Operator

Ladies and gentlemen, thank you for standing by and welcome to the Schlumberger conference call. At this time, all lines are in a listen-only mode. Later there will be a question-and-answer session and instructions will be given at that time. (Operator Instructions). As a reminder, today's call is being recorded.

THOMPSON REUTERS STREETEVENTS |

www.streetevents.com

Contact Us



trademarks of Thomson Reuters and its affiliated companies.

AT THIS TIME THEN, I WOULD LIKE TO TURN THE CONFERENCE OVER TO MR. MALCOLM THEOBALD. PLEASE GO AHEAD SIR.

Malcolm Theobald - Schlumberger Ltd. - VP of IR

Thank you, Ken. Good morning and welcome to the Schlumberger Ltd. and Smith conference call. Joining me for today's call are Andrew Gould, Schlumberger Chairman and Chief Executive Officer; John Yearwood, Chief Executive Officer of Smith International; Simon Ayat, Schlumberger Chief Financial Officer; and Jean-Francois Poupeau, President of Schlumberger Drilling and Measurements. After the opening comments from management, the call will be open for questions.

But first, I must discuss some administrative details. Some of the information discussed today will contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Federal Securities laws. The forward-looking statements discussed today include statements about the benefits of the transaction, whether and when the transactions will be consummated, the combined Company's plans and other statements that are not historical facts.

These forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future events or performance and management cautions that any and all of these forward-looking statements may turn out to be incorrect. Forward-looking statements involve certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions that are difficult to predict or control. Please refer to the press release and our annual report on Form 10-K for additional information regarding forward-looking statements and some of the risks, uncertainties and assumptions associated with them.

Schlumberger and Smith will file materials related to the proposed transactions with the Securities and Exchange Commission including one or more registration statements that contain a proxy statement prospectus. Investors and security holders are urged to read those materials once they are available which can be obtained free from the SEC's website, www.SEC.gov and from the Company's websites.

Schlumberger, Smith, their directors, executive officers and certain members of management and their employees may be considered participants in the solicitation of proxies from their shareholders in connection with the proposed transaction. This will be described further in the proxy statement/prospectus when it is filed.

I will now turn the call over to Andrew.

Andrew Gould -Schlumberger Ltd.-Chairman and CEO

Ladies and gentlemen, good morning, good afternoon and thank you for joining us on this call. Before Simon takes you through the numbers, I'd like to take a few minutes to describe the business reasons behind the transaction and why we believe it is so compelling.

In September 2008 at our Houston investor conference, I made the case why increased drilling intensity would be a necessity to sustain and increase world oil and gas production. Drilling intensity as well as complexity will continue to increase in all parts of the exploration and production cycle whether it is in deepwater sub salt environments where drilling hazards and well costs are high or in the rapidly increasing horizontal rig count on land in the US drilling for shale gas.

Geo steered wells were the most complex geometries are a key tool in increasing recovery from many parts of the world's aging production base as well as a new resource play such a shale gas. Extended reach drilling has allowed operators to reduce infrastructure costs and to minimize the environmental footprint of oil and gas production.

As a consequence of these developments, the engineering of wells has become a complex and critical task. Understanding what is technically possible and mitigating risk in advance of a drilling program can mean major cost savings and well performance improvement for our customers. Over the past 20 years, Schlumberger has built a leading position in the measurement and steering technologies that have made these complex well geometries possible.

The next step change in drilling performance and well productivity will come from combining that capability with the integrated engineering and design of complete bottom hole assemblies and its various parts including the drill bit and drilling fluid to optimize its interaction with the environment in which it operates.

This merger is a very exciting move for Schlumberger because it brings a set of products and services in which we are not active but when integrated will provide the opportunity to take a further step towards developing the drilling technology that our customers will want in order to meet the challenges of tomorrow. The benefits lie in a number of areas that we believe with Smith we can improve and market effectively.

THOMPSON REUTERS STREETEVENTS | www.streetevents.com | Contact Us



And just as exciting, if not more so, this transaction will enable us to offer new services that will make the drilling process more efficient across a wide range of environments. The interaction of the bit and fluid engineering in conjunction with the design of the complete drilling assembly will provide much more reliable and predictable drilling performance. This will allow drilling assemblies to be optimized for each well while minimizing the impact of downhole shock and vibration.

With this transaction, considerable technical advances will soon be ready to be brought to the field.

As you know, the goal of Schlumberger has always been to be the leading provider of oilfield services segments in which it participates through pioneering technology, innovation and superior service delivery. The benefits the customers of this transaction lie in a number of areas.

First, we expect the next major change in performance to be achieved by integrating the engineering and design of a complete bottom hole assembly to provide increased interoperability and greater efficiency. This requires improved understanding of how the various subcomponents interact and in particular how directional drilling, measurement while drilling and logging while drilling tools interact with drill bits and other downhole tools. We believe that a combination of Schlumberger's leadership in these areas with Smith's expertise in drill bits and drilling tools provides the basis for designing systems that customers will want for improved drilling performance, efficiency and control.

Secondly, another element in the drilling performance lies in the engineering of the drilling fluid. Engineer as part of a system, drilling fluids fulfill vital tasks that engineering isolation may contain a component lifetime and result in premise year failures and even stock pipe. We expect that the combination of downhole measurements with MI SWACO coal, drilling fluid engineering will therefore enable better understanding and management of bore hole hydraulics to further improve performance and reduce risk.

The same can be said of well productivity optimization. Through the application of Smith's completion fluid engineering capabilities complemented by Schlumberger's completion designs, we will be better able to match the mechanical, chemical and hydraulic elements of the producing well to ensure maximum productivity in reservoir recovery.

Smith will also complement the current Schlumberger Completion's portfolio with liner hanger products, packers and other completion elements which as I have frequently mentioned have long been a standing objective of ours. The effect of this will not only enable us to meet requests from customers who want broader completion solutions, but also to accelerate our organic growth strategy.

Thirdly, we see a real opportunity in the Smith distribution business. We believe that as a combined company, Wilson can realize its full potential through global expansion opportunities that we can provide whilst improving our own internal supply-chain services.

Finally, Smith provides us with new opportunities through new product development programs that will be enabled by Smith assets such as the high-performance drilling motor components and turbines, drill bits, reamers, accurate modeling and monitoring software and one trip mill and drill systems. Additional product development opportunities include drilling fluid design improvements focused on extending the life of elastomers and rotating fields as well as fluid designs to further improve well bore stability and consequent reduction of equipment lost in hole.

We are paying a significant premium for this transaction and it is our belief that it is well justified due to the expected upside that will result in the significant synergies this combination will bring. We strongly believe that the pull through potential for other services means the numbers we have given you for the first two years following the closing of the transaction will grow substantially.

The companies are complementary in operations, in product development and expertise, which brings opportunities that will enable us to meet more effectively the drilling and workover challenges that our industry and our customers are facing. The transaction will provide impetus to develop the services and products our customers are looking for as well as enabling us to enhance our overall breadth and competitiveness.

Our entire management team is looking forward to welcoming the Smith employees to Schlumberger. I will now hand the call over to John.

John Yearwood - Smith International, Inc. - CEO

Thank you, Andrew, and hello, everyone. From the perspective of a Smith employee and shareholder, I am confident that this transaction is an excellent opportunity for all stakeholders. As employees, we will have access to products, services and technologies complementary to our own that will enable us to her serve our customers as never before.

THOMPSON REUTERS STREETEVENTS | www.streetevents.com | Contact Us

© 2010 Thomson Reuters. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Thomson Reuters content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written consent of Thomson Reuters. 'Thomson Reuters' and the Thomson Reuters logo are registered trademarks of Thomson Reuters and its affiliated companies.



In addition, we will benefit from a much broader range of employment and career-enhancing opportunities. The fact that there is virtually no product or service overlap between the two companies and the clear technological and operational strength that comes with the Smith portfolio means that there is no redundancy as a result of this combination. These two businesses are complementary in nature and as such, the combination will be beneficial to our customers.

As stockholders, an all equity transaction provides us an exceptional opportunity. There remains significant opportunities for growth that will be facilitated by the large global footprint of Schlumberger and the very complementary drilling related technologies provided by both organizations. Also, cooperative R&D spend and shared infrastructure can result in significant cost savings as a single enterprise.

Lastly, we as stockholders will benefit from an expanded and more balanced source of revenues from both a geographic and a product or service line perspective. We also stand to benefit from the value creation provided by the combination, retain upside associated with increased industry activity while receiving a high quality, very liquid form of currency in a transaction that is intended to be tax-free for US Federal income tax purposes.

During my tenure as CEO of Smith, we endured an historic industry downturn and came through it in a focused and refocused invigorated Company with a clear set of growth objectives. I have the utmost respect for and all of the credit goes to all the members of the Smith family and their commitment to our customer success. It has been and continues to be my distinct pleasure to work around and alongside Smith employees for more than 10 years.

We look forward to bringing the Smith enthusiasm and entrepreneurial culture to Schlumberger which will result in a more prosperous future for us all, stockholder and employee alike.

I will now pass the call over to Simon.

Simon Ayat - Schlumberger Ltd. - CFO

Thank you, John. Schlumberger and Smith have entered into a merger agreement in an all share deal. The transaction is intended to be a tax-free change of shares. The Smith stockholders will receive 0.6966 shares of Schlumberger Ltd. in exchange for each share of Smith International stock.

Upon closing and reflecting the issuance of approximately 175.8 million in new share — Schlumberger shares, Smith shareholders will collectively own approximately 12.8% of Schlumberger's outstanding shares. The value of the transaction is \$12.4 billion based on the closing stock price on February 19, 2010 and includes net debt of \$1.2 billion.

I will now cover key elements of the transaction. Synergies. I would like to comment briefly on the synergies we referred in our press release. We have been considering this merger for quite some time and have done a substantial amount of work from the bottom up on the synergies in this transaction. We have a high degree of confidence in the estimates we have made.

We expect the transaction to close in the latter half of 2010. Therefore, 2011 is the first year we expect to extract meaningful benefits. We estimate pretax synergies to be approximately \$160 million in 2011 and \$320 million in 2012. These numbers are net of integration costs and consist primarily of costs as opposed to revenue synergies in these first couple of years post transaction.

The revenue synergies from the transaction however are significant and are expected to grow considerably in the future years. Andrew has commented on many of the specific areas of revenue growth which we are very excited about and JF. will further expand upon those in a moment.

Accretion. As a result of these synergies and based on consensus estimates for both companies, we expect the transaction to be accretive on an EPS basis in 2012. This obviously includes certain estimates and assumptions regarding the purchase accounting which can only be finalized upon the closing of the transaction. Based on these assumptions, we have estimated the incremental after-tax depreciation and amortization as a result of fair value adjustment to the net assets of Smith including their debt to be approximately \$0.06 per share.

And now I turn over the call to JF.

THOMPSON REUTERS STREETEVENTS | www.streetevents.com | Contact Us

© 2010 Thomson Reuters. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Thomson Reuters content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written consent of Thomson Reuters. 'Thomson Reuters' and the Thomson Reuters logo are registered trademarks of Thomson Reuters and its affiliated companies.



Jean-Francois Poupeau - Schlumberger Ltd. - President, Drilling and Measurements

Thank you, Simon. As president of drilling and measurements, I am particularly excited to welcome Smith's employees, products and services into our drilling portfolio and would like to elaborate on Andrew's initial comments on the rationale for the transaction.

The inclusion of Smith now enables Schlumberger to offer a fully integrated drilling service operation by housing drill bits, motors, turbines and drilling tools under one roof along with directional drilling, rotary steering systems, measurement while drilling and logging while drilling services.

The ability to improve drilling rates and downhole tool reliability through better design of the entire VHA and the drilling fluid is becoming increasingly important to respond to our customers' demand for optimum technology, efficiency and reliability. Having both the leading bit and drilling fluid entity in-house promises to enhance the quality of our directional drilling, measurement while drilling and logging while drilling businesses while Smith's proprietary ideas and i-Drill modeling programs will also be valuable tools for our drilling, engineering and operations support centers who use both in the planning and execution phases of the drilling program. This is true for both drilling and measurement's traditional services and Schlumberger's integrated project management while construction offering.

We are also excited about the future product development opportunities that will result from the integration of and Smith's expertise in bit design and manufacturing. By adding Smith's drilling products such as reamers, [coil] openers, jars and other drilling tools, the combination will enable Schlumberger to respond to customers that desire a tailored, [auto-hole] assembly architecture that optimizes reliability, intra-tool operability, communications and measurements while lowering the cost of service delivery.

Likewise, Smith's Dyna-Drill and Smith's [narrow port] technologies will allow us to ensure the integrated engineering of these components in the BHA. In the longer term, we see significant opportunities for product development in the area of next-generation steerable systems, wire drill pipe services and high temperature applications with these businesses.

Similarly, our customers are seeking ways to better control bottom hole pressures during the drilling process to reduce drilling risks and improve performance. Smith's head balance managed pressure-drilling services coupled with MIs SWACO's drilling fluids and Smith's rotary control devices will be valuable components that will allow us to provide a comprehensive service offering.

Smith's PathFinder, directional drilling, measurement while drilling and logging while drilling services are complementary to the drilling and measurements businesses as they address different customer needs. PathFinder will remain as a separate entity within drilling and measurements and will provide midtier directional drilling, measurement while drilling and logging while drilling initially offering services primarily focused on US land and the Gulf of Mexico shelf operations.

Similarly, the high temperature capabilities of PathFinder, MWD and LWD services will add significant value to our customers and Schlumberger's marketing strengths will help to accelerate the availability of these services.

The combination of Smith's fishing and casing exiting services to the Schlumberger portfolio will enable us to market a more complete offering for the drilling of reentry wells. This will include Schlumberger's slim and ultra slim drilling systems as well as multilateral reservoir drainage technologies. Beginning with the pooling of the completion, followed by milling and sidetracking from the casing, the addition of Smith Services will enable multi-scaled wellside personnel to efficiently place the new well bore in the optimum reservoir zone for increased production and recovery.

In summary, this transaction offers the prospect of a comprehensive drilling services group that will manage the development of next-generation drilling systems. This way, each element will inter-operate optimally and be better designed to deal with the varying downhole physical challenges while improving the design and control of the rheology and hydraulics of the drilling fluid.

We believe our customers will see these as key technology requirements, particularly in light of the increased focus on more complex formations and challenging drilling environments.

Thank you very much. We will now hand the call back to Kent.

THOMPSON REUTERS STREETEVENTS | www.streetevents.com | Contact Us

© 2010 Thomson Reuters. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Thomson Reuters content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written consent of Thomson Reuters. 'Thomson Reuters' and the Thomson Reuters logo are registered trademarks of Thomson Reuters and its affiliated companies.



QUESTION AND ANSWER

Operator

Great, thank you very much. (Operator Instructions). Kurt Hallead, RBC Capital Markets.

Kurt Hallead - RBC Capital Markets-Analyst

Good morning. Let me be the first of many to congratulate both parties on this transaction. And I am sure Andrew, it will play out in the context on what you said with more upside on the synergy front.

The question I would have is — or surprising to me was your comment there Andrew about the value that you see in distribution and what that may bring into Schlumberger. I guess in that context, it's somewhat of a hidden gem to some of us on the outside. So I wonder if you can expand upon the opportunities that you see in the supply chain management side and maybe touch on some other hidden gems beyond the ones that you've reference whether it be in completion or other product areas that you see in the value of bringing Smith here.

Andrew Gould - Schlumberger Ltd. - Chairman and CEO

I think the — now our Geo market organization is mature, we are starting to address all the questions around reducing the cost of running our underlying business. We never did in a systematic way before. And probably the biggest single opportunity that we have is in the supply chain. We spend something like \$10 billion a year in a more or less organized manner. We are getting much more organized than we used to be but I still don't consider that we are best in class.

And for the moment, we see Wilson as a tool to teach us how to do that because obviously their strengths are in distribution and inventory management which means they have to be strong in purchasing. And so we think that this is a distinct advantage to us in our position in North America and selectively we will test how that works overseas.

And I think that we — I'd like to leave that one there for a moment if you like, Kurt.

Now if you asked me what are they hidden gems here, I'm not going to tell you all of them because I don't like talking about our competitive situation on conference calls as you well know. But I will tell you a few things that I think — make me feel that the timing of this is absolutely perfect from our standpoint.

The first is when I said the drilling intensity will have to increase in 2008, we have done that on the basis of a lot of studies we have done of various countries and the maturity of their production profile our drilling intensity had to increase to maintain that. Since then, there are two obvious opportunities that have added themselves to that in terms of the need to drill.

One is the technical cost one which is the incredible complexity of drilling in deep water. And the second is obviously the opportunity that over the next 20 or 30 years, drilling is going to provide in shale gas because I think that we are if you like at a very early stage of understanding how shale gas is going to be produced and while tracking will always be a key element in the production of shale gas, as we get better at identifying the sweet spots in shale reservoirs, drilling will systematically become more important. And therefore, when I said in 2008 I felt that more wells will be drilled, I am much more convinced now that that is going to be true than I was two years ago. So just first thing, people are going to drill a lot more.

The second thing is that technology has a habit of leapfrogging. And technology — one technology gets ahead of the other then the other has to catch up. So if you take the case of horizontal drilling, initially horizontal drilling was geometric, it was blind and one always has to remember that the first horizontal well that was drilled was a dry well because they didn't get it in the right place. And over the last 15 years, we have gradually shifted from drilling purely geometrically and blind to drilling geologically and in function of the formation.

And as you have noticed, Schlumberger's capacity in recent years to introduce tools that can reach deeper and deeper or further and further away from the actual drill stream has increased dramatically. That is one end of the scale. And at the other end of the scale, our capacity to create dogleg with rotary steerable systems has also increased absolutely dramatically.

To the point that, with our PD-15, which you showed me in the last analyst show, we can not get other parts of the drill stream from our suppliers that can match the dogleg capability of a PD-15. So this is a very simple example of how the system is becoming integrated.

THOMPSON REUTERS STREETEVENTS | www.streetevents.com | Contact Us



Now, why don't I describe the geological theme? Because the geological theme means that as we follow the formation, the drill stream gets subjected to more and more [tortuosity], difficult changes of direction, difficult changes in pressure than has ever been the case before which means again that it's going to have to be integrated.

So if you like, I think that for the first time in a long time, the measurement technology is slightly ahead of the drilling technology. And these people who are going to succeed in making the step forward in drilling are the people who are going to be able to integrate the bottom hole assembly, instrument it and make it act in conjunction with the geological measurements that we are making. That's the second reason I feel really great about this.

And the other thing is that price is always a matter of timing. And I will not disguise the fact that meeting (inaudible) in hotel rooms and stuff has been going on for a long, long time. We have never up until now reached a point where we felt that the price that Smith wanted was something that we could afford. But in function with the timing, the point in the cycle in function with the timing and the point of the technology and in function of where Smith's value is today, the timing came right for everybody.

So I think that those are the three reasons — the point in the cycle, the technology and the timing that I feel really comfortable doing the deal now.

Kurt Hallead - RBC Capital Markets - Analyst

Okay. And I may, if I may then on the follow up, you were very emphatic about there being upside to obviously the benefit from a numbers standpoint as was Simon going forward. Given that conviction and emphatic nature of that, was just curious as to whether or not you'd be willing to entertain us with some incremental upside that you see coming? And if not then, I guess you want to hold some things in reserve. Just trying to get a sense as to why you'd want to maybe not share a little bit of that upside with us.

Andrew Gould - Schlumberger Ltd. - Chairman and CEO

Because we are always conservative in what we tell you and because we need to get the deal done to implement a lot of it. So I would rather be conservative and if somebody asks Simon how he calculated the synergies, he would explain that to you. But we will undoubtedly aim to do hopefully much better than we are telling you but that will be a little bit in function with the timing.

Kurt Hallead - RBC Capital Markets - Analyst

Okay.

Andrew Gould - Schlumberger Ltd. - Chairman and CEO

Timing of closure of the deal.

Kurt Hallead - RBC Capital Markets - Analyst

Great, thank you very much. Congratulations.

Operator

Dan Pickering, Tudor, Pickering & Holt.

Joe Hill - Pickering Energy Partners - Analyst

Good morning, this is actually Joe Hill. Dan had to run and catch a plane. Andrew, would you have done more cash in this transaction if you could have? And if so, what are the prospects for a share repurchase post-consummation?

THOMPSON REUTERS STREETEVENTS | www.streetevents.com | Contact Us

© 2010 Thomson Reuters. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Thomson Reuters content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written consent of Thomson Reuters. 'Thomson Reuters' and the Thomson Reuters logo are registered trademarks of Thomson Reuters and its affiliated companies.



Andrew Gould - Schlumberger Ltd. - Chairman and CEO

I think that we felt that we needed to present the Smith shareholders with a simple decision and the way to do that was to go 100% cash. I think that it is a little bit part of the time — a sign of the times that people do not want to give away upside for cash in this market. So I think that — and in answer of your other question, yes, we restarted the stock purchases in Q4 and we will tactically be aggressive in the coming months.

Joe Hill - Pickering Energy Partners - Analyst

Okay.

Simon Ayat - Schlumberger Ltd. - CFO

Andrew meant 100% stock.

Andrew Gould - Schlumberger Ltd. - Chairman and CEO

Yes, sorry.

Joe Hill - Pickering Energy Partners - Analyst

Okay. And if by chance the regulators require the divestiture of the PathFinder, coil and wireline, is this deal still a go?

Andrew Gould - Schlumberger Ltd. - Chairman and CEO

Yes.

Joe Hill - Pickering Energy Partners - Analyst

Okay. And finally quickly, how much revenue in bits could you bring back in-house from ReedHycalog with Smith?

Andrew Gould - Schlumberger Ltd. - Chairman and CEO

I don't have the number at the top of my head but it's a substantial number, Joe.

Joe Hill - Pickering Energy Partners - Analyst

Okay. Thank you very much, Andrew.

Operator

Bill Herbert, Simmons & Co.

Bill Herbert - Simmons & Co. - Analyst

Thanks, good morning. I guess Andrew you offered Simon to sort of provide us with a composition of the pretax synergies, mostly of which are costs. Simon, could you go through those please?

THOMPSON REUTERS STREETEVENTS | www.streetevents.com | Contact Us



Simon Ayat - Schlumberger Ltd. - CFO

Sure. It comes as no surprise that we've been looking at this transaction for a long time and we have done a lot of work to come up with the synergies. But for the time being, the synergies that we announced consist as I said mostly from cost elements, a bit from revenue. We have taken the cost on the overlap in the organization at the top level. As a matter of fact, we did not reflect a lot of the overlap in the field, the structure, because this will take cost and it will take so we have not really considered it for the time being but this is another opportunity where we will be able to generate more savings.

There's a lot of overlap. We operate in many areas where we have our own structures, facilities and Smith has the same thing with support functions. So these will be —

Bill Herbert - Simmons & Co. - Analyst

Sorry?

Simon Ayat - Schlumberger Ltd. - CFO

Sorry, sorry. I thought the line went off. So we are sticking now for the 160 and the 320 that we have shown you and it is mostly cost. We have some revenue. The revenue is based on the average margin. So the explanation on the cost synergies today is basically corporate structures of the two companies between the Smith, the MI and the other areas that we have identified.

Bill Herbert - Simmons & Co. - Analyst

Okay. Great. Andrew, with respect to the rationale for the Smith acquisition, pretty plain and clear and lucid with regard to the imperative that you describe with regard to integrating bits and fluids with regard to the complete drilling solution. Geo market exposure, Smith has close to most in class North American exposure here of the diversified service companies, close to 50%. I think justifiably you had been waxing relatively cautious on the outlook for North America. Frame for us your thought process here with regard to crafting the acquisition premium which you put forth and the geographic exposure on the part of Smith.

Malcolm Theobald - Schlumberger Ltd. - VP of IR

Bill, we have a little bit of a technical difficulty so we are getting Andrew to log in.

Bill Herbert - Simmons & Co. - Analyst

Okay.

Operator

We do have his line dialing right back in so he should be back on with us in just a moment. And we do have Mr. Gould's line back on with us at this time.

Malcolm Theobald - Schlumberger Ltd. - VP of IR

Okay Bill, why don't you go ahead and repeat your question please.

Bill Herbert - Simmons & Co. - Analyst

Sure. Andrew, I think you've been very clear and lucid with regard to the imperative of integrating fluids and drill bits with regard to the complete drilling solution for clients going forward on the one hand. On the other hand, Smith is close to most in class North American exposure. You have been justifiably waxing pretty cautious on North America given the imbalances in the gas markets.

THOMPSON REUTERS STREETEVENTS | www.streetevents.com | Contact Us



Frame for us if you will the acquisition premium on the one hand that you've proffer for Smith and then on the other hand threat and opportunity attendant to the North America markets.

Andrew Gould - Schlumberger Ltd. - Chairman and CEO

I'm not quite sure what you want me to do with the premium, Bill.

Bill Herbert - Simmons & Co. - Analyst

Well, no, the thing is you have been — on the one hand, you've been —

Andrew Gould - Schlumberger Ltd. - Chairman and CEO

Oh, okay. All right, okay. So look, I can't look at a transaction like this in the function of one or two years. There is I don't think any doubt that long-term shale gas is going to be one of the big new energy sources both in the US and overseas. However, as I tried to point out in my little homily at the beginning, I don't think that the actual optimum technology set for producing shale gas has yet been defined. At the moment, we are doing it by brute force and ignorance.

In other words, we drill horizontal wells, and then we frac them geometrically. And therefore, there is going to be a lot of progress. Now I would not be at all surprised to see that some of that progress means perhaps more drilling and less fracing.

And so Smith's capacity to serve that market in North America is of great interest to me. It may not be the best financial return in the oilfield at this point in time but long-term, what we can learn in that market is extremely interesting.

Bill Herbert - Simmons & Co. - Analyst

Okay. And practically speaking, walk me through how we are going to navigate sort of, if you will, the servicing of US onshore clients with increasing technology content by keeping Anadrill or DNM separate from PathFinder. How is that going to operationally work?

Andrew Gould - Schlumberger Ltd. - Chairman and CEO

Well, we think we can learn from PathFinder.

Bill Herbert - Simmons & Co. - Analyst

Okay, but -

Andrew Gould - Schlumberger Ltd. - Chairman and CEO

We can learn — Anadrill or DNM has always been to an extent a high-end service company. They do have certain very specific technologies aimed at the US land market, for example, like PD-15. But actually, operating in US land, perhaps a lower overall cost base than Schlumberger is used to, is something that we hope to learn from PathFinder.

Bill Herbert - Simmons & Co. - Analyst

Okay. Fair point. Thank you very much.

THOMPSON REUTERS STREETEVENTS | www.streetevents.com | Contact Us

© 2010 Thomson Reuters. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Thomson Reuters content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written consent of Thomson Reuters. 'Thomson Reuters' and the Thomson Reuters logo are registered trademarks of Thomson Reuters and its affiliated companies.



Operator

Dan Boyd, Goldman Sachs.

Dan Boyd - Goldman Sachs - Analyst

Hi, thanks. Andrew, can you comment on the international expansion plans for Pathfinder, and are there any geo markets where that mid-tier technology makes the most sense where you might not have the complete product offering at the moment?

Andrew Gould - Schlumberger Ltd. - Chairman and CEO

Yes, there are. I mean there are markets — it is very interesting that we may learn from PathFinder in US land, but in other low-cost markets we are learning from what we did in Russia. And what we've done in Russia is to a certain extent segregate the high tier from the low tier to address, for example, the Western Siberian market as opposed to the Eastern Siberian market.

So yes, we think that some of those lessons will spill over into other markets overseas.

Dan Boyd - Goldman Sachs - - Analyst

But any specific countries? I know PathFinder was looking at four to six countries per year. Are there any that make sense where you accelerate that?

Andrew Gould - Schlumberger Ltd. - Chairman and CEO

I'm not going to draw a roadmap for my friends, Dan.

Dan Boyd - Goldman Sachs - - Analyst

Okay, thanks. I'll leave it there.

Operator

(technical difficulty)

Geoff Kieburtz - Weeden & Co. - Analyst

Thanks, good morning or afternoon or wherever you happen to be.

Andrew Gould - Schlumberger Ltd. - Chairman and CEO

I'm in Paris, Geoff, that's why the telephone line when out.

Geoff Kieburtz - Weeden & Co. - Analyst

Okay. John and the Smith organization had made a fair point about their efforts and ideas and the other modeling initiatives that they've got going on that it was an open system and that whatever product was recommended was what they were going to suggest to the customer. As you visualize the combination here, are you going to preserve that ultimate system strategy?

THOMPSON REUTERS STREETEVENTS | www.streetevents.com | Contact Us



Andrew Gould - Schlumberger Ltd. - Chairman and CEO

I think that we would preserve the open system and that if other people want to use it or buy the components, yes. But actually there's a lot of other modeling which is proprietary to Schlumberger that we would not make open.

Geoff Kieburtz - Weeden & Co. - Analyst

Okay, but I guess what I was thinking about is in some cases as I understood it, Smith would recommend somebody else's bit if it for instance and presumably in the combination somebody else's MWD tool or other bottom hole assembly component. Is it your intent —?

Andrew Gould - Schlumberger Ltd. - Chairman and CEO

I don't know. I think John wants to say something.

John Yearwood - Smith International, Inc. - CEO

Well, Jeff, what we have been focusing on is aligning ourselves with the customers' objectives. They are looking to have a continuous improvement in these development type drilling opportunities where you are drilling these longer and longer laterals and by — they want to reduce their finding and development costs, their overall drilling costs in a safe and acceptable manner.

So what we have been focusing on is what is the best BHA fluid system for that particular application in time. And what we are seeing, because of bits — there are different bits that are out there that work best with different combinations of assemblies, that yes, we will recommend what is the best approach. And I think it's always important to keep that in mind that drilling is only as good as the last — the footage that you are making at any particular moment.

And because of the complexity that Andrew mentioned at the beginning, in optimizing these BHAs, I do believe that the best approach is always to be open as to whether or someone else's particular bids or heavyweight collar or some other element is most appropriate for that application at that particular point in time.

Geoff Kieburtz - Weeden & Co. - Analyst

And that strategy will be preserved in the combination?

Andrew Gould - Schlumberger Ltd. - Chairman and CEO

Yes, I don't think — I think we would be stupid not to preserve that strategy. As John said, if a particular tool is particularly appropriate at some point in time. And by the way, that is no different than logging or drilling or wireline or anything else. If a customer requires a particular service that we don't have, we will subcontract it from other companies.

Geoff Kieburtz - Weeden & Co. - Analyst

Okay. And a couple of times this morning you mentioned that you've been talking for a long time. I know we will learn more about how long a long time is but it sounds like these conversations preceded the WH acquisition at Smith. Can you describe to us how those conversations changed once Smith had acquired WH?

Andrew Gould - Schlumberger Ltd. - Chairman and CEO

I don't think so. I don't think it's very interesting, Geoff. All I'm saying is we've been talking with Doug and Loren Carol and then Doug and John for a long time.

THOMPSON REUTERS STREETEVENTS | www.streetevents.com | Contact Us



Geoff Kieburtz - Weeden & Co. - Analyst

Okay.

Andrew Gould - Schlumberger Ltd. - Chairman and CEO

I don't think it's interesting to analyze how we reacted or they reacted after the purchase of a WH.

Geoff Kieburtz - Weeden & Co. - Analyst

Thanks very much.

Operator

Brad Handler, Credit Suisse.

Brad Handler - Credit Suisse - Analyst

Thanks. I guess I think Joe kind of addressed an antitrust question but perhaps I could ask you to come back to it a little bit. There are some categories which seemed like they are exposed to antitrust, a good antitrust look, including the directional business in LWD, coiled tubing potentially and then I guess perhaps on the wireline side, the cased hole wireline side.

Can you tell — what can you tell us about those specific areas and how you hope to navigate your way through those and try to keep them or your (multiple speakers)?

Andrew Gould - Schlumberger Ltd. - Chairman and CEO

Well we don't think any — I can't predict what may happen in the antitrust examination. But we don't think any of those shares would cause any significant change in the competitive landscape. And as to how it's governed in the agreement, I suggest you wait till we file our 8-K after the call. And you can take a look at the provisions there.

Brad Handler - Credit Suisse - Analyst

Okay. Fair enough. Switching gears in an unrelated follow-up then please, as it relates to MI, can you tell us a little bit about that? I guess you didn't call it out as being managed separately. So can we assume that that gets — the intention is to put that into the Geo market structure and break that down formally?

Andrew Gould - Schlumberger Ltd. - Chairman and CEO

No, I think that we have learned over the last 10 years that certain products are not suitable to the Geo market structure. So if you look at our Geo market today for example, artificial lift and completions use the Geo market infrastructure, that is to say the support structure, but in terms of their commercial offering, how they do their bidding and pricing, they are done as a segment and not through the Geo market. Because we found that when you put them into a Geo market because a lot of it is manufactured or it's chemicals or it's stuff that is essentially procured, any particular Geo market has no sensitivity as to what the overall market is.

So in those cases, and I suspect very much it will be exactly the same for MI, we use the Geo market to provide a low-cost support structure for all the support services that any product line needs. But the commercial offering and the control over their tendering is held by the particular business segment.

Brad Handler - Credit Suisse - Analyst

Okay, thanks.

THOMPSON REUTERS STREETEVENTS | www.streetevents.com | Contact Us

© 2010 Thomson Reuters. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Thomson Reuters content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written consent of Thomson Reuters. 'Thomson Reuters' and the Thomson Reuters logo are registered trademarks of Thomson Reuters and its affiliated companies.



Operator

Alan Laws, BMO Capital Markets.

Alan Laws - BMO Capital Markets - Analyst

Good morning. Quick question, it's actually a follow up. Sorry to come back to the synergies again but you mentioned that a lot of this was in corporate structure so I assume that's mostly G&A. But one thing that stands out to us is this tax rate arbitrage here. Yours is a much lower tax rate than where Smith is. I wonder is there anything there that helps on the synergy side?

Simon Ayat - Schlumberger Ltd. - CFO

I'll take this, yes. So in the numbers we announced to you, this reflect the structure of the transaction which is Smith is a US company and it is being merged with a US entity in Schlumberger and the numbers that we reflected to you that anything that comes from savings from Smith were basically a US tax rate.

The combination or amalgamation of the tax will eventually help in the future but this is something that needs a structure and — but it does not envision in these numbers that we announced. So what you heard today does not reflect a lower tax rate but it is a US tax rate. Except for revenue generated from Schlumberger due to the combination that could be subject to the US — to the Schlumberger rate of tax.

Alan Laws - BMO Capital Markets - Analyst

Perfect, that's very, very clear, thank you very much. I won't use a follow up, but thanks again. Nice transaction.

Andrew Gould - Schlumberger Ltd. - Chairman and CEO

Thank you.

Operator

Bill Sanchez, Howard Weil.

Bill Sanchez - Howard Weil - Analyst

Good morning. My question answers two parts. One, again, I guess back on the cost synergies. When we look at just Smith's G&A line, it is substantial here yet we have outlined only \$160 million of cost savings in the first year. So I am assuming I guess there is a lot of G&A related to MI. That's why that number perhaps is not bigger number one.

And I guess number two, why such a big jump up from 2011 to 2012? And you've got a doubling here of the cost savings. Why is it taking I guess that long to realize \$320 million?

Simon Ayat - Schlumberger Ltd. - CFO

Okay. You are absolutely right. In Smith today, you have — because it is a joint venture of MI, there is a bit of a duplication in their corporate structure. Once the merger takes place, that need will be eliminated and we will have additional savings coming from eliminating the duplication in this structure within Smith itself and with Schlumberger. So a big part of the synergies coming from eliminating the overhead, the G&A.

Now why it's taking us time, because we believe that this has to be done gradually. We have to preserve the added value of all of these support structure within Smith and there are systems that you have to phase out over time to generate the savings. We believe that the first year will be a

THOMPSON REUTERS STREETEVENTS | www.streetevents.com | Contact Us



transition year until we get those savings. As a matter of fact, beyond the 2012, obviously, we have further savings to generate even from these areas, which we have not discussed on this call.

Bill Sanchez - Howard Weil - Analyst

Okay. That's it for me. Thank you.

Operator

Jim Crandall, Barclays.

Jim Crandell - Barclays Capital - Analyst

Good morning. Andrew, I had the sense in the past that you would have loved to own Smith's bit company but owning 100% of MI was really not essential and that you could access the technology given that fluids was pretty far down on the technology curve — that it wasn't of great interest for you to own 100% of MI. Can you comment on that?

Andrew Gould - Schlumberger Ltd. - Chairman and CEO

So I have had an internal debate with myself since I was president of the Sedco Forex about the value of drilling fluids. And at Sedco Forex, we actually created a system called mud stroke to try and check on whether or not the fluids companies were ripping us off — excuse my French — when they charged us for product.

But what has changed since then in the fluids world is in fact the well profile. So I'm going to do this by anecdote. When Aramco, Saudi Aramco bid the [Manifah] contract, we each had a test well. The test well was really tough. We had to go through some really tough cat rocks and shale, deviated horizontal at 28,000 feet. And my competitors were less successful than we were in drilling this well and actually we brought a big team of drilling engineers in from Sakhalin. And I went to the team one day and I said why are you succeeding where Brand X is failing? And they said it's the mud.

As wells get longer, as wells get more critical, the capacity to properly lubricate the drills string at these vast distances from the rig itself is becoming a highly specialized engineering skill.

So I think that the older reputation of mud and perhaps we should stop calling it mud and just call it drilling fluids has changed, in my opinion, is changing.

Jim Crandell - Barclays Capital - Analyst

Okay. A second question for John. John, given that you were obviously in discussions at the time you did the equity offering, why proceed with such a large equity offering given that you were theoretically in serious discussions with Schlumberger at the time?

John Yearwood - Smith International, Inc. - CEO

Well, Andrew mentioned that there had been discussions on and off for a long period of time. But back then, these things — discussions were on—they were off on and off. At that time, no, we were not actively engaged in any discussions and we had identified some key acquisition opportunities that we wanted to make happen and we have. We have closed on a number of those that we had identified, six to seven of them that we haven't closed on all. We are still on due diligence on a couple. And I am expecting that the sooner the due diligence goes fine, we will spend around \$400 million in acquisitions since the time of the equity offering.

So it was very appropriate for us to make those acquisitions because they were perfectly in line with our growth strategies.

THOMPSON REUTERS STREETEVENTS | www.streetevents.com | Contact Us

© 2010 Thomson Reuters. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Thomson Reuters content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written consent of Thomson Reuters. 'Thomson Reuters' and the Thomson Reuters logo are registered trademarks of Thomson Reuters and its affiliated companies.



Jim Crandell - Barclays Capital - Analyst

I'd presumed that you are in discussions with Schlumberger at the time that you did the offering. But given that you were not, I understand. Okay, that does it for me, thanks.

Operator

Robin Shoemaker, Citi.

Robin Shoemaker - Citigroup - Analyst

Thank you. Andrew, I was assuming that part of this strategy had to do with IPM work and enhancing your capabilities in that area. Can you address that topic?

Andrew Gould - Schlumberger Ltd. - Chairman and CEO

I would say that IPM has given us the visibility on the value of proper drilling engineering that we probably would not have had if we had just been a supplier of goods and services to the drilling departments of oil companies. So I would say the long-term influence of IPM on this transaction is the fact that Schlumberger through IPM has obtained over the last 15 years a much greater understanding of what drilling engineering is really all about. And as Schlumberger is a technology company at the same time, it has spread that back into its R&D plans.

So I would say the influence of IPM on the transaction is of course commercial because we use a lot of products from Smith and some of their competitors. But is also that it gave us a view of what needed to go into drilling engineering that we would not have had had we just been a supplier of goods and services to oil companies.

Robin Shoemaker - Citigroup - Analyst

Okay. And just a similar question about the North America market. There is some competitors that believe that the bundling of bits, motors, fluids, pressure pumping services in the shale plays is an appealing concept for the E&P customer base. And I wonder if that is some of your thinking that's going into this acquisition?

Andrew Gould - Schlumberger Ltd. - Chairman and CEO

There is nothing new in bundling. There is absolutely nothing new. It has been going on forever. I am sort of surprised that people are talking about it now because customers have procurement departments like everybody else right? And their objective is if they can increase the size of the spend that they make you look at when you bid, they will make you bundle. But I don't think there's anything new about it frankly.

Robin Shoemaker - Citigroup - Analyst

Okay, thank you.

Operator

Mike Urban, Deutsche Bank.

Mike Urban - Deutsche Bank - Analyst

Thanks, good morning. Wanted to return to Wilson for a second. It sounds like more of the initial opportunity at least is internally and managing your supply chain. I was wondering if you could expand a little bit on the international opportunities and where that might make sense given that some of those locations are a little bit more remote, supply chains are stretched. It's a relatively low margin business (multiple speakers).

THOMPSON REUTERS STREETEVENTS | www.streetevents.com | Contact Us



Andrew Gould - Schlumberger Ltd. - Chairman and CEO

Supply chains are stretched but if I look at the business now compared to even 10 years ago, there are places in the world where you can manage supply chain much more intelligently. For example, the Gulf Cooperation Council in the Arabian Gulf means that the free movement of goods between the Gulf countries is totally different now from what it was 10 years ago. So warehousing for example in [Jebalali] and Dubai or something makes a hell of a lot more sense than it did 10 years ago.

And the reason it didn't make sense 10 years ago was because of customs and transportation times. Whereas as frontiers open hopefully, the notion that you can guarantee delivery in a much shorter period of time means that local — some measure of local warehousing is becoming much more realistic.

Mike Urban - Deutsche Bank - Analyst

Okay, great, that's helpful. And unrelated follow-up, you spent a lot of time talking about the benefits of integrating along the drill string, bringing fluids and bits and some of the other tools into the mix. Does that perhaps bring you closer or push you across the finish line in terms of real-time seismic at the bed or close to real time? Or is that part of what you are trying to do?

Andrew Gould - Schlumberger Ltd. - Chairman and CEO

Seismic — seismic — seismic while drilling in deepwater is — this doesn't really help that much because we know how to do that. The issue in seismic while drilling is the processing time it takes to re-migrate the seismic cube because until we've introduced our product, basically you are looking at three months. And no driller can work in a timeframe of three months.

So we've got it to now to something like 48 hours and if it's a really critical well with really tough difficult horizons, then you can say to the driller slow down for 48 hours and we are going to re-migrate and come up with a new well plan.

I would say we still need to get it lower than that but this transaction in itself really doesn't do a great deal for help except if you are going to slow down for 20 — 48 hrs, it may well influence the drilling fluids program that you use during that period of time.

Mike Urban - Deutsche Bank - Analyst

Okay, that's very helpful. Thank you.

Operator

Pierre Conner, Capital One.

Pierre Conner - Capital One - Analyst

Good morning everyone. Andrew, you mentioned the future of shale gas development with a move towards potentially more drilling, less fracturing if I understood that correctly. I wanted to ask you do you see that as a cost savings in order to access more of the reservoir or is this some protection against potential fracing regulations that might occur?

Andrew Gould - Schlumberger Ltd. - Chairman and CEO

No, this is purely — you see today, most of the fracs that are been done are purely geometric. They are doing these stage fracs but if you look at our collection of production [loads], you'd be amazed how few of the perforations actually produce any gas.

So as people get better at identifying where the sweet spots really are, they will selectively frac instead of geometrically fracing which will actually lower the cost of — I think lower the cost of producing shale gas and obviously the wells will be much more targeted if we know how to find the sweet spots.

THOMPSON REUTERS STREETEVENTS | www.streetevents.com | Contact Us



I don't think in my mind it has anything to do with the potential legislation or control or whatever it's going to be over frac bids.

Pierre Conner - Capital One - Analyst

Okay. Thanks. And my unrelated follow-up, just to be clear, you mentioned the potential of Wilson giving you some heads up in you are supply chain. And the synergies that you've spoken of so far, Simon, don't include any potential improvement in supply chain. Is that correct?

Simon Ayat - Schlumberger Ltd. - CFO

It does include, not because of Wilson, but it does include some saving due to the purchasing power of the combined company. But it is not that meaningful. Wilson impact we will have to measure as and when we go into it. But it could be substantial as well.

Pierre Conner - Capital One - Analyst

Okay. Good, and congratulations and thanks gentlemen.

Malcolm Theobald - Schlumberger Ltd. - VP of IR

Okay, now on behalf of the Schlumberger and Smith management teams, I would like to thank you for participating in today's call and Kent will now provide the closing comments.

Operator

Great, thank you. And ladies and gentlemen, this conference will be available for replay starting today, Monday, February 22 at 9.30 a.m. Central time and it will be available through Monday, March 22 at Midnight Central US time. And you may access the AT&T executive playback service by dialing 1-800-475-6701 within the United States or Canada. Or from outside the United States or Canada, please dial 320-365-3844 and then enter the access code of 147360. Those numbers once again are 1-800-475-6701 within the US or Canada or 320-365-3844 from outside the US or Canada. And again, enter the access code of 147360.

And that doesn't conclude our conference for today. Thanks for your participation and for using AT&T's executive teleconference. You may now disconnect.

THOMPSON REUTERS STREETEVENTS | www.streetevents.com | Contact Us

© 2010 Thomson Reuters. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Thomson Reuters content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written consent of Thomson Reuters. 'Thomson Reuters' and the Thomson Reuters logo are registered trademarks of Thomson Reuters and its affiliated companies.



DISCLAIMER

Thomson Reuters reserves the right to make changes to documents, content, or other information on this web site without obligation to notify any person of such changes.

In the conference calls upon which Event Transcripts are based, companies may make projections or other forward-looking statements regarding a variety of items. Such forward-looking statements are based upon current expectations and involve risks and uncertainties. Actual results may differ materially from those stated in any forward-looking statement based on a number of important factors and risks, which are more specifically identified in the companies' most recent SEC filings. Although the companies may indicate and believe that the assumptions underlying the forward-looking statements are reasonable, any of the assumptions could prove inaccurate or incorrect and, therefore, there can be no assurance that the results contemplated in the forward-looking statements will be realized.

THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN EVENT TRANSCRIPTS IS A TEXTUAL REPRESENTATION OF THE APPLICABLE COMPANY'S CONFERENCE CALL AND WHILE EFFORTS ARE MADE TO PROVIDE AN ACCURATE TRANSCRIPTION, THERE MAY BE MATERIAL ERRORS, OMISSIONS, OR INACCURACIES IN THE REPORTING OF THE SUBSTANCE OF THE CONFERENCE CALLS. IN NO WAY DOES THOMSON REUTERS OR THE APPLICABLE COMPANY OR THE APPLICABLE COMPANY ASSUME ANY RESPONSIBILITY FOR ANY INVESTMENT OR OTHER DECISIONS MADE BASED UPON THE INFORMATION PROVIDED ON THIS WEB SITE OR IN ANY EVENT TRANSCRIPT. USERS ARE ADVISED TO REVIEW THE APPLICABLE COMPANY'S CONFERENCE CALL ITSELF AND THE APPLICABLE COMPANY'S SEC FILINGS BEFORE MAKING ANY INVESTMENT OR OTHER DECISIONS.

© 2010 Thomson Reuters. All Rights Reserved.

THOMPSON REUTERS STREETEVENTS | www.streetevents.com | Contact Us

© 2010 Thomson Reuters. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Thomson Reuters content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written consent of Thomson Reuters. 'Thomson Reuters' and the Thomson Reuters logo are registered trademarks of Thomson Reuters and its affiliated companies.

